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Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K containgaie forward-looking statements, including withdimitation, statements concerning our
operations, economic performance and financial timmd These forward-looking statements are madsyant to the safe harbor provisions of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B9%orward-looking statements are developed by @oimdp currently available information
with our beliefs and assumptions and are geneiddiytified by the words "believe,” "expect,” "ampiate" and other similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements do not guarantee fyteréormance, which may be materially different fridmat expressed in, or implied by, any
such statements. Readers are cautioned not to yntaltes reliance on these forward-looking statemevtigch speak only as of their dates.

These forward-looking statements are béagely on our current beliefs, assumptions anceetgiions of our future performance taking
into account all information currently availableus. These beliefs, assumptions and expectationstange as a result of many possible e\
or factors, not all of which are known to us orhiritour control, and which could materially affactual results, performance or achievements.
Factors that may cause actual results to vary fsanforward-looking statements include, but arelimoited to:

. factors described in this Annual Report on FormK]@cluding those set forth under the captionssiRtactors” and "Busines
. defaults by borrowers in paying debt service orstaunding items

. impairment in the value of real estate propertyuseg our loans;

. availability of mortgage origination and acquisitiopportunities acceptable to us;

. potential mismatches in the timing of asset repaymand the maturity of the associated financingements
. national and local economic and business conditi

. general and local commercial real estate propentylitions;

. changes in federal government policies;

. changes in federal, state and local governmental &nd regulation:

. increased competition from entities engaged in gagé lending;

. changes in interest rates; and

. the availability of and costs associated with sesiraf liquidity.

In light of these risks and uncertainttbgre can be no assurances that the results rterie the forwardeoking statements contained
this Annual Report on Form 1R-will in fact occur. Except to the extent requidey applicable law or regulation, we undertake hbigation to.
and expressly disclaim any such obligation to, teda revise any forwarbboking statements to reflect changed assumptitiespccurrence 1
anticipated or unanticipated events, changes toduesults over time or otherwise.
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PART |
Item 1. Business.

The following description of our business shoulddsed in conjunction with the information includeldewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 2011. This datsan contains forward-looking statements thatdlve risks and uncertainties.
Actual results could differ significantly from thesults discussed in the forwelooking statements due to the factors set forttRisk Factors'
and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-4feRences in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to,"Weur," "us," or the "Company,"
refer to Starwood Property Trust, Inc. All amouate in thousands (000's) except share and per stiate.

General

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. is a Marylaodporation that commenced operations on Augus2Q@9, upon the completion of our initial
public offering. We are focused on originating,ésting in, financing and managing commercial maég®ans and other commercial real
estate debt investments, commercial mortgage-basdg@udtities ("CMBS"), and other commercial reabtestelated debt investments. In
addition, we also invest in residential mortgageand residential mortgabacked securities ("RMBS"). We collectively referdommercia
mortgage loans, other commercial real estate debstments, CMBS and other commercial real esttged debt investments as our target
assets. We may also invest in commercial propestiegect to net leases. We make certain investnielR&BS that we use as a primary
alternative investment for our available cash.

Our objective is to provide attractive ra#tjusted global returns to our investors overding term, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. In otdeachieve these objectives, we focus on assettgmieand the relative value of various sec
within the debt market to construct a diversifiaddastment portfolio designed to produce attraatgtarns across a variety of market conditions
and economic cycles. We employ leverage, to thentxvailable, to fund the acquisition of our tam@gsets, increase potential returns to our
stockholders and meet our return objectives. Legeecan either be direct by utilizing private thpdrty financing, or indirect through
originating, acquiring, or retaining subordinatedrtgages, B-Notes, subordinated loan participat@mmaezzanine loans. Under our current
repurchase agreements and bank credit facilitytaiaf leverage may not exceed 75%, excludingriigact of bondide loan sales that must
accounted for as financings and consolidating amable interest entities pursuant to accountirigciples generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAP"). We are organized aslaihg company and conduct our business primahnilgugh our various subsidiaries.

Since the closing of our initial public efing, we have focused primarily on opportunitiest texist in the U.S. commercial mortgage loan,
commercial real estate debt, and CMBS and RMBS etarlds market conditions change over time, we atjyst our strategy to take
advantage of changes in interest rates and cigaiads as well as economic and credit conditioresb@lieve that the diversification of our
portfolio of assets, our expertise among the taagset classes, and the flexibility of our stratedlyposition us to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our stockholders in a varitgssets and market conditions.

We are externally managed and advised ByM&hagement, LLC (our "Manager") pursuant to #ivens of a management agreement.
Manager is controlled by Barry Sternlicht, our Ghedn and Chief Executive Officer. Our Manager isaffiliate of Starwood Capital Group, a
privately-held private equity firm founded and aatied by Mr. Sternlicht. Since its inception ind19 Starwood Capital Group (including
Starwood Capital-named affiliates controlled by Bternlicht) has sponsored
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numerous opportunistic funds, including dedicatebdtdunds, dedicated hotel funds and several stanel@nd co-investment partnerships.

We have elected to be taxed as a reakdstatstment trust ("REIT") for U.S. federal incotag purposes commencing with our taxable
year ended December 31, 2009. We generally wilbeotubject to U.S. federal income taxes on owafixincome to the extent that '
annually distribute all of our taxable income tocktholders and maintain our qualification as a REVE also operate our business in a manner
that permits us to maintain our exemption from sergtion under the Investment Company Act of 1@40amended (the "1940 Act").

Our corporate headquarters office is latatte591 West Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, Connectitut our telephone number is (203) 422-
8100.

Investment Strategy

We seek to maximize returns for our stodttérs by constructing and managing a diversifiedfptio of our target assets. Our investment
strategy may include, without limitation, the follimg:

. focusing on acquiring debt positions with implieakis at deep discounts to replacement costs;

. focusing on supply and demand fundamentals andigrénvestments in high population and job growiairkets where
demand for all real estate asset classes is nke$ lio be present;

. targeting markets with barriers to entry other thapital;

. structuring transactions with an amount of levertge reflects the risk of the underlying assed'shcflow stream, attempting to
match the rate and duration of the financing whth einderlying asset's cash flow, and hedging cateency, and other
characteristics when we deem appropriate; and

. seeking to take advantage of pricing dislocatiaested by distressed sellers or distressed capitadtures and pursuing
investments with attractive risk-reward profiles.

In order to capitalize on the changing sétisvestment opportunities that may be presetiénvarious points of an economic cycle, we
may expand or refocus our investment strategy byhasizing investments in different parts of theitedstructure and different sectors of real
estate. Our investment strategy may be amendedtinoento time, if recommended by our Manager angrayped by our board of directors,
without the approval of our stockholders. In additto our Manager making direct investments onbainalf, we may enter into joint venture,
management or other agreements with persons thatdpeecial expertise or sourcing capabilities.

Financing Strategy

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes andegemption from registering under the 1940
Act, we may finance the acquisition of our targeteds, to the extent available to us, throughdhewiing methods:

. sources of private financing, including le- and shoi-term repurchase agreements and warehouse and teatitfacilities;
. loan sales, syndications, and/or securitizationd,;
. public offerings of our equity and/or debt secesti

We may also utilize other sources of finagdo the extent available to us.

2
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Our Target Assets

We invest in target assets secured prignhyilU.S. collateral. We focus primarily on origiimey or opportunistically acquiring commerc
mortgage whole loans, B-notes, mezzanine loangemee equity and mortgage-backed securities. Wigimaest in performing and non-
performing mortgage loans and other real estatge@lloans and debt investments, but we will ngfetiaany "near term loan to own"
investments, which our Manager considers to begage loans or other real estate-related loan drideestments where the proposed
originator or acquiror of any such investment Hesintent and/or expectation of foreclosing onpthierwise acquiring the real property
securing the loan or investment at any time withfirst 18 months of its origination or acquisitiof the loan or investment. We may acquire
target assets through portfolio or other acquisid®ur Manager targets markets where it has a ofetihhe expected cyclical recovery as well
as expertise in the real estate collateral undeglylie assets being acquired. We seek situatiorsevehlender or holder of a loan or security is
in a compromised situation due to the relative sizés CRE portfolio, the magnitude of non-perfangloans, or regulatory/rating agency
issues driven by potential capital adequacy or entration issues. We may also invest in commep@pberties subject to net leases, as well as
in residential mortgage loans and RMBS.

Our target assets include the followingetypf loans and other investments with respeoboncercial real estate:

. whole mortgage loans¢ loans secured by a first mortgage lien on a coromeproperty that provide loi-term mortgage
financing to commercial property developers or osrgenerally having maturity dates ranging frone¢hio ten years;

. bridge loans: whole mortgage loans secured by a first mortdi@geon a commercial property that provide intednbridge
financing to borrowers seeking short-term capitpldally for the acquisition of real estate;

. B-Notes: typically a privately negotiated loan that iswexd by a first mortgage on a single large comnaépioperty or group
of related properties and subordinated to an A Netaired by the same first mortgage on the sanpepyoor group;

. mezzanine loan¢ loans made to commercial property owners thasacered by pledges of the borrower's ownershgrests ii
the property and/or the property owner, subordit@tghole mortgage loans secured by first or secnodgage liens on the
property and senior to the borrower's equity ingheperty;

. construction or rehabilitation loans mortgage loans and mezzanine loans to financed$ieof construction or rehabilitation
a commercial property;

. CMBS: securities that are collateralized by commenmiaftgage loans, including:
. senior and subordinated investment grade Ch
. below investment grade CMBS, and
. unrated CMBS;
. corporate bank deb' term loans and revolving credit facilities of comrcial real estate operating or finance compaeiash of

which are generally secured by such companiestsasse
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. corporate bonds: debt securities issued by commercial real esia¢eating or finance companies that may or maybeot
secured by such companies' assets, including:

. investment grade corporate bonds,
. below investment grade corporate bonds, and
. unrated corporate bonc

In addition, we may invest in the followitypes of loans and debt investments relating abestate;

. net leases: commercial properties subject to net leases, eiases typically have longer terms than groselgaequire
tenants to pay substantially all of the operatiogts associated with the properties and often bamtactually specified rent
increases throughout their terms;

. residential mortgage loans:loans secured by a first mortgage lien on a eggidl property;

. RMBS: securities collateralized by residential mortghgms, including:

. Nor-Agency RMBS RMBS that are not guaranteed by any U.S. Govenhagency or federally chartered corporation;
. Agency RMBS RMBS for which a U.S. Government agency or affaliechartered corporation guarantees paymen

principal and interest on the securities.
Our Portfolio
Investment Activities

The following table sets forth the amouheach category of commercial real estate investenee owned across various property types
(1) as of December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Carrying Face % Net Weighted
Investment Value Amount Owned Financing Investment Average Rating Vintage
First mortgage:
Loan 1989 -
acquisition $ 652,34¢ $ 694,60( 10C%$ 332,19: $ 320,15¢ N/A 2011
Loan 2009-
origination: 729,17: 727,41 10C% 451,09: 278,07¢ N/A 2011
Total first
mortgages(2 1,381,521 1,422,01. 783,28 598,23°
Subordinated
mortgage
loans and
mezzanine
loans
Loan 1999-
acquisition 649,86 713,67¢ 10C% 167,85 482,01( N/A 2011
Loan 2009-
origination: 416,12 416,32 100% — 416,12 N/A 2011
Total
subordinated
debt 1,065,98: 1,130,00i 167,85 898,13
CMBS—AFS
3) 176,78t 195,84: 10C% 119,00 57,78: NR(4) 2010
RMBS—AFS 2003 -
3) 164,94¢ 263,75« 10(% 86,57¢ 78,37: B- 2007
Other
Investments 44,37¢ 44,37¢ 10C% — 44,37¢ N/A N/A
$2,833,62. $3,055,95! $1,156,711 $1,676,90!

1) Refer to Schedule 1V for details of property type.
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4) Represents securities where the obligors are pestacial purpose entities that were formed to balustantially all of tF
assets of a worldwide operator of hotels, resortstemeshare properties; the securities are netir@fNR") but based on
available public information, management estim#tedoan-to-value ratio to be in the range of 396t
December 31, 201

As of December 31, 2011, the Company'd tot@stment portfolio, excluding other investmeritad the following characteristics based
on carrying values:

Collateral Property Type Geographic Location
Hospitality 39.€% Northeas 12.5%
Industrial 3.8% Mid-Atlantic 19.7%
Office 20.1% Southeas 19.(%
Retail 21.0% Southwes 4.8%
Residentia 5.9% Midwest 12.%
Multi-family 3.2% West 23.5%
Other 0.4% International 7.6%
Mixed Use 5.6%

100.(% 100.(%

As of December 31, 2011, all of our investits were performing as expected.

The following table sets forth the amouheach category of commercial real estate investsnge owned across various property type
of December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

Weighted
Carrying Face % Net Average
Investment Value Amount Owned Financing Investment Rating Vintage
First mortgage
1999 -
Loan acquisition: $ 490,40¢ $ 525,48t 10C%$%$ 326,09 $ 164,31« N/A 2008
2009-
Loan originations 461,73¢ 466,30" 10C% 63,08¢ 398,65( N/A 2010
Total first mortgage
1) 952,14. 991,79: 389,18( 562,96
Subordinated loans
and mezzanine
loans
1999 -
Loan acquisition: 378,11. 438,72¢ 10%  73,26( 304,85: N/A 2007
Loan origination: 94,987 95,08t 10C% — 94,987 N/A 2010
Total subordinated
debt 473,09¢ 533,81 73,26( 399,83¢
% 2001-
CMBS—AFS(2) 275,15! 275,26¢ 81~ 171,30! 103,85(  AA- 2010
2003-
RMBS—AFS(2) 122,52! 140,57t 10C% — 122,52t  BB- 2007
Other Investment 14,17 13,29¢ 10C% — 14,177 N/A N/A
$1,837,100 $1,954,74 $ 633,74 $1,203,35!
(1) Includes loans held-for-sale at fair value.
(2 Commercial and residential mortgage-backed AFSraessi
A Reflects one consolidated joint venture in whiol @ompany has a 75% ownership interest.
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As of December 31, 2010, the Company'd tot@stment portfolio had the following characstics based on carrying values:

Collateral Property Type Geographic Location
Hospitality 40.4% Northeas 10.9%
Industrial 5.1% Mid-Atlantic 9.4%
Office 19.€% Southeas 11.5%
Retail 23.8% Southwes 8.5%
Residentia 6.9% Midwest 23.5%
Other 1.6% West 19.£%
Mixed Use 2.6% International 16.4%
100.(% 100.(%

Our investment process includes sourcirysaneening of investment opportunities, assegeivgstment suitability, conducting interest
rate and prepayment analysis, evaluating cashdluivcollateral performance, reviewing legal streetand servicer and originator information
and investment structuring, as appropriate, to s@ekttractive return commensurate with the riskaveebearing. Upon identification of an
investment opportunity, the investment will be sered and monitored by us to determine its impachamtaining our REIT qualification and
our exemption from registration under the 1940 A¢e will seek to make investments in sectors winardiave strong core competencies and
believe market risk and expected performance cardmonably quantified.

We evaluate each one of our investment dppities based on its expected risk-adjusted netelative to the returns available from other,
comparable investments. In addition, we evaluate o@portunities based on their relative expectégins compared to comparable positions
held in our portfolio. The terms of any leveragaitable to us for use in funding an investment pase are also taken into consideration, a
any risks posed by illiquidity or correlations witther securities in the portfolio. We also devedomacro outlook with respect to each target
asset class by examining factors in the broadamaog such as gross domestic product, interest, ratesnployment rates and availability of
credit, among other things. We also analyze fundaahérends in the relevant target asset clasestxadjust/maintain our outlook for that

particular target asset class.

Loans

Our primary focus is to build a portfolib@mmercial mortgage and mezzanine loans at étteaisk adjusted returns by focusing on the
underlying real estate fundamentals and credityaigabf the borrowers. During the year ended Deeerh, 2011, we originated 42 loans and
acquired 50 loans, as summarized below (amourit®imsands):

Weighted
Average
Investment Equity Funded Principal Balance Coupon at Closing
First mortgages held fc
investmen $ 938,31 $ 967,07: 5.8%
Subordinated mortgages
held for investmen 24,75( 24,75( 12.2%
Mezzanine loans held for
investmen 555,94¢ 580,96 7.%
First mortgages held for s: 270,06¢ 270,06t 5.2%

Total loans originated or
acquired in currentyei $ 1,789,07( $ 1,842,84
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We continually monitor borrower performareg®l complete a detailed, loan-by-loan formal dreliiew on a quarterly basis. The results
of this review are incorporated into our quarterdgessment of the adequacy of loan loss reserses. Becember 31, 2011, all loans were
performing as expected and no allowance for loaads was deemed necessary.

Mortgage-Backed Securities

During the years ended December 31, 208i1Dmtember 31, 2010, we invested $0 and $18.5amjlliespectively, in various CMBS,
which are secured by a single mortgage on one oe properties and were acquired on average at 9%roDuring the second quarter of
2011, we exercised a pre-existing right to conwag of our loans into a CMBS in order to maximize liquidity of our investment. We
therefore reclassified the loan, which had a cagymount of $176.6 million, from loans held fovéstment to mortgage backed securities,
available-for-sale, at fair value and recognizediarealized gain of $7.9 million. As of December 3Q11, all of the CMBS, are not rated, by
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services, Inc. ("S&P"amequivalent rating agency. The obligors areagegpecial purpose entities that were
formed to hold substantially all of the assets wfcaldwide operator of hotels, resorts, and timeshpoperties. While there is limited fair val
information available, management estimates the-toavalue ratio to be in the 39%-44% range as @fdédnber 31, 2011. The $176.8 million
floating rate CMBS pay an average spread of 1.78é6 the index, which is the one month London IraafbOffered Rate ("LIBOR"). In the
event of full extension, the spread over the indé@kincrease from the current 1.75% to 3.3%. ADafcember 31, 2011, the weighted-average
coupon of all CMBS is 2.05%.

During the year ended December 31, 201 linwested $38.7 million in RMBS, net of sales anidigipal payments received. As of
December 31, 2011, we held 63 RMBS positions.

The table below represents the summarupMBS as of December 31, 2011 (amounts in thougand

Unrealized Gains or (Losses) Recognized
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Purchase Credit Recorded Non-Credit Unrealized Unrealized Net Fair Value
December 31, 201 Amortized Cost OTTI Amortized Cost OTTI Gains Losses Adjustment Fair Value
CMBS $ 177,35 $ — $ 177,35 $ — $ — $ (567) $ (567) $ 176,78t
RMBS 170,42- (6,000 164,42; (1,310 3,361 (1,537%) 52t 164,94¢
Total $ 347,77 $ (6,00) $ 341,77« $ (1,310 $ 3,361 $ (2,099 $ (42) $ 341,73
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-Average
Average Average Life ("WAL")
December 31, 201 Coupon(1) Rating (Years)(3)
CMBS 2.1% NR(2) 3E
RMBS 1.C% B- 4.8

(1) Generally calculated using the December 31, 20E-month LIBOR rate of 0.29539

2 Represents securities where the obligors are pestacial purpose entities that were formed to Balastantially
all of the assets of a worldwide operator of hotedsorts and timeshare properties; the secudtesot rated but
the loan-to-value ratio was estimated to be inrtimge of 39%-44% at December 31, 2011.

3 Represents the WAL of each respective group of MBf&. WAL of each individual security is calculateslia
fraction, the numerator of which is the sum oftihging (in years) of each expected future principgyment
multiplied by the balance of the respective paymantl with a denominator equal to the sum of thgeeted
principal
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payments. This calculation was made as of DeceBibe2011. Assumptions for the calculation of the M&ke
adjusted as necessary for changes in projectedipairrepayments and/or maturity dates of the MBS.

The table below represents the summaryuoMBS as of December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousa

Weighted
Total Weighted Weighted Average
Unrealized Unrealized Fair Value Fair Average Average Life
December 31, 2010 Cost Gains Losses Adjustment Value Coupon(1) Rating (Years)
CMBS $ 266,76: $ 9,072 $ (68%) $ 8,391 $ 275,15! 5.6% AA- 1.8
RMBS 120,82° 2,49t (797) 1,69¢ 122,52¢ 0.6% BB- 1.2

$ 387,59: $ 11,56¢ $ (1,480 $ 10,08¢ $ 397,68(

1) Calculated using the December 31, 201C-month LIBOR rate of 0.2606%
Summary of Interest Characteristics

As described in Item 7—"Management's Disausand Analysis of Financial Condition and ResoftOperations,” and Item 7A—
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about kéaRisk," we utilize certain interest rate riskmagement techniques, including both
asset/liability matching and certain other heddiagsactions, in order to mitigate our exposuriaterest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2011, 46.1% of our itwvents were comprised of fixed rate loans and #&siwith a weighted-average coupon of
8.9% and weighted-average life of 4.4 years, whebsa4% of our investments were comprised of végiedite loans and securities with a
LIBOR based index with a weighted-average spre&®l5#% and weighted-average life of 3.1 years aB#hlof our investments represented
other investments.

As of December 31, 2010, 73.8% of our itwvesnts were comprised of fixed rate loans and #éesiwvith a weighted-average coupon of
7.8% and weighted-average life of 3.4 years, wrep84% of our investments were comprised of végiedite loans and securities with a
LIBOR based index with a weighted-average spredd&% and weighted-average life of 3.9 years aB@éoMf our investments represented
other investments.

Summary of Maturities

As of December 31, 2011, our investmentfplio had a weighted-average maturity of 3.9 yebesed on management's judgment of
extension options being exercised. The table bslwws the
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carrying value expected to mature annually ovemtiad ten years for our investments in loans andBSNamounts in thousands, except
number of investments maturing).

Number of Scheduled

Investments repayments on % of
Year of Maturity Maturing(1) Loans(2) Total
2012 11 $ 295,13. 11.2%
2013 14 392,73t 15.(%
2014 15 440,23¢ 16.8%
2015 11 310,21° 11.8&%
2016 29 644,76 24.€%
2017 18 280,02 10.7%
2018 1 8,50z 0.2%
2019 1 3,68¢ 0.1%
2020 2 41,49¢ 1.€%
2021 and thereafte 18 207,50: 7.€%
Total 121 $ 2,624,29. 100.(%

D) Excludes other investments and RMI

(2)  Assumes repayment of approximately $52.4 milliopmjected capitalized interest over the life af thans
Regulation

Our operations are subject, in certainainsés, to supervision and regulation by state eder&l governmental authorities and may be
subject to various laws and judicial and admintsteadecisions imposing various requirements asttigions, which, among other things:
(1) regulate credit granting activities; (2) esisiibimaximum interest rates, finance charges arer atiarges; (3) require disclosures to
customers; (4) govern secured transactions; ansktollection, foreclosure, repossession andnslahandling procedures and other trade
practices. Although most states do not regulatenceruial finance, certain states impose limitationsnterest rates and other charges and on
certain collection practices and creditor remediesl, require licensing of lenders and financieid alequate disclosure of certain contract
terms. We are also required to comply with cerpaivisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act tlaae applicable to commercial loans. We
intend to conduct our business so that neitheraveany of our subsidiaries are required to regiatean investment company under the 1940
Act.

In the judgment of management, existingus¢és and regulations have not had a material adweffect on our business. In the wake of the
recent financial crisis, legislators in the Unitgthtes and in other countries have said that gresgalation of financial services firms is
needed, particularly in areas such as risk managetegerage and disclosure. While we expect that regulations in these areas will be
adopted in the future, it is not possible at thitetto forecast the exact nature of any futureslegjion, regulations, judicial decisions, orders or
interpretations, nor their impact upon our futuusibess, financial condition or results of operaior prospects.

Competition

We are engaged in a competitive busin@ssut investment activities, we compete for oppuittes with numerous public and private
investment vehicles, including financial institut&) specialty finance companies, mortgage banksiqe funds, opportunity funds, hedge
funds, insurance companies, REITs and other inistital investors, as well as individuals. Many catifors are significantly larger than us,
have well established operating histories and naae lyreater access to
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capital, more resources and other advantages ava@hese competitors may be willing to accept loseéurns on their investments or to
compromise underwriting standards and, as a resultorigination volume and profit margins coulddmbrersely affected.

The Manager

We are externally managed and advised byamnager and benefit from the personnel, relatippssand experience of our Manager's
executive team and other personnel of Starwoodt@laproup. Pursuant to the terms of a managemeatagnt between our Manager and us,
our Manager provides us with our management teatrappropriate support personnel. Pursuant to asstment advisory agreement between
our Manager and Starwood Capital Group Managen&@, our Manager has access to the personnel @udirees of Starwood Capital
Group necessary for the implementation and exetwi@ur business strategy.

Our Manager is an affiliate of Starwood @alpgGroup, a privately-held private equity firmuieded and controlled by Mr. Sternlicht.
Starwood Capital Group has invested in most mdgwses of real estate, directly and indirectlyptigh operating companies, portfolios of
properties and single assets, including multifapof§ice, retail, hotel, residential entitled laadd communities, senior housing, mixed-use and
golf courses. Starwood Capital Group invests dedift levels of the capital structure, includirggity, preferred equity, mezzanine debt and
senior debt, depending on the asset risk profiteraturn expectation.

Our Manager draws upon the experience a&pdrése of Starwood Capital Group's team of prsifesals and support personnel operating
in eleven cities across six countries. Our Manadmy benefits from Starwood Capital Group's dedit@tsset management group operating in
offices located in the United States and abroad alse benefit from Starwood Capital Group's portfehanagement, finance and
administration functions, which address legal, chiamge, investor relations and operational mat@sset valuation, risk management and
information technologies in connection with thefpemance of our Manager's duties.

Taxation of the Company

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uthéelnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedQbae"), for federal income tax
purposes. We generally must distribute annuallgadt 90% of our taxable income, subject to cerdijnstments and excluding any net capital
gain, in order for federal corporate income taxtoadpply to our earnings that we distribute. Te ¢ixtent that we satisfy this distribution
requirement, but distribute less than 100% of eaxable income, we will be subject to federal cogp@income tax on our undistributed taxable
income. In addition, we will be subject to a 4% deductible excise tax if the actual amount thapas out to our stockholders in a calendar
year is less than a minimum amount specified ufetaral tax laws. Our qualification as a REIT alepends on our ability to meet varic
other requirements imposed by the Code, whicheetabrganizational structure, diversity of stoeknership and certain restrictions with
regard to owned assets and categories of income tfualify for taxation as a REIT, we will gendyalot be subject to United States federal
corporate income tax on our taxable income thatiisently distributed to stockholders.

Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may bejeabto certain federal excise taxes and statd@ral taxes on our income and property. If we
fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, wil ve subject to federal income taxes at regutaporate rates (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) and will not be able taltify as a REIT for four subsequent taxable yeREITs are subject to a number of
organizational and operational requirements urigeCode.

The Company formed several taxable REITBEl#ries ("TRS") in 2010 to reduce the impacth@ prohibited transaction tax and to avoid
penalty for the holding of assets not qualifyingeal estate
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assets for purposes of the REIT asset tests. Amgmie associated with a TRS is fully taxable becauBRS is subject to federal and state
income taxes as a domestic C corporation based itgpoat income.

See Iltem 1A—"Risk Factors—Risks Relate@to Taxation as a REIT" for additional tax stat®rmation.
Leverage Policies

We employ leverage, to the extent availatoléund the acquisition of our target assetsigase potential returns to our stockholders and
meet our return objectives. Although we are notinegl to maintain any particular minimum leveragga, the amount of leverage we deploy
for particular investments in our target assetseddp upon our Manager's assessment of a variéagtoirs, which may include the anticipated
liquidity and price volatility of the assets in dawestment portfolio, the potential for losses amtension risk in our portfolio, the gap between
the duration of our assets and liabilities, inchgdhedges, the availability and cost of financimg assets, our opinion of the creditworthiness of
our financing counterparties, the health of the.l@&@nomy and commercial and residential mortgagekets, our outlook for the level, slope,
and volatility of interest rates, the credit quabif our assets, the collateral underlying our @ssed our outlook for asset spreads relativad
LIBOR curve. Under our current repurchase agreesnamd bank credit facility, our total leverage nmay exceed 75%, excluding the impac
bona-fide loan sales that must be accounted féinascings and consolidating any variable inteesgities pursuant to GAAP. As of
December 31, 2011, our ratio of total debt to loamnd MBS investments was 41.5%.

Investment Guidelines

Our board of directors has adopted the¥dlhg investment guidelines:

. our investments will be in our target ass
. no investment shall be made that would cause failtw qualify as a REIT for federal income taxrpases;
. no investment shall be made that would cause asyof our subsidiaries to be required to be regest as an investment

company under the 1940 Act;

. not more than 25% of our equity will be investeaity individual asset without the consent of a migj@f our independer
directors; and

. any investment of up to $25 million requires therawal of our Chief Executive Officer; any investmiéom $25 million tc
$75 million requires the approval of our Managémsestment Committee; any investment from $75 onillio $150 million
requires the approval of the Investment Commitfemuo board of directors and our Manager's Investn@mmittee; and any
investment in excess of $150 million requires thpraval of our board of directors.

These investment guidelines may be chafrgedtime to time by our board of directors withal¢ approval of our stockholders. In
addition, both our Manager and our board of dinectoust approve any change in our investment gaielethat would modify or expand the
types of assets in which we invest.
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Available Information

Our website address is www.starwoodpropersy.com. We make available free of charge thraugtwebsite our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, CurfiReports on Form 8-K, all amendments to those re@ortl other filings as soon as
reasonably practicable after such material is meatally filed with or furnished to the Securitiaed Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), and
also make available on our website the charterthimAudit, Compensation, Nominating and Corpo@d&ernance and Investment
Committees of the board of directors and our Cddgusiness Conduct and Ethics and Code of Condud®ifincipal Executive Officer and
Senior Financial Officers, as well as our corpogeernance guidelines. Copies in print of thessudtents are available upon request to our
corporate Secretary at the address indicated ooower of this report. The information on our wébss not a part of, nor is it incorporated by
reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We intend to post on our website any ameamdrto, or waiver of, a provision of our Code ofsBess Conduct and Ethics or Code of
Conduct for Principal Executive Officer and Serfiamancial Officers that applies to our Chief ExéeaitOfficer, Chief Financial Officer and
Controller or persons performing similar functicargd that relates to any element of the code o€etihfinition set forth in Iltem 406 of
Regulation S-K of the Securities Act of 1933, asaded.

To communicate with the board of directelectronically, we have established an e-mail askjrBoardofDirectors@stwdreit.com, to
which stockholders may send correspondence todhedtof directors or any such individual directorgroup or committee of directors.

We have included as exhibits to this reflmetSarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 302 cedifons of our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer regarding the quality ofrqaublic disclosure.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information in this documeyou should consider carefully the followingkrfactors in evaluating an investment
in our securities. Any of these risks or the ocenoe of any one or more of the uncertainties desdrbelow could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, reswoit operations, cash flows, and trading price wf common stock.

Risks Related to Our Relationship with Our Manager

We are dependent on Starwood Capital Group, inchglour Manager, and their key personnel, who progidervices to us through the
management agreement, and we may not find a suaigplacement for our Manager and Starwood Capi@iloup if the management
agreement is terminated, or for these key personhéhey leave Starwood Capital Group or otherwisecome unavailable to us.

We have no separate facilities and are ¢et@ly reliant on our Manager. Our Manager hasiigant discretion as to the implementation
of our investment and operating policies and sgiate Accordingly, we believe that our success ddpéo a significant extent upon the effo
experience, diligence, skill and network of bustesntacts of the officers and key personnel of\danager. The officers and key personne
our Manager evaluate, negotiate, close and moaitomvestments; therefore, our success depentiseancontinued service. The departure of
any of the officers or key personnel of our Managmrld have a material adverse effect on our perémice.

We offer no assurance that our Managerretthain our investment manager or that we will taré to have access to our Manager's
officers and key personnel. The initial term of auanagement agreement with our Manager, and tlestiment advisory agreement between
our Manager and Starwood Capital Group Managenh&i@,only extends until August 17, 2012, with autdim@ne-year renewals thereafter.
If the management agreement and the investmens@gyvi
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agreement are terminated and no suitable repladeémund to manage us, we may not be able towggemur business plan.

There are various conflicts of interest in our rdianship with Starwood Capital Group, including ouvlanager, which could result in
decisions that are not in the best interests of @tiockholders.

We are subject to conflicts of interessimg out of our relationship with Starwood CapfiEabup, including our Manager. Specifically,
Mr. Sternlicht, our Chief Executive Officer and tB&airman of our board of directors, Mr. Dishnere @f our directors, and certain of our
executive officers are executives of Starwood Gh@roup. Our Manager and executive officers mayet@nflicts between their duties to us
and their duties to, and interests in, Starwoodit@a@roup and its other investment funds. Cursertarwood Global Opportunity Fund VI
and Starwood Capital Hospitality Fund 1l Globall{ectively, the "Starwood Private Real Estate Fuhdsllectively have the right to invest
25% of the equity capital proposed to be investedry investment vehicle managed by an entity cliett by Starwood Capital Group in debt
interests relating to real estate. Our co-investmrights are subject to, among other things, @ dletermination by our Manager that the
proposed investment is suitable for us, and (if)Manager's sole discretion as to whether or nektdude from our investment portfolio at ¢
time any "medium-term loan to own" investment, whaur Manager considers to be mortgage loans @r odfal estate-related loan or debt
investments where the proposed originator or aeqoif any such investment has the intent and/oeetgion of foreclosing on, or otherwise
acquiring the real property securing the loan gegtment at any time between 18 and 48 months ofigination or acquisition of the loan or
investment. In addition, in the case of opportasitio invest in a portfolio of assets includinghbetuity and debt real estate related
investments, we would not have the co-investmejhitsidescribed above if our Manager determinedékatthan 50% of the aggregate
anticipated investment returns from the portfoii@kpected to come from our target assets. Sina@eveubject to the judgment of our
Manager in the application of our co-investmenkhtsg we may not always be allocated 75% of eacimeestment opportunity in our target
asset classes. The Starwood Private Real EstatisFaorinvestment rights are expected to be ircefte up to three years following our initial
public offering, which closed on August 17, 200r@hdependent directors periodically review ourndger's and Starwood Capital Group's
compliance with the co-investment provisions ddsatiabove, but they do not approve each co-investbyethe Starwood Private Real Estate
Funds and us unless the amount of capital we inwdke proposed co-investment otherwise requireséview and approval of our
independent directors pursuant to our investmeiatelines. Pursuant to the exclusivity provisionghaf Starwood Private Real Estate Funds,
our investment strategy may not include (i) equitgrests in real estate, or (ii) "near-term loamwn" investments. These funds' exclusivity
rights are expected to be in effect for up to threars following our initial public offering, whictlosed on August 17, 2009. Therefore, our
board of directors does not have the flexibilityetgand our investment strategy to include equitgrests in real estate or "near-term loan to
own" investments prior to the expiration of the lesvity provisions of these Starwood Private Resflate Funds. Our Manager, Starwood
Capital Group and their respective affiliates mpgrsor or manage a U.S. publicly traded investmehicle that invests generally in real es
assets but not primarily in our target assets, motantial competing vehicle. Our Manager and StadvCapital Group have also agreed tha
so long as the management agreement is in effdob@nManager and Starwood Capital Group are ucai@mon control, no entity controlled
by Starwood Capital Group will sponsor or managet@ntial competing vehicle or private or foreignmpeting vehicle, unless Starwood
Capital Group adopts a policy that either (i) pd®s for the fair and equitable allocation of inwesht opportunities among all such vehicles
and us, or (ii) provides us the right to co-inweth such vehicles, in each case subject to thelsility of each investment opportunity for the
particular vehicle and us and each such vehichelsoar availability of cash for investment. To thdent that we have davestment rights wit
these vehicles in the future, there can be no assarthat these future rights will entitle us irailar percentage allocation as we currently
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have with respect to the Starwood Private RealtE$tands. To the extent that our Manager and Stadv@apital Group adopt an investment
allocation policy in the future, we may nonethelesmpete with these vehicles for investment oppities sourced by our Manager and
Starwood Capital Group. As a result, we may eitiarbe presented with the opportunity or may haveompete with these vehicles to acquire
these investments. Some or all of our executivieaf, the members of the Investment CommitteauoManager and other key personnel of
our Manager would likely be responsible for selggtinvestments for these vehicles and they maysshtwallocate favorable investments to
one or more of these vehicles instead of to us.

Our board of directors has adopted a paliith respect to any proposed investments by tivereal persons in any of our target asset
classes. This policy provides that any proposedstment by a covered person for his or her ownwaddo any of our target asset classes will
be permitted if the capital required for the invesiht does not exceed the personal investment llmithe extent that a proposed investment
exceeds the personal investment limit, we expexttdhr board of directors will only permit the coee person to make the investment (i) upon
the approval of the disinterested directors, Qiif(the proposed investment otherwise compliehwgrms of any other related party transaction
policy our board of directors has adopted. Sulicompliance with all applicable laws, these imdiinals may make investments for their own
account in our target assets which may preserdineronflicts of interest not addressed by ourenirpolicies.

We pay our Manager substantial base managief@es regardless of the performance of our @atfOur Manager's entitlement to a base
management fee, which is not based upon perfornraeteécs or goals, might reduce its incentive teale its time and effort to seeking
investments that provide attractive risk-adjustetdnns for our portfolio. This in turn could hurth our ability to make distributions to our
stockholders and the market price of our commoaoksto

We do not have any employees except fordwdsossen, our Chief Operating Officer, Executfiee President, General Counsel and
Chief Compliance Officer, and Perry Stewart Wandt, Ghief Financial Officer and Treasurer, who Staoal Capital Group has seconded to us
exclusively. Mr. Sossen and Mr. Ward are also eyg#s of other entities affiliated with our Managed, as a result, are subject to potential
conflicts of interest in service as our employeas as an employees of such entities.

The management agreement with our Manager was negatiated on an arm’s-length basis and may not Isefavorable to us as if it had
been negotiated with an unaffiliated third party dmay be costly and difficult to terminate.

Our executive officers and three of ouresedirectors are executives of Starwood Capital@r@®ur management agreement with our
Manager was negotiated between related partiegaterms, including fees payable, may not be asrible to us as if it had been negotiated
with an unaffiliated third party.

Termination of the management agreemertit auit Manager without cause is difficult and cos®ur independent directors will review
our Manager's performance and the management fieesidy and, following the initial three-year terthe management agreement may be
terminated annually upon the affirmative vote ofeatst two-thirds of our independent directors Hagson: (i) our Manager's unsatisfactory
performance that is materially detrimental to ug(iip a determination that the management feesplgyto our Manager are not fair, subject to
our Manager's right to prevent termination basedtfair fees by accepting a reduction of managerfes# agreed to by at least two-thirds of
our independent directors. Our Manager will be fifedt 180 days prior notice of any such a termimatidditionally, upon such a terminatic
the management agreement provides that we wilbpayvianager a termination fee equal to three tithesum of the average annual base
management fee and incentive fee received by ounralgfer during the prior 24-month period before
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such termination, calculated as of the end of thetmecently completed fiscal quarter. These piforgsmay increase the cost to us of
terminating the management agreement and adveaffelst our ability to terminate our Manager withacause.

During the initial three-year term of thamagement agreement, we may not terminate the reareag agreement except for cause.

Our Manager is only contractually committedserve us until the third anniversary of thesiig of our initial public offering, which
closed on August 17, 2009. Thereafter, the manageaggeement is renewable for one-year terms; geakihowever, that our Manager may
terminate the management agreement annually up@ddys prior notice. If the management agreemeetisinated and no suitable
replacement is found to manage us, we may not leet@lexecute our business plan.

Pursuant to the management agreement, analyer does not assume any responsibility otharttheender the services called for there
under and is not responsible for any action oftmard of directors in following or declining to Folv its advice or recommendations. Our
Manager maintains a contractual as opposed taiaifidy relationship with us. Under the terms of tih@nagement agreement, our Manager, its
officers, members, personnel, any person contgbincontrolled by our Manager and any person pliagi sub-advisory services to our
Manager will not be liable to us, any subsidiaryafs, our directors, our stockholders or any sliasi's stockholders or partners for acts or
omissions performed in accordance with and purstaatiite management agreement, except becausesafaddtituting bad faith, willful
misconduct, gross negligence, or reckless disregfattikir duties under the management agreemeitldition, we have agreed to indemnify
our Manager, its officers, stockholders, membem=nagers, directors, personnel, any person comtgodli controlled by our Manager and any
person providing sub-advisory services to our Managth respect to all expenses, losses, damageédities, demands, charges and claims
arising from acts or omissions of our Manager moistituting bad faith, willful misconduct, grossgtigence, or reckless disregard of duties,
performed in good faith in accordance with and pans to the management agreement.

The incentive fee payable to our Manager under tm@nagement agreement is payable quarterly and isdshon our Core Earnings and
therefore, may cause our Manager to select invegtiseén more risky assets to increase its incentboenpensation.

Our Manager is entitled to receive incemttompensation based upon our achievement of éaldmiels of Core Earnings. In evaluating
investments and other management strategies, fi@topity to earn incentive compensation based are Earnings may lead our Manager to
place undue emphasis on the maximization of Coreifigs at the expense of other criteria, such asquwation of capital, in order to achieve
higher incentive compensation. Investments witthérigyield potential are generally riskier or mopeaulative. This could result in increased
risk to the value of our investment portfolio.

Core Earnings is a non-generally acceptedunting principle measure and is defined as gdlyeaccepted accounting principles
("GAAP") net income (loss) excluding non-cash eggibmpensation expense, the incentive fee, depi@tiand amortization of real estate (to
the extent that we own properties), any unrealgaids, losses or other non-cash items recordedtimoome for the period, regardless of
whether such items are included in other compraheriscome or loss, or in net income. The amoutitlve adjusted to exclude one-time
events pursuant to changes in GAAP and certairr othve-cash charges after discussions between onaf#as and our independent directors
and after approval by a majority of our independ#rectors.
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Our conflicts of interest policy may not adequatedgdress all of the conflicts of interest that mayise with respect to our investment
activities and also may limit the allocation of iegtments to us.

In order to avoid any actual or perceivedfticts of interest with our Manager, Starwood @algGroup or any of the Starwood parties, we
have adopted a conflicts of interest policy to #ieadly address some of the conflicts relatingptar investment opportunities. Although under
this policy the approval of a majority of our indgylent directors is required to approve (i) anychase of our assets by any of the Starwood
parties and (ii) any purchase by us of any asdetayof the Starwood parties, there is no asserdmat this policy will be adequate to address
all of the conflicts that may arise or will addressgh conflicts in a manner that results in thecation of a particular investment opportunity to
us or is otherwise favorable to us. In additior, 8tarwood Private Real Estate Funds currently aalditional competing vehicles may in the
future, participate in some of our investments sjidg at a more senior level in the capital stroetof the underlying borrower and related real
estate than our investment. Our interests in soebstments may also conflict with the interestthese funds in the event of a default or
restructuring of the investment. Participating istveents will not be the result of arm's length nigions and will involve potential conflicts
between our interests and those of the other jjzating funds in obtaining favorable terms. Since executives are also executives of
Starwood Capital Group, the same personnel mayrdete the price and terms for the investments fithtus and these funds and there can be
no assurance that any procedural protections, asicitaining market prices or other reliable indicsiof fair value, will prevent the
consideration we pay for these investments froneeding their fair value or ensure that we recedves for a particular investment
opportunity that are as favorable as those avalfibm an independent third party.

Our board of directors has approved very broad istraent guidelines for our Manager and does not appe each investment and financing
decision made by our Manager unless required by aurestment guidelines.

Our Manager is authorized to follow verpd investment guidelines. Our board of directatsperiodically review our investment
guidelines and our investment portfolio but willthand will not be required to, review all of ouoposed investments, except if the investment
requires us to commit either at least $150 millbbicapital or 25% of our equity in any individuaset. In addition, in conducting periodic
reviews, our board of directors may rely primagdly information provided to them by our Manager.tRermore, our Manager may use
complex strategies, and transactions entered intmub Manager may be costly, difficult or impossilbd unwind by the time they are reviewed
by our board of directors. Our Manager has grdatitie within the broad parameters of our investngeidelines in determining the types and
amounts of target assets it decides are attraictissstments for us, which could result in investtmeturns that are substantially below
expectations or that result in losses, which wandderially and adversely affect our business oeratand results. Further, decisions made
and investments and financing arrangements entetethy our Manager may not fully reflect the biggérests of our stockholders.

Risks Related to Our Company

Our board of directors may change any of our invesnt strategy or guidelines, financing strategy leverage policies without stockholder
consent.

Our board of directors may change any ofiovestment strategy or guidelines, financingtstyg or leverage policies with respect to
investments, acquisitions, growth, operations, lel@ness, capitalization and distributions at @myg without the consent of our stockholders,
which could result in an investment portfolio witdifferent risk profile. A change in our investrhetrategy may increase our exposure to
interest rate risk, default risk and real estateketeluctuations. These changes could adverségcabur financial condition, results of
operations, the market price of our common stoekaur ability to make distributions to our stockdels.
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We are highly dependent on information systems aydtems failures could significantly disrupt our bimess, which may, in turn, negative
affect the market price of our common stock and aability to pay dividends.

Our business is highly dependent on comgaiitins and information systems of Starwood Ca@talup. Any failure or interruption of
Starwood Capital Group's systems could cause delagther problems in our securities trading atiggi which could have a material adverse
effect on our operating results and negativelydffiee market price of our common stock and oulitgltd pay dividends to our stockholders.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or waiay affect the real estate industry and our busssefinancial condition and results of
operations.

The terrorist attacks on September 11, 208ipted the U.S. financial markets, including thal estate capital markets, and negatively
impacted the U.S. economy in general. Any futureotést attacks, the anticipation of any such atsathe consequences of any military or
other response by the U.S. and its allies, and @meed conflicts could cause consumer confidendespending to decrease or result in
increased volatility in the U.S. and worldwide firecégal markets and economy. The economic impadiese events could also adversely affect
the credit quality of some of our loans and invesita and the properties underlying our interests.

We may suffer losses as a result of theevimpact of any future attacks and these lossgsadversely impact our performance and
may cause the market value of our common stocletdirte or be more volatile. A prolonged economawalown, a recession or declining real
estate values could impair the performance of muestments and harm our financial condition andlte®f operations, increase our funding
costs, limit our access to the capital marketesult in a decision by lenders not to extend criedits. We cannot predict the severity of the
effect that potential future terrorist attacks wbbbve on us. Losses resulting from these typese@fits may not be fully insurable.

In addition, the events of September 1i#ated significant uncertainty regarding the apiit real estate owners of high profile assets to
obtain insurance coverage protecting against fetrattacks at commercially reasonable rates, allatVith the enactment of the Terrorism
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the "TRIA"), and thédsequent enactment of the Terrorism Risk Insur&é@mogram Reauthorization Act of 2007,
which extended the TRIA through the end of 2014duiers must make terrorism insurance available nuhaé property and casualty insurance
policies, but this legislation does not regulai phicing of such insurance. The absence of affdedasurance coverage may adversely affect
the general real estate lending market, lendingmel and the market's overall liquidity and may cedthe number of suitable investment
opportunities available to us and the pace at whielare able to make investments. If the propeuigkerlying our interests are unable to
obtain affordable insurance coverage, the valumiointerests could decline, and in the event dfiminsured loss, we could lose all or a por
of our investment.

Risks Related to Sources of Financing
Our access to sources of financing may be limitaetighus our ability to maximize our returns may laelversely affected.

Our financing sources currently include oredit agreement and our master repurchase agnegméich are described in Liquidity and
Capital Resources and may include additional bamgsvin the form of bank credit facilities (inclundj term loans and revolving facilities),
repurchase agreements, warehouse facilities, stedfinancing arrangements, public and privatdtggund debt issuances and derivative
instruments, in addition to transaction or asset#ie funding arrangements.
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Our access to additional sources of finagevill depend upon a number of factors, over whighhave little or no control, including:

. general market conditions;

. the market's view of the quality of our ass

. the market's perception of our growth poten

. our current and potential future earnings and cisthibutions; and
. the market price of the shares of our common st

The current dislocation and weakness ircdpital and credit markets could adversely aféeet or more private lenders and could cause
one or more of our private lenders to be unwillargunable to provide us with financing or to in@edhe costs of that financing. In addition, if
regulatory capital requirements imposed on ourgteilenders change, they may be required to loniticrease the cost of, financing they
provide to us. In general, this could potentiafigriease our financing costs and reduce our liquaitrequire us to sell assets at an inopportune
time or price.

To the extent structured financing arrangets are unavailable, we may have to rely moreilyeanr additional equity issuances, which
may be dilutive to our stockholders, or on lesgcidht forms of debt financing that require a largertion of our cash flow from operations,
thereby reducing funds available for our operatidutire business opportunities, cash distributiimnsur stockholders and other purposes. We
cannot assure you that we will have access to squlty or debt capital on favorable terms (inclyudiwithout limitation, cost and term) at the
desired times, or at all, which may cause us ttadwur asset acquisition activities and/or digpofassets, which could negatively affect our
results of operations.

We may incur significant debt, which will subjecsuo increased risk of loss and may reduce cashilabéde for distributions to our
stockholders

Our financing facilities currently includeir credit agreement and our master repurchaseragrés, which are described in Liquidity and
Capital Resources. Subject to market conditionsaaadlability, we may incur additional debt throulghink credit facilities (including term
loans and revolving facilities), repurchase agra@sjevarehouse facilities and structured finaneirmrgngements, public and private debt
issuances and derivative instruments, in additamansaction or asset specific funding arrangeséiite percentage of leverage we employ
will vary depending on our available capital, obility to obtain and access financing arrangemeuitis lenders and the lenders' and rating
agencies' estimate of the stability of our investhportfolio's cash flow. Our governing documentstain no limitation on the amount of debt
we may incur. We may significantly increase the anmof leverage we utilize at any time without apg@l of our board of directors. However,
under our current repurchase agreements and badk facility, our total leverage may not exceedo/6f total assets (as defined), as adjusted
to remove the impact of bona-fide loan sales thabacounted for as financings and the consolidatfovariable interest entities pursuant to
GAAP. In addition, we may leverage individual assatsubstantially higher levels. Incurring subs&hilebt could subject us to many risks
that, if realized, would materially and adversdfiget us, including the risk that:

. our cash flow from operations may be insufficientrtake required payments of principal of and irdeom the debt or we may
fail to comply with all of the other covenants cainied in the debt, which is likely to result in &gceleration of such debt (and
any other debt containing a cross-default or cexx®leration provision) that we may be unable paydrom internal funds or-
refinance on favorable terms, or at all, (ii) oability to borrow unused amounts under our finag@rrangements, even if we
are current in payments on borrowings under thasagements and/or (iii) the loss of some or abbwf assets to foreclosure or
sale;
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. our debt may increase our vulnerability to adversgnomic and industry conditions with no assurahatinvestment yields w
increase with higher financing costs;

. we may be required to dedicate a substantial podf@ur cash flow from operations to payments ondebt, thereby reducing
funds available for operations, future businessodpipities, stockholder distributions or other pases; and

. we are not able to refinance debt that matures fwithe investment it was used to finance on fabler terms, or at al
Interest rate fluctuations could significantly deease our results of operations and cash flows ahe market value of our investment
Our primary interest rate exposures refathe following:

. changes in interest rates may affect the yieldwriroivestments and the financing cost of our dabtyvell as the performance of
our interest rate swaps that we utilize for hedgingposes, which could result in operating lossesi$ should interest expense
exceed interest income;

. declines in interest rates may reduce the yielehasting floating rate assets and/or the yield mspective investments;
. changes in the level of interest rates may affactatbility to source investments;
. increases in the level of interest rates may neglgtimpact the value of our investments and ouiitglto realize gains from th

disposition of assets;

. increases in the level of interest rates may irsgre¢he credit risk of our assets by negatively ictipg the ability of our
borrower's to pay debt service on our floating tasm assets, refinance our assets upon matunitycan negatively impact the
value of the real estate collateral supportingiouwestments through the impact increases in intes¢ss can have on property
valuation capitalization rates; and

. changes in interest rates and/or the differengavben U.S. Dollar interest rates and those o-dollar currencies in which w
invest can adversely affect the value of our noltladassets and/or associated currency hedgingdcdions.

Any warehouse facilities that we obtain may limitioability to acquire assets, and we may incur lessf the collateral is liquidatec

We may utilize, if available, warehouseiliies pursuant to which we would accumulate mage loans in anticipation of a securitization
financing, which assets would be pledged as colihfer such facilities until the securitizatiomtrsaction is consummated. In order to borrow
funds to acquire assets under any future warehfagfigies, we expect that our lenders there uvdenld have the right to review the potential
assets for which we are seeking financing. We neayrable to obtain the consent of a lender to ae@ssets that we believe would be
beneficial to us and we may be unable to obtagrmdite financing for such assets. In addition,ssugnce can be given that a securitization
structure would be consummated with respect t@a#isets being warehoused. If the securitizatiooti€onsummated, the lender could liquic
the warehoused collateral and we would then hayayoany amount by which the original purchaseepotthe collateral assets exceeds its
sale price, subject to negotiated caps, if anygumexposure. In addition, regardless of whethersticuritization is consummated, if any of the
warehoused collateral is sold before the consunamatie would have to bear any resulting loss orstte. Currently, we have no warehouse
facilities in place, and no assurance can be divahwe will be able to obtain one or more wareledasilities on favorable terms, or at all.
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The utilization of any of our repurchase facilitieis subject to the pre-approval of the lender.

We utilize repurchase agreements to findhegurchase of certain investments. In ordeotods funds under a repurchase agreement,
the lender has the right to review the potentiaktsfor which we are seeking financing and appsovd asset in its sole discretion.
Accordingly, we may be unable to obtain the conséiat lender to finance an investment and altersateces of financing for such asset may
not exist.

We are subject to margin calls from our lenders wrcbur financing facilities.

Subject to certain conditions, our lendetain the sole discretion over the market valumafis and and/or securities that serve as
collateral for the borrowings under our financimgifities for purposes of determining whether we @quired to pay margin to such lenders.

A failure to comply with restrictive covenants iniorepurchase agreements and financing facilitieowd have a material adverse affect
us, and any future financings may require us to ptide additional collateral or pay down debt.

We are subject to various restrictive ca@regn contained in our existing financing arrangetmand may become subject to additional
covenants in connection with future financings. Onedit agreement contains covenants that restuicability to incur additional debt or liens,
make certain investments or acquisitions, mergesaidate or transfer or dispose of substantidllgssets or otherwise dispose of property
assets, pay dividends and make certain otheretstrpayments, change the nature of our businedster into transactions with affiliates.
The credit agreement, as well as our master repgechgreements, each requires us to maintain cmplivith various financial covenants,
including a minimum tangible net worth and cashiiliity, and specified financial ratios, such asitafebt to total assets and EBITDA to fixed
charges. These covenants may limit our flexibii@yursue certain investments or incur additioreddtdIf we fail to meet or satisfy any of th
covenants, we would be in default under these aggats, and our lenders could elect to declare and#g amounts due and payable,
terminate their commitments, require the postingdditional collateral and enforce their interegiainst existing collateral. We may also be
subject to cross-default and acceleration rights asith respect to collateralized debt, the postihgdditional collateral and foreclosure rights
upon default. Further, this could also make itidifft for us to satisfy the distribution requiremi®necessary to maintain our status as a REIT
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

These types of financing arrangementsialaalve the risk that the market value of the loptesiged or sold by us to the repurchase
agreement counterparty or provider of the bankitfadility may decline in value, in which case tle@der may require us to provide additic
collateral or to repay all or a portion of the fgratlvanced. We may not have the funds availablep@y our debt at that time, which would
likely result in defaults unless we are able teeahe funds from alternative sources, which we maybe able to achieve on favorable terms or
at all. Posting additional collateral would redwee liquidity and limit our ability to leverage oassets. If we cannot meet these requirements,
the lender could accelerate our indebtedness,drerthe interest rate on advanced funds and teteronia ability to borrow funds from them,
which could materially and adversely affect ouafigial condition and ability to implement our biesia plan. In addition, in the event that the
lender files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, loans may become subject to bankruptcy or irsaly proceedings, thus depriving us, at
least temporarily, of the benefit of these ass®tish an event could restrict our access to barditdeeilities and increase our cost of capital.
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If one or more of our Manager's executive officeese no longer employed by our Manager, financialstitutions providing any financing
arrangements we may have may not provide futureaficing to us, which could materially and adverselffect us.

If financial institutions with whom we setkfinance our investments require that one orenudrour Manager's executives continue to
serve in such capacity and if one or more of ounddger's executives are no longer employed by ouralger, it may constitute an event of
default and the financial institution providing thgangement may have acceleration rights withe@sjo outstanding borrowings and
termination rights with respect to our ability todnce our future investments with that institutitirwe are unable to obtain financing for our
accelerated borrowings and for our future investsiender such circumstances, we could be mateaalliyadversely affected.

We directly or indirectly utilize non-recourse seftizations, and such structures expose us to riskat could result in losses to us.

We utilize non-recourse securitization®of investments in mortgage loans to the extensistant with the maintenance of our REIT
gualification and exemption from the 1940 Act, nder to generate cash for funding new investmemdéoa to leverage existing assets. In most
instances, this involves us transferring our Id@ns special purpose securitization entity in exgjeafor cash. In some sale transactions, we
retain a subordinated interest in the loans sdhe. Securitization of our portfolio investments ntigagnify our exposure to losses on those
portfolio investments because the subordinateddsteve retain in the loans sold would be subotdit@the senior interest in the loans sold,
and we would, therefore, absorb all of the lossesasned with respect to a loan sold before theevsvof the senior interest experience any
losses. Moreover, we cannot be assured that wédevélble to access the securitization market irfidhge, or be able to do so at favorable
rates. The inability to consummate securitizatiohsur portfolio to finance our investments on adeterm basis could require us to seek other
forms of potentially less attractive financing oriquidate assets at an inopportune time or pridech could adversely affect our performance
and our ability to grow our business.

Risks Related to Hedging
We enter into hedging transactions that could expass to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, part of our investment strategy involvateeng into hedging transactions that require
us to fund cash payments in certain circumstarsigsh(as the early termination of the hedging imséwnt caused by an event of default or o
early termination event, or the decision by a cerpdrty to request margin securities it is contrally owed under the terms of the hedging
instrument). The amount due would be equal to tirealized loss of the open swap positions withréspective counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedasll be reflected in our results of operaticasg our ability to fund these obligations will
depend on the liquidity of our assets and accesapdal at the time, and the need to fund the$igatibns could adversely impact our financial
condition.
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Hedging may adversely affect our earnings, whichutth reduce our cash available for distribution taio stockholders

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, we pursue various hedging strategiese& sereduce our exposure to adverse changes
in interest rates. Our hedging activity variesénge based on the level and volatility of interas¢s, exchange rates, the type of assets held ar
other changing market conditions. Hedging mayttajprotect or could adversely affect us becausenanother things:

. interest rate, currency and/or credit hedging aaetpensive and may result in us receiving legseast income;

. available interest rate hedges may not correspoedtly with the interest rate risk for which prot®n is sought;

. due to a credit loss, prepayment or asset salelutation of the hedge may not match the duratfdherelated asset or liabilit
. the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hregitransactions (other than hedging transactibasdatisfy certain

requirements of the Code or that are done througikable REIT subsidiary (“TRS")) to offset losse#mited by U.S. federal
tax provisions governing REITS;

. the credit quality of the hedging counterparty agvinoney on the hedge may be downgraded to sucktante¢hat it impairs our
ability to sell or assign our side of the hedgiransaction; and

. the hedging counterparty owing money in the hedgriagsaction may default on its obligation to f
In addition, we may fail to recalculatead@ist and execute hedges in an efficient manner.

Any hedging activity in which we engage nmagterially and adversely affect our results ofrafiens and cash flows. Therefore, while
may enter into such transactions seeking to redsksg, unanticipated changes in interest ratesglittspreads or currencies may result in poorer
overall investment performance than if we had mgiagied in any such hedging transactions. In additiee degree of correlation between p
movements of the instruments used in a hedginteglyand price movements in the portfolio position§iabilities being hedged may vary
materially. Moreover, for a variety of reasons, way not seek to establish a perfect correlatiowdeh such hedging instruments and the
portfolio positions or liabilities being hedged. Yauch imperfect correlation may prevent us frommiening the intended hedge and expose us
to risk of loss.

Hedging instruments often are not traded on reguddtexchanges, guaranteed by an exchange or itsrahgghouse, or regulated by any U.
or foreign governmental authorities and involve Ks and costs that could result in material losses.

The cost of using hedging instruments iases as the period covered by the instrument iseseand during periods of rising and volatile
interest rates. In addition, hedging instrument®ive risk because they often are not traded ounlated exchanges, guaranteed by an excl
or its clearing house, or regulated by any U.Somgign governmental authorities. Consequentlyretege no requirements with respect to
record keeping, financial responsibility or segtegaof customer funds and positions. Furthermtire enforceability of agreements underly
hedging transactions may depend on complianceapifticable statutory and commodity and other regeyarequirements and, depending on
the identity of the counterparty, applicable insfonal requirements. The business
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failure of a hedging counterparty with whom we emt¢o a hedging transaction will most likely retsial its default. Default by a party with
whom we enter into a hedging transaction may resule loss of unrealized profits and force usdwer our commitments, if any, at the then
current market price. Although generally we wilekdo reserve the right to terminate our hedgingjtfpms, it may not always be possible to
dispose of or close out a hedging position wititbetconsent of the hedging counterparty and we moéype able to enter into an offsetting
contract in order to cover our risk. We cannot esgou that a liquid secondary market will exist iedging instruments purchased or sold,
we may be required to maintain a position untilreige or expiration, which could result in signéit losses.

We may fail to qualify for, or choose not to eletiedge accounting treatment.

We record derivative and hedging transastio accordance with GAAP. Under these standardsnay fail to qualify for, or choose not
to elect, hedge accounting treatment for a numbegasons, including if we use instruments thahdbmeet the definition of a derivative (st
as short sales), we fail to satisfy hedge docuntientand hedge effectiveness assessment requirsmeatir instruments are not highly
effective. If we fail to qualify for hedge accoumditreatment, our operating results may be volagleause changes in the fair value of the
derivatives that we enter into may not be offseailphange in the fair value of the related hedggusaction or item.

We enter into derivative contracts that could expass to contingent liabilities in the future.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaaREIT, we enter into derivative contracts thatldoequire us to fund cash payments in the
future under certain circumstances.g., the early termination of the derivative agreenmetsed by an event of default or other early
termination event, or the decision by a counteyprrequest margin securities it is contractuailyed under the terms of the derivative
contract). The amount due would be equal to thealized loss of the open swap positions with tlspeetive counterparty and could also
include other fees and charges. These economiedasay materially and adversely affect our resaflsperations and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Investments
We may not be able to identify assets that meetiouestment objective.

We cannot assure you that we will be ableléntify additional assets that meet our invesinodjective, that we will be successful in
consummating any investment opportunities we idgoti that one or more investments we may makeyiglld attractive riskadjusted return:
Our inability to do any of the foregoing likely widumaterially and adversely affect our results pé@tions and cash flows and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.

Until appropriate investments can be idesdj our Manager may invest our cash in interestring short-term investments, including
Agency RMBS, AAA-rated CMBS and money market acdswand/or funds, which are consistent with ourrititen to qualify as a REIT.
These investments are expected to provide a loatereturn than we will seek to achieve from investits in our target assets. Our Manager
intends to conduct due diligence with respect tthéavestment and suitable investment opportunitiag not be immediately available. Even
if opportunities are available, there can be naii@se that our Manager's due diligence procesilesngover all relevant facts or that any
investment will be successful.
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may advetyg affect our business.

The lack of liquidity of our investmentsrgal estate loans and investments other thanic@taur investments in MBS may make it
difficult for us to sell such investments if theeleor desire arises. Many of the securities welmage are not registered under the relevant
securities laws, resulting in a prohibition agaithstir transfer, sale, pledge or their disposiganept in a transaction that is exempt from the
registration requirements of, or otherwise in adeoce with, those laws. In addition, certain inrestts such as B-Notes, mezzanine loans and
bridge and other loans are also particularly iliiguvestments due to their short life, their paigrunsuitability for securitization and the
greater difficulty of recovery in the event of artmwer's default. As a result, many of our curierestments are, and our future investments
will be illiquid and if we are required to liquidagll or a portion of our portfolio quickly, we magalize significantly less than the value at
which we have previously recorded our investmdristher, we may face other restrictions on ourigitib liquidate an investment in a
business entity to the extent that we or our Manhgs or could be attributed with material, nonduinformation regarding such business
entity. As a result, our ability to vary our potittoin response to changes in economic and otheditons may be relatively limited, which
could adversely affect our results of operatiord famancial condition.

Our investments may be concentrated and are subjectsk of default.

While we seek to diversify our portfolio iofzfestments, we are not required to observe dpetifersification criteria, except as may be
forth in the investment guidelines adopted by aard of directors. Therefore, our investments intatget assets may at times be concent
in certain property types that are subject to higtsi of foreclosure, or secured by propertiesosmtrated in a limited number of geographic
locations. To the extent that our portfolio is centrated in any one region or type of asset, domstrelating generally to such region or type
of asset may result in defaults on a number ofroeestments within a short time period, which megluce our net income and the value of our
common stock and accordingly reduce our abilitpag dividends to our stockholders.

Difficult conditions in the mortgage, commercial ahresidential real estate markets may cause usdpegience market losses related to ¢
holdings, and we do not expect these conditiongmprove in the near future.

Our results of operations are materialfe@ed by conditions in the real estate markesfitrencial markets and the economy generally.
Continuing concerns about the declining real estateket, as well as inflation, energy costs, geitipal issues and the availability and cost of
credit, have contributed to increased volatilitgl @iminished expectations for the economy and mareing forward. The mortgage market
has been severely affected by changes in the lgnaimscape and there is no assurance that thed@ions have stabilized or that they will
not worsen. The disruption in the mortgage markstdn impact on new demand for homes, which withm@ss the home ownership rates and
weigh heavily on future home price performance.r€he a strong correlation between home price digates and mortgage loan
delinquencies. The further deterioration of thd estate market may cause us to experience logk#ed to our assets and to sell assets at a
loss. Declines in the market values of our invesithienay adversely affect our results of operatemd credit availability, which may reduce
earnings and, in turn, cash available for distidruto our stockholders.
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We operate in a highly competitive market for inteent opportunities and competition may limit oubaity to acquire desirable investmer
in our target assets and could also affect the jmig of these securities.

We operate in a highly competitive marlatihvestment opportunities. Our profitability deps, in large part, on our ability to acquire
our target assets at attractive prices. In acqyiour target assets, we compete with a varietpgiftutional investors, including other REITS,
commercial and investment banks, specialty finarmepanies, public and private funds (including ofaeds managed by Starwood Capital
Group), commercial finance and insurance compaameésother financial institutions. Many of our cortifmes are substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical, marlgtind other resources than we do. Several othefRttzve recently raised significant
amounts of capital, and may have investment objestihat overlap with ours, which may create addél competition for investment
opportunities. Some competitors may have a lowst eébfunds and access to funding sources thatmoaipe available to us, such as funding
from the U.S. Government, if we are not eligibleptaticipate in programs established by the U.SigBument. Many of our competitors are
subject to the operating constraints associatel REIT tax compliance or maintenance of an exemgtiom the 1940 Act. In addition, some
of our competitors may have higher risk tolerarmedifferent risk assessments, which could alloentito consider a wider variety of
investments and establish more relationships teafurthermore, competition for investments in tamget assets may lead to the price of such
assets increasing, which may further limit ouriapto generate desired returns. We cannot assurghat the competitive pressures we face
will not have a material adverse effect on our bess, financial condition and results of operatiétiso, as a result of this competition,
desirable investments in our target assets mairitedl in the future and we may not be able to itwe to take advantage of attractive
investment opportunities from time to time, as \&@a provide no assurance that we will be able totifleand make investments that are
consistent with our investment objectives.

The commercial mortgage loans we acquire and thertgage loans underlying our CMBS investments arebgect to the ability of the
commercial property owner to generate net incomerfr operating the property as well as the risks efidquency and foreclosure.

Commercial mortgage loans are secured Hifemily or commercial property and are subjectigks of delinquency and foreclosure,
risks of loss that may be greater than similarsiagsociated with loans made on the security glesifamily residential property. The ability of
a borrower to repay a loan secured by an incomeymiag property typically is dependent primarilyomgthe successful operation of such
property rather than upon the existence of indepeniticome or assets of the borrower. If the nerajing income of the property is reduced,
the borrower's ability to repay the loan may beaimgd. Net operating income of an income-produgraperty can be adversely affected by,
among other things,

. tenant mix;

. success of tenant businesses;

. property management decisio

. property location, condition and design;

. competition from comparable types of properties;

. changes in laws that increase operating expendesibrents that may be charge

. changes in national, regional or local economiditions and/or specific industry segments, inclgdine credit ani

securitization markets;
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. declines in regional or local real estate values;

. declines in regional or local rental or occuparetes;

. increases in interest rates, real estate tax asg®ther operating expenses;

. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhweitvironmental conditions;

. the potential for uninsured or underinsured propkrgses

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, dietufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and envinental legislation and tt

related costs of compliance; and

. acts of God, terrorist attacks, social unrest awnidl disturbances.

In the event of any default under a morgglgn held directly by us, we will bear a riskags of principal to the extent of any deficiency
between the value of the collateral and the pradcmd accrued interest of the mortgage loan, wbizhd have a material adverse effect on our
cash flow from operations and limit amounts avdédbr distribution to our stockholders. In the evef the bankruptcy of a mortgage loan
borrower, the mortgage loan to such borrower vélideemed to be secured only to the extent of theed the underlying collateral at the tii
of bankruptcy (as determined by the bankruptcy }pand the lien securing the mortgage loan wilkbbject to the avoidance powers of the
bankruptcy trustee or debtor-in-possession to xene the lien is unenforceable under state laweélosure of a mortgage loan can be an
expensive and lengthy process, which could hawdstantial negative effect on our anticipated retwm the foreclosed mortgage loan.

Our investments in CMBS are generally subject tades.

Our investments in CMBS are subject todgs#n general, losses on a mortgaged propertyiagca mortgage loan included in a
securitization will be borne first by the equityltier of the property, then by a cash reserve furldtter of credit, if any, then by the holder ¢
mezzanine loan or B-Note, if any, then by the tfioss" subordinated security holder (generallg, 'tB-Piece" buyer) and then by the holder of
a higher-rated security. In the event of defautt tire exhaustion of any equity support, reserve fletter of credit, mezzanine loans or B-
Notes, and any classes of securities junior toetlisvhich we invest, we will not be able to recoa of our investment in the securities’
purchase. In addition, if the underlying mortgagetiplio has been overvalued by the originatorif the values subsequently decline and, as a
result, less collateral is available to satisfeiest and principal payments due on the related Mi$e would be an increased risk of loss. The
prices of lower credit quality securities are gaflgress sensitive to interest rate changes tharerhighly rated investments, but more sens
to adverse economic downturns or individual issierelopments.

If our Manager overestimates the yields or incortBcprices the risks of our investments, we may esignce losses

Our Manager values our potential investrméatsed on yields and risks, taking into accouithased future losses on the mortgage loans
and the underlying collateral included in the s&@ation's pools, and the estimated impact of¢lesses on expected future cash flows and
returns. Our Manager's loss estimates may not powerate, as actual results may vary from estenétethe event that our Manager
underestimates the asset level losses relativeetprice we pay for a particular investment, we mgyerience losses with respect to such
investment.
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Our investments in corporate bank debt and debtwséies of commercial real estate operating or finee companies are subject to the
specific risks relating to the particular companyd to the general risks of investing in real est-related loans and securities, which may
result in significant losses.

We invest in corporate bank debt and magshin debt securities of commercial real estatyating or finance companies. These
investments involve special risks relating to thaetipular company, including its financial conditidiquidity, results of operations, business
and prospects. In particular, the debt securitieoften non-collateralized and may also be subatdd to its other obligations. We also invest
in debt securities of companies that are not rateate rated noimvestment grade by one or more rating agenciegstments that are not ra
or are rated non-investment grade have a highleofidefault than investment grade rated assetsrerdfore may result in losses to us. We
have not adopted any limit on such investments.

These investments also subject us to ks inherent with real estate- related investmémttyding:

. risks of delinquency and foreclosure, and riskbs$ in the event therec

. the dependence upon the successful operation @fetrincome from, real property;
. risks generally incident to interests in real pryeand

. risks specific to the type and use of a particptaperty.

These risks may adversely affect the vafusur investments in commercial real estate opegatnd finance companies and the ability of
the issuers thereof to make principal and intgzagtnents in a timely manner, or at all, and coakult in significant losses.

Investments in no-conforming and non-investment grade rated loanss#gcurities involve increased risk of loss.

Many of our investments do not conform dowentional loan standards applied by traditioeatlers and either are not rated or rated as
non-investment grade by the rating agencies. Theimeestment grade ratings for these assets typicdult from the overall leverage of the
loans, the lack of a strong operating history Far properties underlying the loans, the borroweeslit history, the properties' underlying cash
flow or other factors. As a result, these investtadrave a higher risk of default and loss thanstwent grade rated assets. Any loss we incur
may be significant and may reduce distributionsuostockholders and adversely affect the markletevaf our common stock. There are no
limits on the percentage of unrated or non-investrgeade rated assets we may hold in our investpentfolio.

Any credit ratings assigned to our investments argject to ongoing evaluations and revisions and eganot assure you that those ratin
will not be downgraded.

Some of our investments are rated by Maobhywestors Service, Fitch Ratings, S&P, DBRS, tndRealpoint LLC. Any credit ratings on
our investments are subject to ongoing evaluatioorbdit rating agencies, and we cannot assureahgttiany such ratings will not be changed
or withdrawn by a rating agency in the futurerifjts judgment, circumstances warrant. If ratingrages assign a lower-thaxpected rating ¢
reduce or withdraw, or indicate that they may redocwithdraw, their ratings of our investmentshe future, the value of these investments
could significantly decline, which would adversalfect the value of our investment portfolio andilcoresult in losses upon disposition or the
failure of borrowers to satisfy their debt servid#igations to us.
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The B-Notes that we acquire may be subject to add#l risks related to the privately negotiatedstture and terms of the transaction,
which may result in losses to us.

We may invest in B-Notes. B-Notes are magtyloans typically (1) secured by a first mortgage single large commercial property or
group of related properties and (2) subordinatezhté\-Note secured by the same first mortgage erséime collateral. As a result, if a
borrower defaults, there may not be sufficient &ingimaining for B-Note holders after payment toAhdote holders. However, because each
transaction is privately negotiated, B-Notes cany wa their structural characteristics and riskst Example, the rights of holders of B-Notes to
control the process following a borrower defaulymary from transaction to transaction. FurtheiN8tes typically are secured by a single
property and so reflect the risks associated withificant concentration. Significant losses rethte our B-Notes would result in operating
losses for us and may limit our ability to maketrilimitions to our stockholders.

Our mezzanine loan assets involve greater risk$éosk than senior loans secured by income-producprgperties.

We invest in mezzanine loans, which takeftitm of subordinated loans secured by secondgages on the underlying property or loans
secured by a pledge of the ownership interest#ludrethe entity owning the property or a pledgehaf ownership interests of the entity that
owns the interest in the entity owning the propeftyese types of assets involve a higher degreslothan long-term senior mortgage lending
secured by income-producing real property, bectheséoan may become unsecured as a result of e by the senior lender. In the event
of a bankruptcy of the entity providing the pledgéts ownership interests as security, we mayhaoate full recourse to the assets of such
entity, or the assets of the entity may not beicefit to satisfy our mezzanine loan. If a borrowefaults on our mezzanine loan or debt senior
to our loan, or in the event of a borrower bankeypbur mezzanine loan will be satisfied only aftex senior debt. As a result, we may not
recover some or all of our initial expenditure alshdition, mezzanine loans may have higher loanataerratios than conventional mortgage
loans, resulting in less equity in the property arateasing the risk of loss of principal. Signéfitt losses related to our mezzanine loans would
result in operating losses for us and may limit alifity to make distributions to our stockholders.

Bridge loans involve a greater risk of loss tharatfitional investmer-grade mortgage loans with fully insured borrowers.

We may acquire bridge loans secured by Ifes mortgages on a property to borrowers whotgpeally seeking short-term capital to be
used in an acquisition, construction or rehabibtabf a property, or other short-term liquidityeas. The typical borrower under a bridge loan
has usually identified an undervalued asset theblean under-managed and/or is located in a recgverarket. If the market in which the
asset is located fails to recover according tdotreower's projections, or if the borrower failsingprove the quality of the asset's management
and/or the value of the asset, the borrower mayeusive a sufficient return on the asset to sattsé bridge loan, and we bear the risk that we
may not recover some or all of our initial expendit

In addition, borrowers usually use the pexts of a conventional mortgage to repay a bridge. IBridge loans therefore are subject to
risks of a borrower's inability to obtain permangénancing to repay the bridge loan. Bridge loaresaso subject to risks of borrower defaults,
bankruptcies, fraud, losses and special hazarddabsit are not covered by standard hazard insewrémthe event of any default under bridge
loans held by us, we bear the risk of loss of ppialcand non-payment of interest and fees to thendof any deficiency between the value of
the mortgage collateral and the principal amouxt@mpaid interest of the bridge loan. To the extemssuffer such losses with respect to our
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bridge loans, the value of our company and theepsfoour shares of common stock may be adverstdgtafl.
We purchase securities backed by subprime or alédive documentation residential mortgage loans, aiare subject to increased risks.

We own non-Agency RMBS backed by collate@dls of mortgage loans that have been originaséy underwriting standards that are
less restrictive than those used in underwritingfip mortgage loans." These lower standards inaiioggage loans made to borrowers ha
imperfect or impaired credit histories, mortgagans where the amount of the loan at originatid0& or more of the value of the mortgage
property, mortgage loans made to borrowers withdoedit scores, mortgage loans made to borrowecshakre other debt that represents a
large portion of their income and mortgage loandena borrowers whose income is not required tdibelosed or verified. Due to economic
conditions, including increased interest rateslamgr home prices, as well as aggressive lendiagtjmes, subprime mortgage loans have in
recent periods experienced increased rates ofqiedimcy, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss, and #neyikely to continue to experience
delinquency, foreclosure, bankruptcy and loss rdtasare higher, and that may be substantiallizdrigthan those experienced by mortgage
loans underwritten in a more traditional mannemg;tbecause of the higher delinquency rates asédasssociated with subprime mortgage
loans and alternative documentation ("Alt A") magg loans, the performance of non-Agency RMBS ldhblyesubprime mortgage loans and
Alt A mortgage loans that we may acquire could deespondingly adversely affected, which could aslely impact our results of operations,
financial condition and business.

The residential mortgage loans that we acquire, athdt underlie the RMBS we acquire, are subjectrisks particular to investments
secured by mortgage loans on residential real estatoperty.

Residential mortgage loans are securednigyesfamily residential property and are subjectisks of delinquency and foreclosure and
risks of loss. The ability of a borrower to repalpan secured by a residential property typicalgdépendent upon the income or assets of the
borrower. A number of factors may impair borrowatslities to repay their loans, including:

. acts of God, which may result in uninsured losses;

. acts of war or terrorism, including the consequsrafeevents

. adverse changes in national and local economigrearlet conditions

. changes in governmental laws and regulations, detufiscal policies, zoning ordinances and envinental legislation and the

related costs of compliance;
. costs of remediation and liabilities associatedhwitvironmental conditions; ai

. the potential for uninsured or under-insured proplersses.

We may acquire non-Agency RMBS, which aaeked by residential real estate property butpimrast to Agency RMBS, their principal
and interest are not guaranteed by federally crettentities such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Macimaitige case of Ginnie Mae, the U.S.
Government. Our investments in RMBS are subjethieaisks of defaults, foreclosure timeline extensifraud, home price depreciation and
unfavorable modification of loan principal amouinterest rate and amortization of principal, accampng the underlying residential mortg:
loans. In the event of defaults on the residentiattgage loans that underlie our investments innkgeRMBS and the
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exhaustion of any underlying or any additional dredpport, we may not realize our anticipated nretan our investments and we may incur a
loss on these investments.

Prepayment rates may adversely affect the valuewfinvestment portfolio

The value of our investment portfolio iseated by prepayment rates on our mortgage aseatsany cases, borrowers are not prohibited
from making prepayments on their mortgage loansp&@rment rates are influenced by changes in inteates and a variety of economic,
geographic and other factors beyond our contrelugting, without limitation, housing and financiabrkets and relative interest rates on fixed
rate mortgage loans, and adjustable rate mortgages I("ARMs"), and consequently prepayment ratasatbe predicted.

We generally receive payments from prinkcgayments that are made on our mortgage assebsding residential mortgage loans
underlying the Agency RMBS or the non-Agency RMBS&ttwe acquire. When borrowers prepay their resiglemortgage loans faster than
expected, it results in prepayments that are féiséer expected on the RMBS. Faster than expectgghpments could adversely affect our
profitability and our ability to recoup our costadrtain investments purchased at a premium owevglae, including in the following ways:

. We may purchase RMBS that have a higher interéstinan the market interest rate at the time. bharge for this highe
interest rate, we may pay a premium over the plarev@ acquire our mortgage asset. In accordante®AAP, we may
amortize this premium over the estimated term ofroartgage asset. If our mortgage asset is prapaidhole or in part prior to
its maturity date, however, we may be requiredxmease the premium that was prepaid at the tinlbeoprepayment.

. Prepayment rates generally increase when inteatest fall and decrease when interest rates rid@nmé unlikely that we
would be able to reinvest the proceeds of any gmapat in mortgage assets of similar quality anchge(including yield). If we
are unable to invest in similar mortgage assetsyaudd be adversely affected.

While we seek to minimize prepayment riskhe extent practical, in selecting investmentawust balance prepayment risk against other
risks and the potential returns of each investmdatstrategy can completely insulate us from prepayt risk.

Interest rate mismatches between our Agency RMB8Keal by ARMs and our borrowings used to fund ourrpbhases of these assets i
reduce our net interest income and cause us to suff loss during periods of rising interest rates.

To the extent that we invest in Agency RMEfgked by ARMs, we may finance these investmeittsvorrowings that have interest ra
that adjust more frequently than the interestiradéeces and repricing terms of Agency RMBS backgdBRMs. Accordingly, if short-term
interest rates increase, our borrowing costs mergase faster than the interest rates on Agency Kbitked by ARMs adjust. As a result,
period of rising interest rates, we could expergeadecrease in net income or a net loss. In nassis¢ the interest rate indices and repricing
terms of Agency RMBS backed by ARMs and our borrmsiwill not be identical, thereby potentially dieg an interest rate mismatch
between our investments and our borrowings. Whigehtistorical spread between relevant short-teteraést rate indices has been relatively
stable, there have been periods when the spreagéethese indices was volatile. During periodshainging interest rates, these interest rate
index mismatches could reduce our net income atyme a net loss, and adversely affect our abiitnake distributions and the market price
of our common stock.
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In addition, Agency RMBS backed by ARMs tyically subject to lifetime interest rate caplsigh limit the amount an interest rate can
increase through the maturity of the Agency RMB8wiver, our borrowings under repurchase agreentgpitsally are not subject to similar
restrictions. Accordingly, in a period of rapidhcreasing interest rates, the interest rates pamlo borrowings could increase without
limitation while caps could limit the interest raten these types of Agency RMBS. This problem igmifeed for Agency RMBS backed by
ARMs that are not fully indexed. Further, some AgeRMBS backed by ARMs may be subject to periodigrpent caps that result in a
portion of the interest being deferred and addetieéqrincipal outstanding. As a result, we magenee less cash income on these types of
Agency RMBS than we need to pay interest on oatedl borrowings. These factors could reduce oumtetest income and cause us to suffer
a loss during periods of rising interest rates.

Construction loans involve an increased risk of ¥s

We invest in construction loans. If we failfund our entire commitment on a constructicemlor if a borrower otherwise fails to compl
the construction of a project, there could be aslveonsequences associated with the loan, includilugs of the value of the property secu
the loan, especially if the borrower is unabledise funds to complete it from other sources; adveer claim against us for failure to perform
under the loan documents; increased costs to thieveer that the borrower is unable to pay; a baptawfiling by the borrower; and
abandonment by the borrower of the collateral tierlban.

Risks of cost overruns and noncompletion of rendweatof the properties underlying rehabilitation lae may result in significant losse

The renovation, refurbishment or expansipm borrower under a mortgaged property involNgssrof cost overruns and noncompletion.
Estimates of the costs of improvements to bring@juired property up to standards establishechionmtarket position intended for that
property may prove inaccurate. Other risks mayuidelrehabilitation costs exceeding original estesapossibly making a project
uneconomical, environmental risks and rehabilitatod subsequent leasing of the property not besngpleted on schedule. If such renova
is not completed in a timely manner, or if it costsre than expected, the borrower may experiemprelanged impairment of net operating
income and may not be able to make payments omweestment, which could result in significant losse

Interest rate fluctuations could reduce our abilitpy generate income on our investments and may ealosses

Changes in interest rates affect our rterést income, which is the difference betweeririterest income we earn on our interest-earning
investments and the interest expense we incunanfiing these investments. Changes in the leviat@fest rates also may affect our ability to
originate and acquire assets, the value of outsiase our ability to realize gains from the dispos of assets. Changes in interest rates may
also affect borrower default rates. In a periodigihg interest rates, our interest expense cautease, while the interest we earn on our fixed-
rate debt investments would not change, adversfdgtang our profitability. Our operating resultegend in large part on differences between
the income from our assets, net of credit lossas,cair financing costs. We anticipate that for payiod during which our assets are not match-
funded, the income from such assets will respontemtmwly to interest rate fluctuations than thetaaf our borrowings. Consequently,
changes in interest rates may significantly infeeeour net income. Increases in these rates tedelctease our net income and the market
value of our fixed rate assets. Interest rate fiatibns resulting in our interest expense exceeiditegest income would result in operating
losses for us.
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We may experience a decline in the fair value ofr@ssets.

A decline in the fair value of our assetymequire us to recognize an "other-than-temp@iiampairment against such assets under GAAP
if we were to determine that, with respect to assess in unrealized loss positions, we do not tleeebility and intent to hold such assets to
maturity or for a period of time sufficient to aldor recovery to the amortized cost of such assessich a determination were to be made, we
would recognize unrealized losses through earrangswrite down the amortized cost of such assesstew cost basis, based on the fair value
of such assets on the date they are consideres dthler-than-temporarily impaired. Such impairmerdrges reflect nonash losses at the tir
of recognition; subsequent disposition or saleuchsassets could further affect our future lossegams, as they are based on the difference
between the sale price received and adjusted aradrtiost of such assets at the time of sale.

Some of our portfolio investments are recorded air fvalue and, as a result, there is uncertainty @sthe value of these investmen

Some of our portfolio investments are ia trm of positions or securities that are not plpkraded. The fair value of securities and o
investments that are not publicly traded may natdaglily determinable. We value these investmengstgrly at fair value, as determined in
accordance with GAAP, which include consideratibumobservable inputs. Because such valuationsubjective, the fair value of certain of
our assets may fluctuate over short periods of eimeour determinations of fair value may differtenelly from the values that would have
been used if a ready market for these securitiestesk The value of our common stock could be ablgraffected if our determinations
regarding the fair value of these investments weaikerially higher than the values that we ultimateklize upon their disposal.

Liability relating to environmental matters may inggt the value of properties that we may acquire ndoreclosure of the propertie
underlying our investments.

To the extent we foreclose on propertieth wéspect to which we have extended mortgage Jaemsnay be subject to environmental
liabilities arising from such foreclosed propertiemder various U.S. federal, state and local lamspwner or operator of real property may
become liable for the costs of removal of certaimdrdous substances released on its property. Tdes®ften impose liability without regard
to whether the owner or operator knew of, or wapoasible for, the release of such hazardous sutesa

The presence of hazardous substances maysaty affect an owner's ability to sell real &star borrow using real estate as collateral. To
the extent that an owner of a property underlying of our debt investments becomes liable for reahowsts, the ability of the owner to make
payments to us may be reduced, which in turn magmsely affect the value of the relevant mortgaggetiheld by us and our ability to make
distributions to our stockholders.

If we foreclose on any properties undedyiur investments, the presence of hazardous sidestan a property may adversely affect our
ability to sell the property and we may incur sabsial remediation costs, thus harming our findnmeadition. The discovery of material
environmental liabilities attached to such progartould have a material adverse effect on oultsestioperations and financial condition and
our ability to make distributions to our stockhatsle

We may invest in triple net leases. Negative mart@tditions or adverse events affecting tenantstloe industries in which they operate,
could have an adverse impact on any triple net ke@s which we invest.

We may enter into triple net leases. Ifemter into triple net leases, cash flow from operat depends in part on the ability to lease space
to tenants on economically favorable terms. If weee
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into triple net leases, we could be adversely &by various facts and events over which we Hiavieed or no control, such as:

. lack of demand in areas where our properties aatdal;

. inability to retain existing tenants and attracivrtenants

. oversupply of space and changes in market rernts;

. our tenants' creditworthiness and ability to payt,reshich may be affected by their operations,dheent economic situation a

competition within their industries from other opgns;

. defaults by and bankruptcies of tenants, failureenfints to pay rent on a timely basis, or faibfreenants to comply with the
contractual obligations; and

. economic or physical decline of the areas whergtbperties are locate

At any time, any tenant may experienceardorn in its business that may weaken its opegatsults or overall financial condition. As a
result, a tenant may delay lease commencementpfaibke rental payments when due, decline to edddirase upon its expiration, become
insolvent or declare bankruptcy. Any tenant bantayr insolvency, leasing delay or failure to ma&etal payments when due could result in
the termination of the tenant's lease and matlersaes to us.

If tenants do not renew their leases ag éxpire, we may not be able to rent or sell thapprties. Furthermore, leases that are renewed,
and some new leases for properties that are redeasay have terms that are less economically éoleithan expiring lease terms, or may
require us to incur significant costs, such as vations, tenant improvements or lease transactistscNegative market conditions may cause
us to sell vacant properties for less than theiyaag value, which could result in impairments.yAof these events could adversely affect cash
flow from operations and our ability to make distriions to stockholders and service indebtednessgwificant portion of the costs of owning
property, such as real estate taxes, insurancenairdenance, are not necessarily reduced whenne#teunces cause a decrease in rental
revenue from the properties. In a weakened findigoiadition, tenants may not be able to pay thestscof ownership and we may be unab
recover these operating expenses from them.

Further, the occurrence of a tenant bartkyupr insolvency could diminish the income we ieedrom the tenant's lease or leases. In
addition, a bankruptcy court might authorize theatg to terminate its leases with us. If that hagpeur claim against the bankrupt tenant for
unpaid future rent would be subject to statutamittaitions that most likely would be substantiatigd than the remaining rent we are owed
under the leases. In addition, any claim we havefipaid past rent, if any, may not be paid in.fAB a result, tenant bankruptcies may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operation

Past or future actions of the U.S. government féwetpurpose of reforming and/or stabilizing the finaial markets may adversely affect o
business.

In the aftermath of the financial crisisetU.S. Government, through the Federal ResergdJi8. Treasury, the SEC, the Federal Housing
Administration, the FDIC, and other governmental aegulatory bodies have taken or are consideeking various actions to address the
financial crisis. Many aspects of these actionssatgect to rulemaking and will take effect ovevesal years, making it difficult to anticipate
the overall financial impact on us and, more gelherte financial services and mortgage industrigdditionally, we cannot predict whether
there will be additional proposed laws or reforimat twould affect us, whether or when such changgslme adopted, how such changes mz
interpreted and enforced or how such changes niagtafs. However, the costs of complying with adgitional laws or regulations could
have a material adverse effect on our financiab@@n and results of operations.
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Investments outside the United States that are demated in foreign currencies subject us to foreigmrrency risks, which may adverse
affect our distributions and our REIT status.

Our investments outside the United Stag®chinated in foreign currencies subject us toiforeurrency risk due to potential fluctuatic
in exchange rates between foreign currencies amtJi8. dollar. As a result, changes in exchangss raft any such foreign currency to U.S.
dollars may affect our income and distributions aral/ also affect the book value of our assets haecmount of stockholders' equity.

Changes in foreign currency exchange nased to value a REIT's foreign assets may be cereidchanges in the value of the REIT's
assets. These changes may adversely affect ous staita REIT. Further, bank accounts in foreigretisty which are not considered cash or
cash equivalents may adversely affect our statasRESIT.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure
Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibit dmnges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland Gen&atporation Law (the "MGCL") may have the effectdefterring a third party from making a
proposal to acquire us or of impeding a changeirirol under circumstances that otherwise couldigdethe holders of our common stock
with the opportunity to realize a premium over then-prevailing market price of our common stocle ¥e subject to the "business
combination” provisions of the MGCL that, subjeziimitations, prohibit certain business combinasidincluding a merger, consolidation,
share exchange, or, in circumstances specifiegeistatute, an asset transfer or issuance or sédation of equity securities) between us and
an "interested stockholder” (defined generallyras@erson who beneficially owns 10% or more of then outstanding voting capital stock or
an affiliate or associate of ours who, at any timihin the two-year period prior to the date in gtien, was the beneficial owner of 10% or
more of our then outstanding voting capital stamkan affiliate thereof for five years after the shocecent date on which the stockholder
becomes an interested stockholder. After the fiegryrohibition, any business combination betweeand an interested stockholder generally
must be recommended by our board of directors pptbaed by the affirmative vote of at least (1) 86f4he votes entitled to be cast by
holders of outstanding shares of our voting cagitatk and (2) two-thirds of the votes entitledéocast by holders of voting capital stock of
the corporation other than shares held by theasted stockholder with whom or with whose affilitie business combination is to be effected
or held by an affiliate or associate of the intezdsstockholder. These super-majority vote requéneisdo not apply if our common
stockholders receive a minimum price, as definedeuMaryland law, for their shares in the form aglk or other consideration in the same
form as previously paid by the interested stockéofdr its shares. These provisions of the MGClndbapply, however, to business
combinations that are approved or exempted by edbufadirectors prior to the time that the inteegsstockholder becomes an interested
stockholder. Pursuant to the statute, our boadirettors has by resolution exempted business amatibihs between us and any other person,
provided that such business combination is firgraped by our board of directors (including a migyoof our directors who are not affiliates
associates of such person).

The "control share" provisions of the MG@tovide that "control shares" of a Maryland corpiora (defined as shares which, when
aggregated with other shares controlled by thekktder (except solely by virtue of a revocablexyo entitle the stockholder to exercise one
of three increasing ranges of voting power in éhgctirectors) acquired in a "control share acdjoisf (defined as the direct or indirect
acquisition of ownership or control of "control sésl') have no voting rights except to the exteqtraped by our stockholders by the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all thetes entitled to be cast on the matter, exclugistgs entitled to be cast by the acquirer of
control shares, our officers and our personnel afgoalso our directors. Our bylaws contain a piomigxempting
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from the control share acquisition statute any @hecquisitions by any person of shares of outlstdhere can be no assurance that this
provision will not be amended or eliminated at &ime in the future.

The "unsolicited takeover" provisions oé tMGCL permit our board of directors, without stbolder approval and regardless of what is
currently provided in our charter or bylaws, to lempent takeover defenses, some of which (for exapgptlassified board) we do not yet h:
These provisions may have the effect of inhibitindpird party from making an acquisition proposalds or of delaying, deferring or
preventing a change in control of us under theuoirstances that otherwise could provide the holdestares of common stock with the
opportunity to realize a premium over the thenenrmarket price.

Our authorized but unissued shares of common anéferred stock may prevent a change in our control.

Our charter authorizes us to issue additianthorized but unissued shares of common oepesf stock. In addition, our board of
directors may, without stockholder approval, ameadcharter to increase the aggregate number ofltanes of stock or the number of shares
of stock of any class or series that we have aityhiorissue and classify or reclassify any unisksieares of common or preferred stock and set
the preferences, rights and other terms of thesified or reclassified shares. As a result, ourtb@d directors may establish a series of shares
of common or preferred stock that could delay @vpnt a transaction or a change in control thahtrifgzolve a premium price for our shares
of common stock or otherwise be in the best intesesur stockholders.

Maintenance of our exemption from registration undéhe 1940 Act imposes significant limits on our eqations.

We intend to conduct our operations so tiegther we nor any of our subsidiaries are reqlioeregister as an investment company under
the 1940 Act. Because we are a holding companycthraducts our businesses primarily through whollyred subsidiaries, the securities
issued by these subsidiaries that are exceptedtfrerdefinition of "investment company" under Sext8(c)(1) or Section 3(c)(7) of the 1940
Act, together with any other investment securiti@sown, may not have a combined value in exced9%f of the value of our adjusted total
assets on an unconsolidated basis. This requireimétg the types of businesses in which we mayageghrough our subsidiaries. In addition,
the assets we and our subsidiaries may acquir@vdted by the provisions of the 1940 Act and thies and regulations promulgated under the
1940 Act, which may adversely affect our performanc

If the value of securities issued by oursidiaries that are excepted from the definitiofimfestment company" by Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)
(7) of the 1940 Act, together with any other invesnt securities we own, exceeds 40% of our adjustatiassets on an unconsolidated basis,
or if one or more of such subsidiaries fail to ntaim an exception or exemption from the 1940 Aa,cmuld, among other things, be required
either (a) to substantially change the manner iitkvive conduct our operations to avoid being rezflito register as an investment compar
(b) to register as an investment company undet®® Act, either of which could have an adverseafbn us and the market price of our
securities. If we were required to register asraestment company under the 1940 Act, we would inecsubject to substantial regulation with
respect to our capital structure (including outiigbio use leverage), management, operationsséretions with affiliated persons (as defined in
the 1940 Act), portfolio composition, including testions with respect to diversification and intlysconcentration, and other matters.

The SEC recently solicited public commemiowide range of issues relating to Section 3j@pof the 1940 Act, including the nature of
the assets that qualify for purposes of the exempind whether mortgage REITs should be regulatadimanner similar to investment
companies. There can
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be no assurance that the laws and regulations giogethe 1940 Act status of REITSs, including theiBibn of Investment Management of the
SEC providing more specific or different guidanegarding these exemptions, will not change in amaathat adversely affects our operati

If we or our subsidiaries fail to maintain an exiep of exemption from the 1940 Act, we could, amather things, be required to (a) change
the manner in which we conduct our operations tmdalieing required to register as an investmentgzomy, (b) effect sales of our assets in a
manner that, or at a time when, we would not otfsrwhoose to do so, or (c) register as an invegtownpany (which, among other things,
would require us to comply with the leverage caists applicable to investment companies), anylitwcould negatively affect the value of
our common stock, the sustainability of our bussna®del, and our ability to make distributions tw stockholders, which could, in turn,
materially and adversely affect us and the markieemf our common stock.

Rapid changes in the values of our other real es-related investments may make it more difficult fos to maintain our qualification as a
REIT or exemption from the 1940 Ac

If the market value or income potentiated! estate-related investments declines as a iifdnkreased interest rates, prepayment rates or
other factors, we may need to increase our reateestvestments and income and/or liquidate ourqualifying assets in order to maintain our
REIT qualification or exemption from the 1940 Alftthe decline in real estate asset values andfmme occurs quickly, this may be
especially difficult to accomplish. This difficultyay be exacerbated by the illiquid nature of amy-gualifying assets that we may own. We
may have to make investment decisions that we witherwould not make absent the REIT and 1940 Acsickerations.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders toka action against our directors and officers areriited, which could limit your recourse in
the event of actions not in your best interests.

Under Maryland law generally, a directatsions will be upheld if he or she performs hider duties in good faith, in a manner he or she
reasonably believes to be in our best interestsaatidthe care that an ordinarily prudent persoa like position would use under similar
circumstances. In addition, our charter limits libility of our directors and officers to us andratockholders for money damages, except for
liability resulting from:

. actual receipt of an improper benefit or profimioney, property or services;

. active and deliberate dishonesty by the directafficer that was established by a final judgmenbaing material to the cause
of action adjudicated.

Our charter authorizes us to indemnify divectors and officers for actions taken by thenthimse capacities to the maximum extent
permitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws require usnemnify each director or officer, to the maximentent permitted by Maryland law, in
the defense of any proceeding to which he or sheaide, or threatened to be made, a party by resfdun or her service to us. In addition, we
may be obligated to fund the defense costs inclbyealur directors and officers. As a result, we andstockholders may have more limited
rights against our directors and officers than maherwise exist absent the current provisionsuncharter and bylaws or that might exist
with other companies.

Our charter contains provisions that make removdlaur directors difficult, which could make it dif€ult for our stockholders to effect
changes to our management.

Our charter provides that a director maly dw@ removed for cause upon the affirmative vdtealders of two-thirds of the votes entitled
to be cast in the election of directors. Vacanoiey be filled only by a majority of the remainingeattors in office, even if less than a quorum.
These requirements make it more difficult to chaogemanagement by removing and replacing dire@ndsmay prevent a change in control
of our company that is in the best interests ofstackholders.
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Ownership limitations may restrict change of contror business combination opportunities in which patockholders might receive a
premium for their shares

In order for us to qualify as a REIT, nomathan 50% in value of our outstanding capitatistmay be owned, directly or indirectly, by
five or fewer individuals during the last half afyacalendar year. "Individuals" for this purposelime natural persons, private foundations,
some employee benefit plans and trusts, and soaréaible trusts. To preserve our REIT qualificationr charter generally prohibits any
person from directly or indirectly owning more th@u8% in value or in number of shares, whichevendse restrictive, of the outstanding
shares of our capital stock or more than 9.8% Inevar in number of shares, whichever is more iaate, of the outstanding shares of our
common stock. This ownership limitation could h#ive effect of discouraging a takeover or otherdaation in which holders of our common
stock might receive a premium for their shares ¢lherthen prevailing market price or which hold@ight believe to be otherwise in their best
interests.

Risks Related to Our Taxation as a REIT

If we do not qualify as a REIT or fail to remain cplified as a REIT, we will be subject to tax as egular corporation and could face
substantial tax liability, which would reduce then@ount of cash available for distribution to our st&holders.

We intend to continue to operate in a matmet will allow us to qualify as a REIT for fedg¢income tax purposes. We have not requt
nor obtained a ruling from the Internal RevenueviBer(the "IRS") as to our REIT qualification. OCqualification as a REIT depends on our
satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizatiadistribution, stockholder ownership and otreuirements on a continuing basis. Our
ability to satisfy the asset tests depends uporapnalysis of the characterization and fair valuesun assets, some of which are not susceptible
to a precise determination, and for which we wilt obtain independent appraisals. Our compliantk thie REIT income and quarterly asset
requirements also depends upon our ability to ssfaly manage the composition of our income arsgson an ongoing basis. Moreover,
proper classification of an instrument as debtquity for federal income tax purposes may be ula@eith some circumstances, which could
affect the application of the REIT qualificatiorgrérements as described below. Accordingly, tharelee no assurance that the IRS will not
contend that our interests in subsidiaries or cusges of other issuers will not cause a violatad the REIT requirements.

If we were to fail to qualify as a REIT @amy taxable year, we would be subject to fedearme tax, including any applicable alternative
minimum tax, on our taxable income at regular coaprates, and dividends paid to our stockholdensdd not be deductible by us in
computing our taxable income. Any resulting corpertax liability could be substantial and wouldued the amount of cash available for
distribution to our stockholders, which in turn have an adverse impact on the value of our comshack. Unless we were entitled to relief
under certain Code provisions, we also would bguditified from taxation as a REIT for the four thlayears following the year in which we
failed to qualify as a REIT.

Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates available for some dividen

The maximum tax rate applicable to inconoenf "qualified dividends" payable to domestic stozkiers that are individuals, trusts and
estates has been reduced by legislation to 15%gdhrthe end of 2012. Dividends payable by REITsyéwer, generally are not eligible for the
reduced rates. Although this legislation does deesasely affect the taxation of REITs or dividepayable by REITs, the more favorable rates
applicable to regular corporate qualified dividerdsld cause investors who are individuals, trasts estates to perceive investments in R
to be relatively less attractive than investmenthé stocks of noREIT corporations that pay dividends, which couddexrsely affect the valt
of the stock of REITs, including our common stock.
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REIT distribution requirements could adversely affeour ability to continue to execute our businegkan.

We generally must distribute annually aiste90% of our taxable income, subject to certdjusiments and excluding any net capital g
in order for federal corporate income tax not tplgpo earnings that we distribute. To the extéiat tve satisfy this distribution requirement,
but distribute less than 100% of our taxable incowewill be subject to federal corporate incomeda our undistributed taxable income. In
addition, we will be subject to a 4% nondeductimeise tax if the actual amount that we pay owtuiostockholders in a calendar year is less
than a minimum amount specified under federal aaws|l We intend to continue to make distributionsuo stockholders to comply with the
REIT requirements of the Code.

From time to time, we may generate taxademe greater than our income for financial rejpgrpurposes prepared in accordance with
GAAP, or differences in timing between the recoignitof taxable income and the actual receipt ohaaay occur. For example, we may be
required to accrue income from mortgage loans, M8, other types of debt securities or interestieist securities before we receive any
payments of interest or principal on such assetsnValy also acquire distressed debt investmentathaubsequently modified by agreement
with the borrower. If the amendments to the outditagn debt are "significant modifications” under tggplicable Treasury regulations, the
modified debt may be considered to have been misguus at a gain in a debt-for-debt exchange thigtborrower, with gain recognized by us
to the extent that the principal amount of the rfiedidebt exceeds our cost of purchasing it poambdification.

We may also be required under the ternisd#btedness that we incur to use cash received ifiterest payments to make principal
payments on that indebtedness, with the effect@dgnizing income but not having a correspondinguarhof cash available for distribution
our stockholders.

As a result, we may find it difficult or possible to meet distribution requirements from analinary operations in certain circumstances.
In particular, where we experience differencesririrtg between the recognition of taxable income tredactual receipt of cash, the
requirement to distribute a substantial portiolwf taxable income could cause us to: (i) selltasseadverse market conditions, (ii) borrow on
unfavorable terms, (iii) distribute amounts thatuebotherwise be invested in future acquisitiorapital expenditures or repayment of debt or
(iv) make a taxable distribution of our sharespad of a distribution in which stockholders magatlto receive shares (subject to a limit
measured as a percentage of the total distribytiorgrder to comply with REIT requirements. Thetternatives could increase our costs or
reduce our equity. Thus, compliance with the REdguirements may hinder our ability to grow, whidhuld adversely affect the value of our
common stock.

The stock ownership limit imposed by the Code fdEIRs and our charter may restrict our business comation opportunities.

In order for us to maintain our qualificatias a REIT under the Code, not more than 50%lurevof our outstanding stock may be owned,
directly or indirectly, by five or fewer individusl(as defined in the Code to include certain esjitat any time during the last half of each
taxable year following our first year. Our chartsith certain exceptions, authorizes our boardiafadors to take the actions that are necessary
and desirable to preserve our qualification as BTRBnless exempted by our board of directors, espn may own more than 9.8% of the
aggregate value of our outstanding capital stock.lidard may grant an exemption in its sole digmnesubject to such conditions,
representations and undertakings as it may detetriiime ownership limits imposed by the tax lawlased upon direct or indirect ownership
by "individuals," but only during the last half aftax year. The ownership limits contained in charter key off of the ownership at any time
any "person,"” which term includes entities. Thesaership limitations in our charter are common BIRcharters and are intended to provide
added assurance of compliance with the tax lawirespents, and to minimize administrative burdenswiver, these ownership limits might
also

38




Table of Contents

delay or prevent a transaction or a change in onirol that might involve a premium price for ownemon stock or otherwise be in the best
interest of our stockholders.

Even if we remain qualified as a REIT, we may faother tax liabilities that reduce our cash flov

Even if we remain qualified for taxationaREIT, we may be subject to certain federalestat local taxes on our income and assets,
including taxes on any undistributed income, taximmome from some activities conducted as a redwdtforeclosure, and state or local
income, property and transfer taxes, such as ngetgacording taxes. In addition, in order to camito meet the REIT qualification
requirements, prevent the recognition of certapresyof non-cash income, or to avert the impositba 100% tax that applies to certain gains
derived by a REIT from dealer property or inventame may hold some of our assets through our TR&har subsidiary corporations that v
be subject to corporate-level income tax at regates. In addition, if we lend money to a TRS, TS may be unable to deduct all or a
portion of the interest paid to us, which couldutes1 an even higher corporate-level tax liabiliny of these taxes would decrease cash
available for distribution to our stockholders.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us togo otherwise attractive opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT for federal income mxposes, we must satisfy ongoing tests conceramgng other things, the sources of our
income, the nature and diversification of our asgéie amounts that we distribute to our stockirslded the ownership of our stock. We may
be required to make distributions to stockholdémisadvantageous times or when we do not havesfuemtily available for distribution, and
may be unable to pursue investments that wouldherwise advantageous to us in order to satisftluece-of-income or asset-diversification
requirements for qualifying as a REIT. In additiongcertain cases, the modification of a debt imstent could result in the conversion of the
instrument from a qualifying real estate assetwhally or partially non-qualifying asset that mib&t contributed to a TRS or disposed of in
order for us to maintain our REIT status. Compl@anagth the source-of-income requirements may aisa bur ability to acquire debt
instruments at a discount from their face amouhusT compliance with the REIT requirements may &iraur ability to make and, in certain
cases, to maintain ownership of, certain attradtivestments.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us tajliidate otherwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we must ensure thaha end of each calendar quarter, at least 758teofalue of our assets consists of cash, cash
items, government securities and qualified REIT estate assets, including certain mortgage loadscartain kinds of MBS. The remainder of
our investment in securities (other than governmsentrrities and qualified real estate assets) gypeannot include more than 10% of the
outstanding voting securities of any one issuanore than 10% of the total value of the outstandieyurities of any one issuer. In addition, in
general, no more than 5% of the value of our agseéter than government securities and qualified estate assets) can consist of the sect
of any one issuer, and no more than 25% of theevalwur total securities can be represented byrgis of one or more TRSs. If we fail to
comply with these requirements at the end of aftgnckar quarter, we must correct the failure witBindays after the end of the calendar
quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief prsions to avoid losing our REIT qualification asdffering adverse tax consequences. As a
result, we may be required to liquidate from ourtfotio otherwise attractive investments. Theseacerst could have the effect of reducing our
income and amounts available for distribution to stackholders.
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The failure of assets subject to repurchase agreatado qualify as real estate assets could adverséfiect our ability to qualify as a REIT.

We have entered into financing arrangemiatisare structured as sale and repurchase agneemesuant to which we would nominally
sell certain of our assets to a counterparty amdilsineously enter into an agreement to repurctieese assets at a later date in exchange for a
purchase price. Economically, these agreementinamcings which are secured by the assets soklpuat thereto. We believe that we would
be treated for REIT asset and income test purpmsése owner of the assets that are the subjestyo$uch sale and repurchase agreement
notwithstanding that such agreement may transtardeownership of the assets to the counterpantiyngthe term of the agreement. It is
possible, however, that the IRS could assert tleadiig not own the assets during the term of the aatl repurchase agreement, in which case
we could fail to qualify as a REIT.

We may be required to report taxable income forteém investments in excess of the economic incomeeultimately realize from them.

We may acquire debt instruments in the séary market for less than their face amount. Tikeadint at which such debt instruments are
acquired may reflect doubts about their ultimatéectability rather than current market interesesa The amount of such discount will
nevertheless generally be treated as "market distéar U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accruettkat discount is reported as income
when, and to the extent that, any payment of gpalaf the debt instrument is made. Payments ddemesal mortgage loans are ordinarily
made monthly, and consequently accrued market giiggonay have to be included in income each monththe debt instrument were assured
of ultimately being collected in full. If we colletess on the debt instrument than our purchase ius the market discount we had previously
reported as income, we may not be able to benefit finy offsetting loss deductions. In addition,ma&y acquire distressed debt investments
that are subsequently modified by agreement wighotbrrower. If the amendments to the outstandirtg dee "significant modifications™ under
applicable Treasury regulations, the modified dely be considered to have been reissued to ugahan a debt-for-debt exchange with the
borrower. In that event, we may be required to gaixe taxable gain to the extent the principal amaid the modified debt exceeds our
adjusted tax basis in the unmodified debt, eveinefvalue of the debt or the payment expectatianwe mot changed.

Moreover, some of the MBS that we acquieymave been issued with original issue discourg VWM be required to report such original
issue discount based on a constant yield methodvdhide taxed based on the assumption that aliruprojected payments due on such MBS
will be made. If such MBS turns out not to be fullgllectible, an offsetting loss deduction will lbege available only in the later year that
uncollectibility is provable.

Finally, in the event that any debt insteunts or MBS acquired by us are delinquent as todaiany principal and interest payments, or in
the event payments with respect to a particulat hstrument are not made when due, we may noresthdie required to continue to recognize
the unpaid interest as taxable income as it accdespite doubt as to its ultimate collectabil®ymilarly, we may be required to accrue interest
income with respect to subordinate MBS at its staste regardless of whether corresponding casimgatgs are received or are ultimately
collectible. In each case, while we would in gehaltmately have an offsetting loss deduction éalale to us when such interest was
determined to be uncollectible, the utility of tlitduction could depend on our having taxable ireanthat later year or thereafter.
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The "taxable mortgage pool" rules may increase tkexes that we or our stockholders may incur, and yramit the manner in which we
effect future securitizations.

Securitizations could result in the creatid taxable mortgage pools for federal incomepasposes. As a REIT, so long as we own 100%
of the equity interests in a taxable mortgage pmelgenerally would not be adversely affected eydharacterization of the securitization as a
taxable mortgage pool. Certain categories of stolcldrs, however, such as foreign stockholderstdédor treaty or other benefits,
stockholders with net operating losses, and cetéairexempt stockholders that are subject to utedlausiness income tax, could be subject to
increased taxes on a portion of their dividend imedrom us that is attributable to the taxable geage pool. In addition, to the extent that our
stock is owned by tax-exempt "disqualified orgatitss," such as certain government-related entitrebcharitable remainder trusts that are
not subject to tax on unrelated business incomeneagincur a corporate level tax on a portion afiocome from the taxable mortgage pool.
In that case, we may reduce the amount of ourildigions to any disqualified organization whosecktownership gave rise to the tax.
Moreover, we would be precluded from selling eqintgrests in these securitizations to outsidestors, or selling any debt securities issued
in connection with these securitizations that migdiconsidered to be equity interests for tax pggpoThese limitations may prevent us from
using certain techniques to maximize our returamfsecuritization transactions.

The tax on prohibited transactions will limit ourlality to engage in transactions, including certaimethods of securitizing mortgage loans,
which would be treated as sales for federal incotar purposes.

A REIT's net income from prohibited trantsaas is subject to a 100% tax. In general, praaibtransactions are sales or other disposi
of property, other than foreclosure property, Imgtuding mortgage loans, held primarily for saletstomers in the ordinary course of
business. We might be subject to this tax if weenterdispose of or securitize loans in a manndntla treated as a sale of the loans for fe
income tax purposes. Therefore, in order to aveédprohibited transactions tax, we may choosemehgage in certain sales of loans at the
REIT level, and may limit the structures we utilipe our securitization transactions, even thoughdales or structures might otherwise be
beneficial to us.

Our investments in construction loans will requings to make estimates about the fair value of lamgprovements that may be challenged by
the IRS.

We may invest in construction loans, theriast from which will be qualifying income for gaoses of the REIT income tests, provided
that the loan value of the real property securirggdonstruction loan is equal to or greater tharhighest outstanding principal amount of the
construction loan during any taxable year. For pags of construction loans, the loan value of &a property is the fair value of the land plus
the reasonably estimated cost of the improvemerdseelopments (other than personal property)uhiasecure the loan and that are to be
constructed from the proceeds of the loan. Thenebeano assurance that the IRS would not challengestimate of the loan value of the real

property.
The failure of a mezzanine loan to qualify as a tesstate asset could adversely affect our abilgygualify as a REIT.

We invest in mezzanine loans, for whichlfR8 has provided a safe harbor but not rules b$tsuntive law. Pursuant to the safe harbot
mezzanine loan meets certain requirements, ithgilireated by the IRS as a real estate asset fpoges of the REIT asset tests, and interest
derived from the mezzanine loan will be treated@alifying mortgage interest for purposes of thd RE5% income test. We may acquire
mezzanine loans that do not meet all of the requergs of this safe harbor. In the event we own azaxgine loan that does not meet the safe
harbor, the IRS could
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challenge such loan's treatment as a real estse¢ fas purposes of the REIT asset and income amstsif such a challenge were sustained, we
could fail to qualify as a REIT.

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT quadation.

To qualify as a REIT, we must comply widlguirements regarding our assets and our sourdesahe. If we are compelled to liquidate
our investments to repay obligations to our lendeesmay be unable to comply with these requiresjaritimately jeopardizing our
qualification as a REIT, or we may be subject i®8% tax on any resultant gain if we sell asseisdhe treated as dealer property or
inventory.

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our alify to hedge effectively and may cause us to intax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Code substalytiahit our ability to hedge our liabilities. Anincome from a hedging transaction we enter
into to manage risk of interest rate changes vé#ipect to borrowings made or to be made to acquicarry real estate assets does not
constitute "gross income" for purposes of the 75%58% gross income tests. To the extent that weréntio other types of hedging
transactions, the income from those transactiotikdly to be treated as non-qualifying income forposes of both of the gross income tests.
As a result of these rules, we intend to limit age of advantageous hedging techniques or implethes¢ hedges through a domestic TRS.
This could increase the cost of our hedging adivibecause our TRS would be subject to tax orsgaiexpose us to greater risks associated
with changes in interest rates than we would otierwrant to bear. In addition, losses in our TRBgenerally not provide any tax benefit,
except for being carried forward against futureatd® income in the TRS.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical ancomplex provisions of the Code.

Qualification as a REIT involves the apation of highly technical and complex Code provisidor which only limited judicial and
administrative authorities exist. Even a technarahadvertent violation could jeopardize our REjJalification. Our qualification as a REIT
will depend on our satisfaction of certain assetpime, organizational, distribution, stockholdemevship and other requirements on a
continuing basis. In addition, our ability to s§tithe requirements to qualify as a REIT dependsairt on the actions of third parties over
which we have no control or only limited influené@egluding in cases where we own an equity inteirean entity that is classified as a
partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Iltem 2. Properties.
The Company's headquarters are locateaerr@ich, Connecticut at 591 West Putnam Avenuwsffice space leased by our Manager.
Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings.
Currently, no legal proceedings are pendimgatened or, to our knowledge, contemplateéhagas.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities.
Market Information and Dividends

The Company's common stock has been Imtettie New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") anttasled under the symbol "STWD"
since its initial public offering in August 2009h& following table below sets forth the quarterigthand low prices for our common stock as
reported by the NYSE, and dividends made by the gzom to holders of the Company's common stockdchejuarter for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

2011 High Low Dividend

First quarte $ 2367 $ 21.12 $ 0.4%2)
Second quarte $ 2298 $ 1982 $ 0.442)
Third quartel $ 21.2F $ 16.5¢ $ 0.443)
Fourth quarte $ 19.32 $ 15.8¢ $ 0.444)
2010 High Low Dividend

First quarte! $ 19.9¢ $ 17.9¢ $ 0.245)
Second quarte $ 19.7C $ 16.4¢ $ 0.256)
Third quarter $ 202 $ 1651 $ 0.3%7)
Fourth quarte $ 2170 $ 1972 $ 0.4((8)

1) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on March 31, 2011 which was paid
April 15, 2011.

(2) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on June 30, 2011, which was paiduly 15,
2011.

(3)  Our board of directors declared a dividend to stoddters of record on September 30, 2011, whichpeés on
October 14, 2011.

4) Our board of directors declared a dividend to dtoddters of record on December 31, 2011, which vead pn
January 13, 2012.

(5) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stotdters of record on March 31, 2010 which was paid
April 15, 2010.

(6) Our board of directors declared a dividend to stotdters of record on June 30, 2010, which was paiduly 15,
2010.

©) Our board of directors declared a dividend to dtoddters of record on September 30, 2010, whichpeéd on
October 15, 2010.

(8) Our board of directors declared a dividend to dtoddters of record on December 31, 2010, which vead pn
January 17, 201:

On February 29, 2012, our board of directteclared a dividend of $0.44 per share for thimgended March 31, 2012, which dividen
payable on April 13, 2012 to common stockholderseobrd as of March 30, 2012.

On February 28, 2012, the closing saleepoicthe common stock, as reported by the NYSE$28s10 per share.
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We intend to make regular quarterly disttibns to holders of our common stock and distidruequivalents to holders of restricted stock
units which are settled in shares of common stdcg. federal income tax law generally requires thREIT distribute annually at least 90% of
its REIT taxable income, without regard to the dgiun for dividends paid and excluding net capifains, and that it pay tax at regular
corporate rates to the extent that it annuallyrithistes less than 100% of its net taxable income.g&herally intend over time to pay quarterly
distributions in an amount equal to our taxableme.

Holders

As of February 27, 2012, there were fourteelders of record of the Company's 93,185,50teshaf common stock issued and
outstanding. The fourteen holders of record inclGeee & Co., which holds shares as nominee forOdyository Trust Company which itself
holds shares on behalf of the beneficial ownersunfcommon stock.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this item is f&®th under Item 12 of this Annual Report on FattK and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Stock Performance Graph

CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Based upon initial investment of $100 on August 12009(1)
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Trust 100.0C  101.3( 95.0( 98.17 87.4¢  104.2¢ 114.8C 121.4: 114.0% 97.8¢ 108.8(
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1) Dividend reinvestment is assumed at quarter end.

44




Table of Contents

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

October 1, 2011 to October 31,
2011

November 1, 2011 t
November 30, 201

December 1, 2011 1
December 31, 201

Total

Total

Approximate dollar
value of shares
that may yet be

Total number of
shares purchased

number of Average as part of publicly purchased under the
shares price paid announced plans or programs
purchased per share plans or programs ($000's omitted)
283,85( $ 16.4- 283,85( $ 89,35§1)
— — — 89,35¢(1)
_ — — 89,35¢(1)
283,85( $ 16.4: 283,85( $ 89,35¢(1)

D) Pursuant to the $100 million stock repurchase @nogauthorized and announced by our board of direaicAugust
2011, the Company repurchased a total of 342,08fesHor a total of $6.0 million in August 2011.€T$hare repurchase
program expires in one year and may be suspendéidaantinued at any tim

A $50 million stock repurchase program autted and announced by our board of directoraime 2010 for a period of one year expired
in June 2011. No stock was repurchased under thgggm prior to expiration. There were no unregedesales of securities during the year

ended December 31, 2011.

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data shibloé read in conjunction with Item 7—"Managemebfscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations," and our chaated
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financial statements, including the notes theratuded elsewhere herein. All amounts are in thods, except share and per share data.

For the
Period from
For the Year For the Year Inception
Ended Ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Operating Data:
Interest incom $ 204970 % 93,52: $ 6,927
Interest expens (28,789 (15,78¢) (2,909
Net interest margi 176,19: 77,73¢ 5,02:
Total operating expens: (50,92() (30,057 (9,28¢)
Net income (loss 120,60¢ 58,84: (2,580
Net income (loss) attributable to Starwood Prop
Trust, Inc. 119,37 57,04¢ (3,017
Net income (loss) per share of common st
Basic $ 13€ $ 1.1€ $ (0.0¢€)
Diluted $ 1.3¢ $ 114 $ (0.06)
Dividends declared per share of common si $ 174 $ 1.2C $ 0.11
Weighted-average shares of common stock
outstanding
Basic 84,974,60. 49,138,72 47,575,63
Diluted 86,409,32 50,021,82 47,575,63
Balance Sheet Data
Investments in securitie 341,73« 397,68 245,89t
Investments in loan 2,447,50: 1,425,24. 214,52:
Total asset 2,997,44 2,101,40! 1,108,78
Total financing arrangemer 1,156,711 633,74! 171,39:
Total liabilities 1,232,30! 764,17¢ 212,75:
Total Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockhold
Equity 1,759,48! 1,327,56! 887,96
Total Equity $ 1,765,114 $ 1,337,220 $  896,03!

Iltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (togethehviis subsidiaries, the "Company") is a Marylantphooation that commenced operations on
August 17, 2009 upon completion of our initial daldffering. We are focused on originating, invegtin, financing and managing commer
mortgage loans and other commercial real estateitledstments, commercial mortgage-backed secsift@MBS"), and other commercial
real estate-related debt investments. We also friwessidential mortgage-backed securities ("RMB&hd may invest in commercial
properties subject to net leases and residentigigage loans. We collectively refer to commercialritgage loans, other commercial real estate
debt investments, CMBS, other commercial real estalated debt investments, commercial propestidgect to net leases, and residential
mortgage loans as our target assets.

Our objective is to provide attractive ra#tjusted global returns to our investors overding term, primarily through dividends and
secondarily through capital appreciation. We empdograge, to the extent available, to fund theusitipn of our target assets and to increase
potential returns to our stockholders. In ordeadhieve these objectives, we are focusing on asettion and the relative value of various
sectors within the debt market to construct a difiex investment portfolio designed
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to produce attractive returns across a variety afket conditions and economic cycles. We are orgahas a holding company that conduct
business primarily through its various subsidiaries

Since the closing of our initial public efing in August 2009, we have focused primarilyopportunities that exist in the U.S. commer
mortgage loan, commercial real estate debt, and st RMBS markets. As market conditions change tiwe, we may adjust our strategy
to take advantage of changes in interest ratesiutit spreads as well as economic and credit tondi We believe that the diversification of
our portfolio of assets, our expertise among thgetaasset classes, and the flexibility of ourtetya will position us to generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns for our stockholders in a varigtgssets and market conditions.

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT {8 t&deral income tax purposes, commencing withirotial taxable year ended December 31,
2009. We also operate our business in a mannewihatermit us to maintain our exemption from rgigation under the 1940 Act.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, weshtered into agreements or consummated transactpresenting net investments of
approximately $2.0 billion. Our primary busines®igyinating and acquiring commercial mortgagetegldoans and securities. During the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, we acqairddriginated commercial mortgage loans with agiral carrying value of
approximately $1.8 billion, which included the foNing significant items: (i) a $165.5 million origition of a first mortgage loan, mezzanine
loan and corporate loan on a portfolio of six 8éfrvice hotels located throughout California; &) acquisition of a 90% interest in a
$188 million (face amount) mezzanine loan colldieea by an ownership interest in a portfolio afi @ffice buildings in Northern Virginia for
$156.5 million; (i) an acquisition of a $137.8llwn (face amount) mezzanine loan tranche colidized by ownership interests in 28 hotels
located throughout the U.S. for $127.1 million;)@n origination of a $175.0 million first mortgagellateralized by a furniture showroom
located in North Carolina; (v) an origination 0$60.5 million first mortgage loan secured by twtailecenters in Pennsylvania; (vi) an
origination of a $34.5 million first mortgage loaacured by a mulfiamily apartment property located in Virginia; {vél discounted acquisitic
from a top tier international bank of a portfolib26 separate commercial mortgage loans with avatee of $333 million; and (viii) an
acquisition of a $185 million A-note secured byaatfolio of 143 limited service hotels. We also @sted $161.2 million in RMBS and
$37.1 million in other investments.

In addition, refer to significant eventsomring subsequent to December 31, 2011 in Not® 1e consolidated financial statements.
Business Objectives and Outlook

Our objective is to provide attractive resfjusted returns to our investors over the longpt@rimarily through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achiimg objective by directly originating and acqu@itarget assets to construct a diversified
investment portfolio designed to produce attracteterns across a variety of market conditions eswhomic cycles. We intend to construct a
diversified investment portfolio by focusing on dhree core competencies: transaction access,asagsis and selection, and identificatiol
attractive relative values within the real estatbtcand equity markets.

In the last decade, real estate becamdismgntly overpriced as values appreciated welldreytheir underlying fundamentals. Followin
dramatic correction in the price of real estaterdlie past several years, including a nearly cotapgilutdown of the real estate capital mark
producing a void of debt and equity capital avaiighfor real estate investing, the real estatpitzd markets have begun what we believe will
be a slow return to a rationally priced and ligoidrketplace. Securitization markets have reappe8atk and non-bank finance companies
have begun to lend again on commercial real esiliieit at more conservative leverage levels ard mibre conservative underwriting
parameters and assumptions. Commercial real egthtes, particularly in gateway cities, have betjuimprove as have real estate operating
fundamentals in some sectors and geographic areas.
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Since our initial public offering, we cagdized on the dislocation in the credit markets ko#t of existing capital, investing in over
$4.1 billion of real estate debt at what we beliaxe attractive risk-adjusted returns. As the mamkeovery continues and competition from
both traditional and new lending sources increas@shusiness plan is evolving away from a focushanacquisition of assets from distressed
sellers to that of a commercial real estate fingladorm focused on the direct origination of reatate debt in all parts of the capital structure
in both the U.S. and abroad. More specificallythi@a months and years ahead, we intend to expisitélcovery in four primary ways:

1) continue to opportunistically acquire distressesiment opportunities from lender/sellers andtgcgponsors as they contin
to address the problems associated with the largehang of significantly overleveraged and undeitediped real estate
projects;

2) provide debt and equity capital to what should énareasing supply of moderately overleveragedwamiercapitalized rei
estate projects in need of recapitalization as therent loans come due;

3) opportunistically provide acquisition, refinancevedlopment and expansion capital to new real eptajects in infill location:
and/or attractive market niches; and

4) utilize the syndication and securitization markatsa source of attractively priced, matched-teralance sheet financing.
There can be no assurance that the recovery witiroge or that we will be able to find appropriateestment opportunities.
Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared aortance with GAAP, which requires the use of estér and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities asefitite of the financial statements and the repeneolnts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. We believe that all of the demisi and assessments upon which our financial statsrare based were reasonable at the time
made, based upon information available to us attitme. In accordance with SEC guidance, the follgadiscussion describes the accounting
policies that apply to our operations that we lvito be most critical to an investor's understagaif our financial results and condition and
require complex management judgment and the usstiohates. This summary should be read in conjonetith a more complete discussion
of our accounting policies included in Note 2 te ttonsolidated financial statements in this report.

Classification and Impairment Evaluation of InvestrhSecurities

Our MBS investments consist primarily ofrcoercial real estate debt instruments, CMBS, andBNhat we classify as available-for-
sale. Investments classified as available-for-aedecarried at their fair value, with changes invalue recorded through accumulated other
comprehensive income, a component of stockholdgtsty, rather than through earnings. We do nat laoly of our investment securities for
trading purposes.

When the estimated fair value of a secusitgss than amortized cost, we consider wheti@etis an other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") in the value of the security. An impairmeaa deemed an OTTI if (i) we intend to sell thewdty, (ii) it is more likely than not that we
will be required to sell the security before reaivg our cost basis, or (iii) we do not expecteoaver our cost basis even if we do not inter
sell the security or believe it is more likely thaot that we will be required to sell the secubigfore recovering our cost basis. If the
impairment is deemed to be an OTTI, the resulticgpanting treatment depends on the factors catks@TTI. If the OTTI has resulted from
(i) our intention to sell the security or (ii) opdgment that it is more likely than not that wdle required to sell the security before
recovering our cost basis, an impairment loss is
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recognized in current earnings equal to the diffeeebetween our amortized cost basis and fair vélllieereas, if the OTTI has resulted from
our conclusion that we will not recover our cossibaeven if we do not intend to sell the securitpalieve it is more likely than not that we v
be required to sell the security before recoveangcost basis, the credit loss portion of the immpant is recorded in current earnings and the
portion of the loss related to other factors, saslthanges in interest rates, continues to be mésa)in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Determining whether there is an OTTI mayunee management to exercise significant judgmadtraake significant assumptions,
including, but not limited to, estimated cash flowstimated prepayments, loss assumptions, andchpsisas regarding changes in interest
rates. As a result, actual impairment losses cdiffdr from reported amounts. Such judgments asdimptions are based upon a number of
factors, including (i) credit of the issuer or th&rrower, (ii) credit rating of the security, (ikey terms of the security, (iv) performance of the
loan or underlying loans, including debt serviceerage and loan-to-value ratios, (v) the valuehefdollateral for the loan or underlying loans,
(vi) the effect of local, industry, and broader eomic factors, and (vii) the historical and antatigd trends in defaults and loss severities for
similar securities.

Loan Impairmen

We evaluate each loan classified as haldafcestment for impairment at least quarterly. &imment occurs when it is deemed probable
that we will not be able to collect all amounts daeeording to the contractual terms of the loa. Ilfan is considered to be impaired, we re
an allowance to reduce the carrying value of tlaa lm the present value of expected future castsfitiscounted at the loan's contractual
effective rate or the fair value of the collateritepayment is expected solely from the colldtera

The Company's loans are typically colldizea by real estate. As a result, the Companylegtyuevaluates the extent and impact of any
credit deterioration associated with the perfornesaued/or value of the underlying collateral propa well as the financial and operating
capability of the borrower/sponsor on a loan bynlbasis. Specifically, a property's operating rssaihd any cash reserves are analyzed and
used to assess (i) whether cash from operationsudfieient to cover the debt service requirementsently and into the future, (ii) the ability
of the borrower to refinance the loan, and/or {hi property's liquidation value. The Company @&ealuates the financial wherewithal of any
loan guarantors as well as the borrower's compgtienmanaging and operating the properties. Intagdithe Company considers the overall
economic environment, real estate sector, and gpbgr sub-market in which the borrower operateshSmpairment analyses are completed
and reviewed by asset management and finance paisevho utilize various data sources, includingériodic financial data such as prope
occupancy, tenant profile, rental rates, operatixqgenses, the borrower's exit plan, and capitadizatnd discount rates, (i) site inspections,
and (iii) current credit spreads and discussiorik wiarket participants.

Upon completion of the process above, wekaled that no loans were impaired as of DecerdbgP011 or 2010. Significant judgment
is required when evaluating loans for impairmemeréfore, actual results over time could be médtgriifferent.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

GAAP establishes a hierarchy of valuatiechhiques based on the observability of inputizetllin measuring financial instruments at
values. GAAP establishes market based or obserugngs as the preferred source of values, follolwedaluation models using management
assumptions in the absence of market inputs. Tiee tlevels of the hierarchy under GAAP are desdrtrdow:

Level I—Quoted prices in active markets for identical &sse liabilities.
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Level Il—Prices are determined using other significant nlag®e inputs. Observable inputs are inputs tha¢omarket
participants would use in pricing a security. Thesgy include quoted prices for similar securitiaggrest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others.

Level lll—Prices are determined using significant unobsdeviaiputs. In situations where quoted prices orobsble inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment at the endnef period) unobservable inputs may
used.

Unobservable inputs reflect our own assimngtabout the factors that market participantsldase in pricing an asset or liability, and
would be based on the best information available.

Any changes to the valuation methodologyls reviewed by management to ensure the chargaparopriate. The methods we use
produce a fair value calculation that may not liicative of net realizable value or reflective ofure fair values. Furthermore, while we
anticipate that our valuation methods are apprtpaad consistent with other market participatis,use of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffiagincial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. We
use inputs that are current as of the measurenag¢at \@hich may include periods of market disloaatiduring which price transparency may
reduced.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit

As required by GAAP, the Company recordislativatives on the balance sheet at fair valle dccounting for changes in the fair value
of derivatives depends on the intended use of ¢hiwative, whether the Company has elected to dasiga derivative in a hedging relations
and apply hedge accounting and whether the hedglaionship has satisfied the criteria necessagpply hedge accounting. Derivatives
designated and qualifying as a hedge of the expdsuthanges in the fair value of an asset, lighitir firm commitment attributable to a
particular risk, such as interest rate risk, amesatered fair value hedges. Derivatives designatetiqualifying as a hedge of the exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows, or otlyges of forecasted transactions, are considexskl ffow hedges. Derivatives may also be
designated as hedges of the foreign currency expada net investment in a foreign operation. Hedgcounting generally provides for the
matching of the timing of gain or loss recognitmmthe hedging instrument with the recognitionhef thanges in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the dpedirisk in a fair value hedge or the earningsceféé the hedged forecasted transactions in a cast
flow hedge. We may enter into derivative contrdlotg are intended to economically hedge certamuofrisks, even though hedge accounting
does not apply or we do not elect to apply hedgewaating. The designation of derivative contragti@dges, the measurement of their
effectiveness, and the estimate of the fair vafube contracts all may involve significant judgneby our management, and changes to those
judgments could significantly impact our reportedults of operation:

Income Taxe

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uthge€ode for federal income tax purposes. We gdlgenust distribute annually at least 90%
of our taxable income, subject to certain adjustsiand excluding any net capital gain, in orderfégleral corporate income tax not to apply to
our earnings that we distribute. To the extent #imasatisfy this distribution requirement, but dinite less than 100% of our taxable income,
we will be subject to federal corporate incomedaxour undistributed taxable income. Our qualifimatas a REIT also depends on our ability
to meet various other requirements imposed by tideCwhich relate to organizational structure, diitg of stock ownership and certain
restrictions with regard to owned assets and caiegof income. Many of the REIT requirements aghly technical and complex, and if we
fail to qualify as a REIT we would be subject toitdd States federal corporate income tax on owlikxincome.
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The Company formed several TRSs in 20l@doice the impact of the prohibited transactionatac to avoid penalty for the holding of
assets not qualifying as real estate assets fpopas of the REIT asset tests. Any income assdoiith a TRS is fully taxable because a TRS
is subject to federal and state income taxes asreesitic C corporation based upon its taxable income

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2603, Reconsideration of Effective Control for RepurchAgeeements This update revises
the criteria for assessing effective control fgyuehase agreements and other agreements thatiit@th and obligate a transferor to
repurchase or redeem financial assets beforentadinrity. The update will be effective for the Caang on January 1, 2012, early adoption is
prohibited, and the amendments will be applied pectvely to transactions or modifications of exigttransactions that occur on or after the
effective date. We do not believe that the adoptibtiis standard will have a material impact on fimancial position or results of operations.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2041 fxair Value Measurement: Amendments to Achieve Contrat Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFR®$s update amends the existing fair value guiddn improve consistency in the
application and disclosure of fair value measuramenU.S. GAAP and International Financial RepugtStandards. ASU 2011-04 provides
certain clarifications to the existing guidancearges certain fair value principles, and enhanissdodure requirements. The update will be
effective for the Company on January 1, 2012, eadlyption is prohibited, and the amendments wikhpplied prospectively to transactions or
modifications of existing transactions that occaroo after the effective date. We have not comgleter evaluation as to whether the adoption
of this standard will have a material impact on famancial position or results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued amendé&thgce which will enhance disclosures requiredty. GAAP by requiring improved
information about financial instruments and deliv@instruments that are either (1) offset or (@)ject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement, irrespectivelwdther they are offset. This information will erebkers of an entity's financial statemen
evaluate the effect or potential effect of nettamgangements on an entity's financial positioniuding the effect or potential effect of rights of
setoff associated with certain financial instrunsesntd derivative instruments. An entity is requite@pply the amendments for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after Januar®Q1,3, and interim periods within those annual gisidAn entity should provide the
disclosures required by those amendments retragplctor all comparative periods presented. Weiarie process of evaluating the impact
that this guidance will have on the consolidatedficial statement disclosures.

Results of Operations

Net income attributable to Starwood Propé@rust, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2044 approximately $119.4 million or $1.38
per weighted-average share of basic common stdcB&®liluted), more than double the $57.0 millior$d.16 per weighted-average share of
basic common stock ($1.14 diluted) for the yeareendecember 31, 2010. The net loss for the pendeé@ December 31, 2009 was
$3.0 million or a loss of $0.06 per weightaderage share of basic and diluted common stoakthgourposes of this analysis, the period e
December 31, 2009 is excluded as it representogippately four months of operating activity ancist comparable with 2010 and 2011. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, net interestimiaxgeased $98.5 million from the prior year,ulisg from increases in interest income
$111.5 million and interest expense of $13.0 millidhe increase in net interest margin is primatilg to increased investment activity. From
December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2011, the carmatue of our investments in loans increased &h&t billion, other investments
increased a net $30.2 million and MBS securitiegselgsed by $55.9 million. The
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increase in interest expense resulted primarilgnftbe four new financing facilities entered intonc@ December 31, 2010, with a resulting
increase in the total secured financing balancstantling of $523.9 million. As of December 31, 20ddr target portfolio of investments was
generating a weighted-average levered return daZannually compounded) and the weighted-averageaf the secured financings was
3.6%, including the impact of interest rate hedges.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, meesiment expenses increased by $20.9 million ttaprior year. The year over year
increases were primarily due to increases in tise beanagement fee of $10.1 million, stock compenrsakpense of $5.9 million, acquisition
and investment pursuit costs of $2.2 million andegal and administrative costs of $2.6 million. Tiherease in the base management fee was
primarily due to our supplemental equity raiseDecember 2010 and May 2011 with net proceeds of $4illion and $475.4 million,
respectively. In connection with the December 28d0plemental equity raise, our Manager was graantegidditional 1,075,000 restricted st
units, resulting in higher stock compensation expen the subsequent periods. The increase ingtigniand investment pursuit costs and
general and administrative expenses are primattifjpated to the Company's increased size, asagelhe volume of transactions and the
increase in professional fees such as legal, andittonsulting, resulting from the growing investingortfolio.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, Wedwlized gains from the sale of investments df@2nillion, of which $10.7 million related
to the sale of MBS securities and other investmants$10.3 million related to the sale of loans. e year ended December 31, 2010, we
realized gains from the sale of investments of &hdillion, of which $2.3 million related to the sabf MBS and other investments and $9.3
million related to the sale of loans. Realized gdiom MBS and other investments primarily relatstrategic sales of RMBS and CMBS in
2011 and 2010. In 2011, we sold seven loans intosparate securitization vehicles and sold twodoa a private sale and in 2010, sold three
loans into a securitization vehicle, representmgrealized gains on loans for each year, respygtiRefer to Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report for miofermation on loan securitization and sale atiggi For the year ended December 31, 2
we had net gains on currency hedges of $4.5 millizh unrealized foreign currency remeasurementdb$8.5 million, compared to net losses
on currency hedges of $7.5 million and unrealizméifjn currency remeasurement gain of $6.1 milliom the prior year. The flip in the
currency hedge and foreign currency remeasurenzns @nd losses year over year was primarily dwelgtility and the depreciation of the
Euro on our Euro denominated loan as a resultoEtiropean sovereign debt crisis in 2011. For #a gnded December 31, 2011, we had net
losses on interest rate hedges of $27.1 millionreetdyains on credit spread hedges of $2.4 milNda.have historically used the securitization
markets as a source of advantageously pricedrexmurse, matched term financing for many of thedirate first mortgage loans we origini
Our business model is to originate the whole laath either securitize or sell a senior portion & ban, leaving us with a higher yielding
subordinate loan component. Earlier in 2011, ireffort to improve the competitive position of oupwing direct origination platform, we also
began originating sell-all fixed rate conduit loamsere the entire balance of the loan was tardeteshle into the securitization markets. The
losses on interest rate hedges stem from declingivalue of our held-for-sale conduit loans ezldted derivatives that resulted from the
extreme disruption experienced by the CMBS markeieslate June 2011 and have suspended our cquldtidrm as a result. As of
December 31, 2011, we had six held-for-sale coridaits remaining that were in an unrealized gasitjpm of $5.8 million. OTTI charges
related to our RMBS securities were $6.0 milliontfee year ended December 31, 2011 and other inegameb2.7 million.
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The diluted per share amounts of our istengargin and expenses for the years ended Deceédtb2011 and 2010 and the period ended
December 31, 2009 were as follows (amounts in #ods except per share data):

For the Year Ended For the Period Ended
Per Diluted Per Diluted Per Diluted
2011 Share 2010 Share 2009 Share
Net interest margir
Cash coupon
received from
loans $ 151,00¢ $ 178 $ 6520 $ 1.3C $ 2,141 $ 0.0t
Constant yield
adjustments on
loans(1) 28,34¢ 0.3t 6,33¢ 0.1: 31¢ 0.01
Cash coupol

received from

mortgage-backec

securities 8,95¢ 0.1C 14,72t 0.2¢ 4,141 0.0¢
Constant yielc

adjustments on

mortgage-backec

securities(2 16,66 0.1¢ 7,25¢ 0.1t 327 0.01
Cash interest
expense (25,009 (0.29  (15,14) (0.30 (1,889 (0.09)
Amortization of dek
issuance cos! (3,780 (0.09) (64€) (0.01) (20 (0.00
Net interes
margin 176,19: 2.04 77,73t 1.5¢ 5,02 0.1z
Expenses
Management fee 38,89¢ 0.4t 22,77" 0.4¢ 7,471 0.1¢

Acquisition and
investment pursu

costs 2,571 0.0z 37¢ 0.01 66 0.0C
General and

administrative 9,45( 0.11 6,89¢ 0.14 1,74¢ 0.0¢4

Total expense 50,92( 0.5¢ 30,05 0.61 9,28¢ 0.2C

Income before other
income (expenses)
and taxe: $ 125,27. $ 14t $ 47,68 $ 0.9t $ (4,269 $ (0.0¢)

1) Represents the aggregate adjustments necessagognize income from loans on a constant yieldshagiich is
comprised primarily of discount accretion, but alstludes the amortization of loan fees and costs.

2 Represents the aggregate adjustments necessagognize income from MBS on a constant yield basgéch is
comprised primarily of discount accretic

The overall increase in net interest mafgirover the three year period is due to the nfioitedeployment of our capital during each year.
Management fees per diluted share for 2011 and 264 @igher than 2009 due to our Manager earnirigamtive fee in those years.
Acquisition and investment pursuit costs per didiusbare have increased during the three periodsodihe increased size/volume of
transactions being pursued. General and administrakpenses per diluted share decreased in 2012010 as a result of our efforts to
control costs such that our overhead-related dw@ste not increased proportionately with the eqthigt has been raised.

Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2011

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by8frifion during the year ended December 31, 20tk decrease resulted from cash used in
investing activities of $1.0 billion, offset by d¢aprovided from operating activities of $79.4 nailiand financing activities of $809.8 million.
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Net cash provided from operating activifiesthe year ended December 31, 2011 of approxiyn&79.4 million, includes $270.1 million
used for the origination of loans held-for-sale 284.1 million in proceeds from the sale of lohe&l for sale. The net income for the period
was approximately $120.6 million. The adjustmentsiion-cash charges, including stock-based comfiensacentive fee stock
compensation, accretion of deferred loan fees &ubdnts, amortization of deferred financing coatgretion of net discount on MBS and
accretion of premium from collateralized debt oltigns decreased cash by $27.2 million. The nat@hén operating assets and liabilities
decreased cash flows from operating activitiesgpraximately $29.4 million. This amount is compdsa a $3.3 million increase in cash
attributable to related party payable, and a deerednearly $32.7 million from accrued interesieigable, other assets, accounts payable and
accrued expenses and other liabilities. The naetgh@ unrealized gains on loans heldgate at fair value of $5.8 million and unrealizedng
on currency hedges of $5.8 million was offset lneaiunrealized loss on interest hedges of $11.Bomind unrealized foreign currency
remeasurement losses of $6.5 million. Additional, recognized realized gains of $10.7 million frtra sale of available-for-sale securities
and $10.3 million from the sale of loans held fales Lastly, for the year ended December 31, 2@&lhad OTTI charges on our RMBS
securities of $6.0 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for year ended December 31, 2011 totaled $1.0m#iial related primarily to the acquisition and
origination of new loans held-for-investment of&billion, new MBS of $208.4 million, other investmts of $37.1 million, purchase of
derivative contracts of $7.6 million and purchasgdrest of approximately $2.1 million offset byopeeds received from the sale of MBS of
$287.4 million, principal repayments on loans an@3/bf $26.9 million and $113.9 million, respectiyeMBS maturities of $27.1 million, lo:
maturities of $305.3 million, proceeds from theesafl loans held for investment of $47.5 millionppeeds from the sale of other investment
$2.8 million, proceeds from other investment repagta of $0.7 million and net proceeds from the aken of treasury shorts of $0.1 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities the year ended December 31, 2011 related ptyrtar$1.6 billion of borrowings from our
secured financing facilities, gross proceeds freamammmon stock offering of $476.7 million and admitions from non-controlling interests
of $5.2 million, offset by dividend payments to atockholders of $142.9 million, repayments on baings of $1.1 billion, payment of
underwriting costs of $28.3 million, distributiottsnon-controlling interests of $9.3 million, tremg stock purchases of $10.6 million and the
payment of deferred financing costs of $4.9 million

For the year ended December 31, 2010

Cash and cash equivalents were $226.9omifls of December 31, 2010, down from $645.1 milis of December 31, 2009. The $418.2
million decrease was primarily attributable to istraent activity totaling approximately $1.2 billiéor the year. Financing activities provided
net cash of nearly $847.1 million and operatingvitets decreased cash by approximately $99.7 onilfor fiscal year 2010.

Net cash used in operating activities far year ended December 31, 2010 was approxima@8ly $nillion, which includes $143.4
million for the purchase of loans held-for-salel dther operating activities increased cash by &43illion, including approximately $1.8
million of operating income attributable to non-tmtiing interests. The net income for the periocasvapproximately $58.8 million. Non-cash
charges for stock-based compensation, amortizafideferred loan fees and discounts, amortizatfateterred financing costs and
amortization of net discount on MBS decreased bgs$5.4 million. The net change in operating asaattliabilities increased cash flows by
$0.6 million and consisted of an $8.8 million inase in accounts payable and accrued expensegdrekaty payable and other liabilities and a
decrease in interest receivables and other assg8&2million. The net change in unrealized losscarrency hedges and interest rate swap
remeasurement gain on foreign currency denomireteets of $1.4 million was offset by realized gainghe sale of loans of $9.3 million,
realized gains on the sale of available-for-sateigges of $2.1 million and realized gains on Hae of other investments of $0.3 million.
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Net cash used in investing activities for year ended December 31, 2010 totaled $1.2#id related primarily to the acquisition of
new loans held-for-investment of $1.2 billion, newrtgage-backed securities of $204.5 million, othgestments of $15.0 million and
purchased interest of $3.0 million offset by prate&om sales of MBS of $58.3 million, principapegyments on loans and MBS of $13.6
million and $38.8 million, respectively, loan matias of $114.7 million, proceeds from the sale$oains of $38.2 million and proceeds from
the sales of other investments of $2.0 million.

Net cash provided by financing activitiesidg 2010 related primarily to the approximate®79.0 million of net proceeds from the
borrowing the first repurchase agreement with Wedlsgo Bank, National Association ("Wells Farg&#$8.5 million from the second
repurchase agreement with Wells Fargo, $125.2anilliom the credit agreement with Bank of AmeriaA. (the "BAML Facility"), $5.0
million from a repurchase agreement with GoldmachSaviortgage Company, and $54.1 million of net peats from the loans sold to a
securitization trust. In addition, proceeds fromn Becember 2010 supplemental common stock offesfrgft53.8 million were offset by the
payment of dividends to our shareholders of $44lBom, repayments on borrowings of $69.4 milligpgyment of underwriting and offering
costs of $19.0 million, payment of $4.5 milliondeferred financing costs, and net distributionsdn-controlling interests of $1.3 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to eteur cash requirements, including ongoing committs to repay borrowings, fund and
maintain our assets and operations, make new imesds where appropriate, make distributions tosbarkholders, and other general business
needs. We use cash to purchase or originate ineessnrepay principal and interest on our borrowjmgake distributions to our stockholders
and fund our operations. We closely monitor ounilility position and believe that we have sufficiéquidity to and access to liquidity to meet
our financial obligations for at least the nextri@nths. Our primary sources of liquidity are asofok:

Cash Generated from Operating the Business, Inctu&iepayments

Cash from operations is generally comprisieidterest income from our investments, net of associated financing expense, principal
repayments from our investments, net of assocfatadcing repayments, proceeds from the sale afstiments, and changes in working ca|
balances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of December 31, 2011, we had cash asld equivalents of $114.0 million, including $0.1llran related to borrower reserve funds
maintained in an unrestricted account.

Potential Liquidation of Certain RMBS and CMBS Hosis

We regularly make certain investments inB8vWe have restricted these RMBS investments &maount that at all times is no greater
than 10% of our total assets. Expected duratiomgenerally 5 years or less and we have engadedigarty manager who specializes in
RMBS to assist us in managing this portfolio. ADafcember 31, 2011, our investments in RMBS and SMRBe classified as available-for-
sale and had a fair value of $164.9 million and@&&million, respectively.

Borrowings under Various Financing Arrangeme
We utilize a variety of financing arrangenteeto finance certain assets. We generally utilizee types of financing arrangements:

1) Repurchase Agreements:Repurchase agreements effectively allow utoolv against loans and securities that we own.
Under these agreements, we sell our loans andisesuo a
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2)

3)

counterparty and agree to repurchase the same doansecurities from the counterparty at a priagaetp the original sales
price plus an interest factor. The counterpartginstthe sole discretion over both whether to pasefthe loan and security from
us and, subject to certain conditions, the mark&iesof such loan or security for purposes of aeiteing whether we are
required to pay margin to the counterparty. Geherilthe lender determines (subject to certainditions) that the market val
of the collateral in a repurchase transaction ke&sahsed by more than a defined minimum amountyovdd be required to
repay any amounts borrowed in excess of the prazfut the revised market value multiplied by (iife applicable advance re
During the term of a repurchase agreement, wevedke principal and interest on the related Iaats securities and pay
interest to the counterparty. As of December 3112@e have various repurchase agreements, wittiisletferenced in the
table provided below.

Bank Credit Facilities: We use bank credit facilities (including termahs and revolving facilities) to finance our asséhese
financings may be collateralized or non-collateradi and may involve one or more lenders. Credilitias typically have
maturities ranging from two to five years and magrae interest at either fixed or floating rates. @ecember 3, 2010, we
entered into a term loan credit agreement with Bafnkmerica, N.A. ("Bank of America") to financedfacquisition of a
$205.0 million participation in a senior securedenalue from certain special purpose entitieswreat formed to hold
substantially all of the assets of a worldwide apar of hotels, resorts and timeshare propertieduhe 2011, we exercised a
pre-existing right to convert the note into securiiie®rder to maximize the liquidity of our investniewWe therefore reclassifi¢
the loan, which had a carrying amount of $176.8iom) from loans held for investment to MBS, avhlfor-sale, at fair value.
The initial term of our bank facility, as statedtlre table below, is subject to further extensiasdal upon the satisfaction of
certain conditions at or prior to the time of s@sttension. Bank of America retains the sole dismnetsubject to certain
conditions, over the market value of such notepfmposes of determining whether we are requirgghjomargin to the Bank of
America.

Loan Sales/Syndications/Securitizatio We seek n¢-recourse lon-term financing from loan sales, syndications an
securitizations of our investments in mortgage $odihe sales/syndications/securitizations geneiallglve a senior portion of
our loan, but may involve the entire loan. Loaresand syndications generally involve the salesdrdor note component or
participation interest to a third party lender. @&zation generally involves transferring notesatspecial purpose vehicle (or
the issuing entity), which then issues one or notaisses of non-recourse notes pursuant to the @rarsindenture. The notes
are secured by the pool of assets. In exchangéddransfer of assets to the issuing entity, weiwe cash proceeds from the
sale of non-recourse notes. Sales/syndicationgitieations of our portfolio investments might méfgrour exposure to losses
on those portfolio investments because the retasnbdrdinate interest in any particular overalhl@zould be subordinate to the
loan components sold and we would, therefore, dbalbfosses sustained with respect to the ovérall before the owners of
the senior notes experience any losses with respdice loan in question.
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Summary of Financing Facilities as of December 32011 (amounts in thousands):

Wells Wells Goldman Bank of Wells Deutsche Deutsche Wells
Fargo | Fargo Il Sachs America Fargo IlI Bank | Bank Il Fargo IV
Bank Credit
Facility Type Repurchas: Repurchas Repurchas: Facility Repurchas: Repurchas: Repurchas: Repurchas:
Revolver No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes No
Identified Single Borrower Single Borrower Identified
Eligible Assets Loans Identified Loan Identified Loans Secured Not: Identified RMBS  Identified Loans Secured Not: Loans
Initial Maturity May-13 Aug-13 Dec-12 Nov-13 Mar-12 Jur-12 May-12 Dec-14
Extended Maturity(a) N/A Aug-15 N/A Nov-14 N/A Jur-14 N/A Dec-2016
LIBOR +1.75% LIBOR +1.95% to LIBOR +2.35% LIBOR+1.5% LIBOR+1.85% LIBOR +3.5% to LIBOR +
Pricing LIBOR + 3% to 6% 2.25% to 2.5% to 1.75% to 2.5% 5% 2.75%
Minimum Loss to Trigger a
Margin Call (b) (b) (e) $0 $250,00C $250,00C $0 (h)
Maximum Advance Rate on
Collateral (c) 75% 80% (c) (d) 85% 75% (d)
Pledged Asset Carrying
Value $162,27€ $630,771 $128,59: $176,78€ $136,784 $0 $164,717 $307,36¢
Maximum Facility Size $108,941 $550,00C $150,00C $119,004 $100,00C $150,00C $117,38¢ $236,00C
Outstanding Balance $108,941 $435,267 $92,125 $119,004 $86,575 $0 $117,34¢€ $144,25¢
Approved but Undrawn
Capacity(f) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $37 $0
Unallocated Financing Amt
(@) $0 $114,732 $57,875 $0 $13,425 $150,00C $0 $91,472
(@) Subject to certain conditions as defined in facidigreement.
(b) 35 bps of aggregate outstanding principal amount.
(c) Effectively not applicable as of December 31, 2@%there was no longer any borrowing capacity alksl
(d) There is no defined maximum advance rate undefahibty. The advance rates are determined seglgrédr each repurchase transaction.
(e) Margin deficit exists if the aggregate repurchaseepexceeds the aggregate sum for all assetegfrtiduct of (i) the advance rate for each assétptied by (ii) its fair value.
) Approved but undrawn capacity represents the tiga amount that has been approved by the lentigedeto the assets that have been pledged asecalldess the actual amol
that has been drawn.
(9) Unallocated financing amount represents the maxirfagifity size less the total draw capacity thas baen approved by the lender.
(h) Lesser of $1.0 million or 35 bps of aggregate auiding principal amount.

Summary of Total Financing Facility Ending Balancesas of December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Aggregate Pledged Asset Carrying Va

Aggregate Maximum Facility Siz
Less: Aggregate Outstanding Balal

Aggregate Undrawn Capaci
Aggregate Approved but Undrawn Capax
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$ 1,531,32
$ (1,10351)
$ 427,81
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Scheduled Principal Repayments on Investments &edh@ng on Financing Facilities

The following scheduled and/or projecteihgipal repayments on our investments were based thee amounts outstanding and
contractual terms of the financing facilities irfieet as of December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands)

Scheduled/Projected Projected Required Total Scheduled
Scheduled Principal Principal Repayments on Repayments Principal Repayments,
Repayments on Loans RMBS and CMBS of Financing net of financing
First
Quarter
2012 $ 481+ $ 19,01« $ (14,082 $ 9,74«
Seconc
Quarter
2012 196,21¢ 15,59¢ (120,71) 91,10:¢
Third
Quarter
2012 78,85 14,52 (60,959 32,42:
Fourth
Quarter
2012 42,07: 13,77+ (3,115 52,73:
Total $ 321,95 $ 62,90¢ $ (198,86) $ 186,00(

Other Potential Sources of Financing

In the future, we may also use other saiofdinancing to fund the acquisition of our targesets, including other secured as well as
unsecured forms of borrowing. We may also seekiserfurther equity capital or issue debt secwritieorder to fund our future investments.

Leverage Policies

We employ leverage, to the extent availatoléund the acquisition of our target assetsigase potential returns to our stockholders, or
provide temporary liquidity. Leverage can be eittiieect by utilizing private third party financingr indirect through originating, acquiring, or
retaining subordinated mortgages, B-notes, subateéhloan participations or mezzanine loans. Algfothe type of leverage we deploy is
dependent on the underlying asset that is beirsgnéied, we intend, when possible, to utilize levenabose maturity is equal to or greater than
the maturity of the underlying asset and minimzéhe greatest extent possible exposure to the aoyngf credit losses associated with any
individual asset. In addition, we intend to mitigaélhe impact of potential future interest rate éases on our borrowings through utilization of
hedging instruments, primarily interest rate swggeaments.

The amount of leverage we deploy for paféicinvestments in our target assets depends opoklianager's assessment of a variety of
factors, which may include the anticipated liquicdihd price volatility of the assets in our investrportfolio, the potential for losses and
extension risk in our portfolio, the gap betwees dluration of our assets and liabilities, includiregiges, the availability and cost of financing
the assets, our opinion of the creditworthinessusffinancing counterparties, the health of the.lé&®nomy and commercial and residential
mortgage markets, our outlook for the level, slape] volatility of interest rates, the credit qtyabf our assets, the collateral underlying our
assets, and our outlook for asset spreads relatitree LIBOR curve. Under our current repurchase@gents and bank credit facility, our total
leverage may not exceed 75% of total assets (&sed@f as adjusted to remove the impact of bonalfidn sales that are accounted for as
financings and the consolidation of variable ins¢emntities pursuant to GAAP. As of December 31,22®ur total debt to loan and MBS
investments was 41.5%.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Contractual obligations as of December2®1,1 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1to 3 years 3to 5 years 5 years
Secured financings, including
interest payable(e $ 1,151,57. $ 427,360 $ 724,20 $ — $ —
Liabilities of securitization trus 59,28’ 2,68: 5,761 50,84« —
Loan funding obligation 79,65¢ 44,90: 34,75¢ — —
Venture investment fundin
obligation 1,672 1,672 — — —
Total $ 1,292,18! $ 476,62 $ 764,720 $ 50,84¢ $ —

(@) For borrowings with variable interest rates, wedige rates in effect as of December 31, 2011 teroene the futur
interest payment obligation

The table above does not include amourgsudhder our management agreement or derivativeeagmets as those contracts do not have
fixed and determinable payments. In addition, #ide above does not give effect to the subsequent® described in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements in this report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2011, we did not haverafationships with unconsolidated entities ogfinial partnerships, such as entities often
referred to as structured investment vehiclespecisl purpose or variable interest entities, disfadd to facilitate off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or kahipurposes. Further, as of December 31, 2011 adebt guaranteed any obligations of
unconsolidated entities or entered into any comeitinor intent to provide additional funding to asuch entities.

Dividends

We intend to continue to make regular qréytdistributions to holders of our common stodkS. federal income tax law generally
requires that a REIT distribute annually at le@®%%f its REIT taxable income, without regard te theduction for dividends paid and
excluding net capital gains, and that it pay tasegular corporate rates to the extent that it alipudistributes less than 100% of its net taxable
income. We intend to continue to pay regular quirtdividends to our stockholders in an amount agpnating our net taxable income, if and
to the extent authorized by our board of directBefore we pay any dividend, whether for U.S. fatlexcome tax purposes or otherwise, we
must first meet both our operating requirementsdetat service on our debt. If our cash availabtedfstribution is less than our net taxable
income, we could be required to sell assets oolofunds to make cash distributions or we may neakgertion of the required distribution in
the form of a taxable stock distribution or distion of debt securities.

Our board of directors declared a divideh#0.42 per share of common stock for the quaneled March 31, 2011 on March 1, 2011.
The dividend was paid on April 15, 2011 to commtwtkholders of record as of March 31, 2011. Theth@dso declared a dividend of $0.44
per share of common stock for the quarter ended 30n2011. The dividend was paid on July 15, 20ldommon stockholders of record as of
June 30, 2011. The board further declared a didid#r$0.44 per share of common stock for the quanieed September 30, 2011. The
dividend was paid on October 14, 2011 to commocks$tolders of record as of September 30, 2011. OreMber 4, 2011, the board declar
dividend of $0.44 per share of common stock forgharter ended December 31, 2011. The dividendoambson January 13, 2012 to common
stockholders of record as of December 31, 2011.
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The tax treatment for our aggregate diatiims per share of common stock paid with resfge2011 is as follows:

Total 2011 Ordinary Taxable
Distribution Taxable Qualified Capital Gain  Unrecaptured Nondividend
Record Date  Payment Date  Per Share Dividends Dividends(1) Distribution 1250 Gain(2) Distributions(3)

12/31/201¢ 1/17/2011 $ 0.281¢< $ 0.196: $ 0.002¢ $ 0.019¢ $ — $ 0.0657
3/31/2011 4/15/2011 0.420C  0.292¢ 0.003¢ 0.029: — 0.098(
6/30/2011 7/15/2011 0.440C  0.306¢ 0.004: 0.030¢ — 0.1027
9/30/2011 10/15/201: 0.440C  0.306¢ 0.004: 0.030¢ — 0.1021

$ 1581/ $1.102¢ $ 0.014° $ 0.109¢ $ — $ 0.369:

(1)  Amounts in 1b are included in 1a.
(2) Amounts in 2b are included in 2a.

3) Amounts in 3 are also known as Return of Capital.

As the Company's aggregate distributiorceeded its earnings and profits, the January 2&t&@mition declared in the fourth quarter of
2011 and payable to shareholders of record as cémber 31, 2011 will be treated as a 2012 disidbuor federal tax purposes.

On February 29, 2012, our board of directtgclared a dividend of $0.44 per share for tts¢ duarter of 2012, which is payable on
April 13, 2012 to common stockholders of recorfsarch 30, 2012.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Core Earnings is a non-GAAP financial measWe calculate Core Earnings as GAAP net incdoss) excluding non-cash equity
compensation expense, the incentive fee due ungdenanagement agreement, depreciation and amdaotizeftreal estate (to the extent that
we own properties), any unrealized gains, lossegtmr non-cash items recorded in net income feperiod, regardless of whether such items
are included in other comprehensive income or loisB) net income. The amount is adjusted to exeloide-time events pursuant to changes in
GAAP and certain other non-cash charges as detedin our Manager and approved by a majority ofindependent directors.

We believe that Core Earnings providesdditinal measure of our core operating performdnceliminating the impact of certain non-
cash expenses and facilitating a comparison ofinancial results to those of other comparable REATth fewer or no non-cash charges and
comparison of our own operating results from petmgeriod. Our management uses Core Earningssmidy, and also uses Core Earnings to
compute the incentive fee due under our manageaggaement. The Company believes that its invesiessuse Core Earnings or a
comparable supplemental performance measure taatesnd compare the performance of the Companitsipders, and as such, the
Company believes that the disclosure of Core Egmis useful to (and expected by) its investors.

However, the Company cautions that Coraniags does not represent cash generated from apgeattivities in accordance with GAAP
and should not be considered as an alternativettmoome (determined in accordance with GAAPgmindication of our cash flow from
operating activities (determined in accordance W@&HAP), a measure of our liquidity, or an indicatiof funds available to fund our cash
needs, including our ability to make cash distiitms. In addition, our methodology for calculati@gre Earnings may differ from the
methodologies employed by other REITs to calculatesame or similar supplemental performance measand accordingly, our reported
Core Earnings may not be comparable to the Coneifiggs reported by other REITSs.
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Our Core Earnings (loss) for the years dridecember 31, 2011 and 2010 and the period endedriber 31, 2009 were approximately
$146.6 million, $67.2 million and ($0.6) millionseectively, or $1.70 and $1.34 per weighted-aveshigee, diluted and ($0.01) per weighted-
average share, basic. The table below providesamediation of net income to Core Earnings forsag@eriods:

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) to Core Earning (Loss):

Year Ended Per Year Ended Per Period Ended Per
(Amounts in thousands, December 31, Diluted December 31, Diluted December 31, Diluted
except per share data) 2011 Share 2010 Share 2009 Share

Net income (loss

attributable to

Starwood Property

Trust, Inc $ 11937 $ 1.3¢ $ 57,04¢ $ 114 $ (3,017 $ (0.06)
Unrealized gain on loal

held for sale at fair

value (5,760 (0.09) — 0.0C — 0.0C
Unrealized loss o

interest rate hedge¢ 11,287 0.1z 55 0.0C — 0.0C
Otherthar-temporary

impairment 6,001 0.0¢ — 0.0C — 0.0C
Unrealized foreign

currency loss (gair 6,51¢ 0.0¢ (6,050 (0.12) — 0.0C
Unrealized (gain) loss

on currency hedge (5,755 (0.09) 7,38: 0.1t — 0.0C
Management incentiv

fee 1,17¢ 0.01 1,23t 0.0Z — 0.0
Non-cash stock-based

compensatiol 13,74 0.1€ 7,522 0.1t 2,421 0.0t

Core Earnings (Lost $ 146,58¢ $ 1.7C $ 67,191 $ 134 % (596) $ (0.01)

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We seek to manage our risks related tatbdit quality of our assets, interest rates, iyj prepayment speeds and market value while,
at the same time, seeking to provide an opportuaigtockholders to realize attractive risk-adjdsteturns through ownership of our capital
stock. While we do not seek to avoid risk completele believe the risk can be quantified from hisl experience and seek to actively
manage that risk, to earn sufficient compensatigngtify taking those risks and to maintain cdgiaels consistent with the risks we
undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to varying degrees of cnéslitin connection with our investments. While @@ not expect to encounter significant credit
risk in our Agency RMBS assets, we have exposupeddit risk on the mortgage assets and underlyinggage loans in our non-Agency
RMBS and CMBS portfolios as well as other assets. @anager seeks to manage credit risk by perfagrdaep credit fundamental analysit
potential assets. Credit risk is also addresseditir our Manager's on-going surveillance, and iimvests are monitored for variance from
expected prepayments, defaults, severities, lassgsash flow on a monthly basis.

Our investment guidelines do not limit #raount of our equity that may be invested in apetgf our target assets; however, not more
than 25% of our equity may be invested in any iittligl asset, without the consent of a majority wf imdependent directors. Our investment
decisions depend on prevailing market conditiordsrany change over time in response to opporturdti@diable in different interest rate,
economic and credit environments. As a result, amnot predict the percentage of our equity thdthelinvested in any of our target assets at
any given time.
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At December 31, 2011, the S&P ratings of our MBS ptiolio were as follows (amounts in thousands):

At December 31, 2010, the S&P ratings of our MBS ptfolio were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Interest Rate Ris

S&P Rating Ce/r;lyﬂr;g Percentage
AA+ $ 86 0.C%
AA 1,22 0.4%
AA- 5,39¢ 1.€%
A 4,83¢ 1.4%
A- 3,37¢ 1.C%
BBB+ 5,55¢ 1.€%
BBB 121 0.C%
BB+ 4,51z 1.2%
BB 3,981 1.2%
BB- 4,40(C 1.2%
B+ 5,29: 1.5%
B 5,40t 1.€%
B- 9,11( 2.7%
CCC 99,44¢ 29.1%
CcC 6,344 1.5%
D 3,58: 1.C%
NR 179,05¢ 52.48%

Total MBS $ 341,73« 100.(%

Carryin
S&P Rating Valsijeg Percentage
AAA $ 215,72: 54.2%
AA+ 324 0.1%
AA- 43 0.C%
A 25E 0.1%
BBB 5,36¢ 1.2%
BBB- 1,692 0.4%
BB+ 24,94 6.2%
BB 48,23: 12.1%
BB- 8,56: 2.2%
B+ 19,56¢ 4.9%
B 5,57: 1.4%
B- 36,05¢ 9.1%
CCC+ 4,28¢ 1.1%
CCC 14,50: 3.6%
CCC- 10,64( 2.7%
CC 70C 0.2%
D 1,204 0.2%
Total MBS $ 397,68 100.(%

Interest rates are highly sensitive to miagyors, including fiscal and monetary policiesl @mmestic and international economic and
political considerations, as well as other factmggond our

62




Table of Contents

control. We are subject to interest rate risk inrexction with our investments and the related foirag obligations. In general, we finance the
acquisition and/or origination of our target assktsugh financings in the form of warehouse fée#ti, bank credit facilities (including term
loans and revolving facilities), securitizationglaepurchase agreements. We mitigate interestiskté¢hrough utilization of hedging
instruments, primarily interest rate swap agreesdnterest rate swap agreements are utilizeddgénagainst future interest rate increases on
our borrowings and potential adverse changes indhee of certain assets that result from interatst changes.

Interest Rate Effect on Net Interest Mar

Our operating results depend in large pardifferences between the income earned on oestments and our cost of borrowing and
hedging activities. The cost of our borrowings éngrally based on prevailing market interest rddesing a period of rising interest rates, our
borrowing costs generally may increase (1) whiteyttelds earned on our leveraged fixed-rate moggesgets remain static and (2) at a faster
pace than the yields earned on our leveraged filgatite mortgage assets, which could result inclirgiein our net interest margin. The seve
of any such decline would depend on our assetilialsomposition at the time as well as the magiétand duration of the interest rate
increase. Further, an increase in short-term iateeges could also have a negative impact on tirkehvalue of our target assets. If any of
these events happen, we could experience a deéneaseincome or incur a net loss during theséopler which could adversely affect our
liquidity and results of operations. Hedging tecjugs are partly based on assumed levels of prepagroEour investments. If prepayments
slower or faster than assumed, the life of thestment would be longer or shorter, which would the effectiveness of any hedging
strategies we may use and may cause losses oftranshctions.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ri

We have funded a portion of our acquisitidmortgage loans and MBS with borrowings thatlzased on LIBOR, while the interest rates
on these assets may be indexed to LIBOR or anotlek rate, such as the one-year Constant Mattirggsury ("CMT") index, the Monthly
Treasury Average ("MTA") index or the 11th Districost of Funds Index ("COFI"). Accordingly, any iease in LIBOR relative to one-year
CMT rates, MTA or COFI may result in an increaseim borrowing costs that may not be matched bgreesponding increase in the interest
earnings on these assets. Any such interest ¢ imismatch could adversely affect our profitapilivhich may negatively impact
distributions to our stockholders. To mitigate et rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgireggesiies discussed above.

Our analysis of risks is based on our M@anagexperience, estimates, models and assumplibase analyses rely on models which ut
estimates of fair value and interest rate sensgjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiordetisions by the Manager may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimatnd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults.

Prepayment Ris

Prepayment risk is the risk that princigdl be repaid at a different rate than anticipateslising the return on certain investments to be
less than expected. As we receive prepaymentdrafipal on our assets, any premiums paid on susétesire amortized against interest
income. In general, an increase in prepayment eateslerates the amortization of purchase premitimseby reducing the interest income
earned on the assets. Conversely, discounts onasiselis are accreted into interest income. In gkraar increase in prepayment rates
accelerates the accretion of purchase discourgieltly increasing the interest income earned oagbets.
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Extension Ris

Our Manager computes the projected weightertage life of our assets based on assumptigasdiag the rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the mortgages or extend. If prepaynratds decrease in a rising interest rate envirohregxtension options are exercised, the
of the fixed-rate assets could extend beyond time & the secured debt agreements. This could aAaegative impact on our results of
operations. In some situations, we may be forcestlioassets to maintain adequate liquidity, witchld cause us to incur losses.

Fair Value Risk

The estimated fair value of our investméhistuates primarily due to changes in interetggand other factors. Generally, in a rising
interest rate environment, the estimated fair valuthe fixed-rate investments would be expectedettrease; conversely, in a decreasing
interest rate environment, the estimated fair vafuthe fixed-rate investments would be expecteid¢oease. As market volatility increases or
liquidity decreases, the fair value of our assedy tme adversely impacted. If we are unable to headbtain independent pricing to validate our
estimated fair value of the securities in our pitf the fair value gains or losses recorded andi&rlosed may be adversely affected.

Foreign Currency Ris

We intend to hedge our currency exposuresprudent manner. However, our currency hedgiagegies may not eliminate all of our
currency risk due to, among other things, uncetitgsrin the timing and/or amount of payments reegign the related investments, and/or
unequal, inaccurate, or unavailability of hedgepedectly offset changes in future exchange ratdslitionally, we may be required under
certain circumstances to collateralize our curremegges for the benefit of the hedge counterparttych could adversely affect our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2011, we had $128.8ionilbf GBP-denominated loan investments (usingtaeember 31, 2011 spot rate of 1.549).
Our historical cost related to these investments ataa spot rate of approximately 1.471. Duringl2@ide entered into a series of forward
contracts whereby we agree to sell an amount of @BBn agreed-upon amount of USD at various daresigh October 2013. These forward
contracts were executed to fix the USD amount oP&nominated cash flows expected to be receivedebompany related to the
Company's GBP-denominated loans. As of Decembe2(@ll1,, we had 12 such foreign exchange forwardraotst with a total notional value
of USD $153.5 million (using December 31, 2011 gpté of 1.549).

As of December 31, 2011, we had $56.0 anlibf EUR-denominated loan investments (using teeebnber 31, 2011 spot rate of 1.294).
Our historical cost related to these investments ataa spot rate of approximately 1.429. Duringl2@ide entered into a series of forward
contracts whereby we agreed to sell an amount & Eld an agreed upon amount of USD at various datesigh June of 2014. These forw.
contracts were executed to economically fix the USibunt of EUR-denominated cash flows expectectebeived by us related to our
mezzanine loan in Germany. As of December 31, 2@¢lhad 13 such foreign exchange forward contraittsa total notional value of USD
$83.7 million (using the December 31, 2011 spat wdtl.294).

Real Estatse

Commercial and residential mortgage assetsubject to volatility and may be affected adebrby a number of factors, including, but
not limited to, national, regional and local econoronditions (which may be adversely affectedrmjuistry slowdowns and other factors);
local real estate conditions; changes or continueakness in specific industry segments; constmaiality, age and design; demographic
factors; and retroactive changes to building oiilaintodes. In addition, decreases in
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property values reduce the value of the collatenal the potential proceeds available to a borraaezpay the underlying loans, which could
also cause us to suffer losses.

Inflation Risk

Virtually all of our assets and liabilitiese interest rate sensitive in nature. As a regudrest rates and other factors influence our
performance significantly more than inflation do€banges in interest rates may correlate withftioflarates and/or changes in inflation rates.
Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbeGAAP and our distributions are determinedooy board of directors consistent with
our obligation to distribute to our stockholderdeatst 90% of our REIT taxable income on an anbaals in order to maintain our REIT
qualification; in each case, our activities andabak sheet are measured with reference to histedsaand/or fair value without considering
inflation.

Risk Managemer

To the extent consistent with maintaining BREIT qualification, we seek to manage risk expego protect our portfolio of financial
assets against the effects of major interest tzages. We generally seek to manage this risk by:

. attempting to structure our financing agreementsatee a range of different maturities, terms, aimations and interest ra
adjustment periods;

. using hedging instruments, primarily interest t@p agreements but also financial futures, optionerest rate cap
agreements, floors and forward sales to adjusintieeest rate sensitivity of our investment poitia@nd our borrowings; and

. using loan sales, syndications, and securitizdtimncing to better match the maturity of our ficarg with the duration of our
assets.

The following table summarizes the net stagent income for a 12 month period and the chamfgr value of our investments and
indebtedness assuming an increase or decreas® dbs points in the LIBOR interest rate, bottuatdjd for the effects of our interest rate
hedging activities (amounts in thousands):

Variable-rate

Income (Expense) investments and 100 Basis Point 100 Basis Point
Subject to Interest Rate Sensitivity indebtedness Increase Decrease
Investment income from

variable-rate investments(l $  1,437,40! $ 16,02¢ $ (8,327)
Investment expense from

variable-rate indebtedness( (1,156,71)) (11,039 3,25¢
Net investment income fro

variable rate instrumen $ 280,68¢ $ 4,99: $ 5,06¢

Fixed-Rate
investments anc 100 Basis 100 Basis

Assets (Liabilities) Point Point
Subiject to Interest Rate Sensitivity (Par Amount) indebtedness Increase Decrease
Fair value of fixe-rate investment $ 1,393,73' $ (42,600 % 46,00:

Net fair value of fixe-rate instrument $ 1,393,73'$ (42,600 % 46,00:

(1) Assumes LIBOR rate decrease does not go below
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Starwood Property Trust, Inc.
Greenwich, CT

We have audited the accompanying conselitlhalance sheets of Starwood Property Trustamd subsidiaries (the "Company") as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related cdiasetl statements of operations, comprehensive ia¢wss), equity, and cash flows for-
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and tioa flevm August 17, 2009 (Inception) through Decem®1, 2009. Our audits al
included the financial statement schedule listetthénindex at Iltem 8. We also have audited the Goyp internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on @itsiablished iternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissibie Company's management is responsible for fivemgcial statements and the
financial statement schedule, for maintaining dffecinternal control over financial reporting, afud its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, includedthe accompanying Management Report on InteCoatrol over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements and financial statement scheshdean opinion on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our aaudit

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €ight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal coravelr financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaltdial statement presentation. Our a
of internal control over financial reporting incled obtaining an understanding of internal contx@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, testing and evalu#timgesign and operating effectiveness of intezoatrol based on the assessed risk. Our ¢
also included performing such other procedureseasamsidered necessary in the circumstances. isvbéhat our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed by, or underupersision of, the company's principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected g tcompany's board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(tt) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of tree&sof the company; (2) provide reasonable asseriat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial stateisin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptiinciples and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management amdtirs of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prereatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitiogse, or disposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of intg control over financial reporting, includingetbossibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatbtected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the
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risk that the controls may become inadequate beoafushanges in conditions, or that the degreeoftiance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and subsidiariesfd®egember 31, 2011 and 2010, and the resultsedf tiperations and their cash flows for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, and tiel fi|mm August 17, 2009 (Inception) through Decem®1, 2009 in conformity wit
accounting principles generally accepted in theté¢hStates of America. Also, in our opinion, suickafficial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidatedritial statements taken as a whole, presentg, fedrdll material respects, the information set
forth therein. Also, in our opinion, the Companyintained, in all material respects, effective intdrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on the criteria estallishaternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Parsippany, New Jersey
February 29, 2012
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

As of As of
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Assets:

Cash and cash equivale! $ 114,027 $ 226,85:

Receivable for securities sc — 22,21

Loans held for investmel 2,268,59! 1,230,78:

Loans held for sale at fair vall 128,59: 144,16:

Loans held in securitization tru 50,31¢ 50,291

Mortgage backed securities, availe-for-sale, at fai

value 341,73: 397,68(

Other investment 44,37¢ 14,17

Accrued interest receivab 15,17¢ 9,56¢

Derivative asset 12,81¢ 337

Other asset 21,801 5,33¢

Total Assets $ 2,997,44 $ 2,101,40!
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:

Payable for unsettled securities purche $ — 3 47,17¢

Accounts payable and accrued expet 5,051 5,52

Relater-party payable 8,34¢ 5,05(

Dividends payabli 41,43: 29,08:

Derivative liabilities 19,65: 9,40(

Secured financing agreements, 1,103,51 579,65¢

Collateralized debt obligation in securitizationgt 53,19¢ 54,08¢

Deferred offering cost — 27,19¢

Other liabilities 1,102 7,00(
Total Liabilities 1,232,301 764,17¢
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Equity:

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 per share, 100,000,000 s

authorized, no shares issued and outstar — —
Common stock, $0.01 per share, 500,000,000 shares

authorized, 93,811,351 issued and 93,185,501

outstanding as of December 31, 2011, and 71,021,3:

issued and outstanding as of December 31, : 93¢ 70€
Additional paic-in capital 1,828,31! 1,337,95:
Treasury stock (625,850 and nil shares as of Deeeib,

2011 and December 31, 2010 respectiv (10,642 —
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince (3,999 8,20:
Accumulated defici (55,129 (19,309

Total Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Stockholdergliiy 1,759,48! 1,327,56!
Non-controlling interests in consolidated subsidia 5,65¢ 9,66¢
Total Equity 1,765,14 1,337,22!

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 299744 % 2,101,40!

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(Amounts in thousands, except share and per shareath)

Net interest margin:
Interest income from mortga-backec
securities
Interest income from loar
Interest expens

Net interest margin

Expenses:

Management fees (including $13,4'
$7,420 and $2,393 for the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010,
and the period from inception to
December 31, 2009 of non-cash
stock-based compensation,
respectively’

Acquisition and investment pursuit
costs

General and administrative (includir
$250, $102 and $28 of non-cash
stock-based compensation,
respectively’

Total operating expense:

Income (loss) before other incom:

(expense) and income taxe

Interest income from cash balan:

Other income

Other-than temporary impairment
("OTTI"), net of $1,310 recognize:
in other comprehensive income
(loss) in 2011

Net gains on sales of investme

Net realized foreign currency (losst
gains

Net gains (losses) on currency hed

Net losses on interest rate hed

Net gains on credit spread hed:

Unrealized gains on loans held for ¢
at fair value

Unrealized foreign currenc
remeasurement (losses) ga

Income (loss) before income taxe
Income tax provisiol
Net Income (Loss)
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:
Net income (loss) attributable tc
Starwood Property Trust, Inc.

Net income (loss) per share ¢
common stock:
Basic

Diluted

For the Year
Ended
December 31, 2011

For the Year
Ended
December 31, 2010

Period from
August 17, 2009
(Inception) Through
December 31, 2009

$ 25,61¢ $ 21,987 $ 4,46¢
179,35 71,54: 2,45¢
(28,787) (15,78%) (1,90¢)
176,19 77,73¢ 5,02:

38,89¢ 22,77 7,471

2,571 37¢ 66

9,45( 6,89¢ 1,74¢

50,92( 30,05: 9,28¢

125,27 47,68 (4,269)

38¢ 1,26¢ 1,68¢

2,68¢ 13t —

(6,007) — —

20,99 11,62¢ —

(902) 57 —

4,491 (7,500) —

(27,130) (55) —

2,35¢ — —

5,76( — —

(6,519) 6,05( —

121,39 59,26¢ (2,58()

(790) (426) —

120,60 58,84 (2,58()

(1,23) (1,796) (437)

$ 119,37 $ 57,04¢ $ (3,017)
$ 1.3t $ 1.1 $ (0.06)
$ 136 $ 114 $ (0.06)




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Es)

(Amounts in thousands)

Period from
For the Year For the Year August 17, 2009
Ended Ended (Inception) to
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Net income (loss $ 120,60¢ $ 58,84: $ (2,580
Other comprehensive income (los
Change in fair value of cash flow
hedges 20k (1,625) —
Unrealized (loss) gain in fair value
availablefor-sale securitie (11,249 13,34: —
Reclassification adjustment for r
realized gains on sale of securit (8,29¢) (2,375) —
Reclassification for OTT 6,001 — —
Comprehensive income (los 107,26¢ 68,18 (2,580)

Less: Comprehensive income (los

attributable to non-controlling
interests (92 (2,935 437

Comprehensive Income (Loss

attributable to Starwood Property
Trust, Inc . $ 107,17¢ $ 65,24¢ $ (3,019

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

Total
Accumulated Starwood
Additional TrSete:Jsctliry other Property Non-
_— Accumulated comprehensive Trust, Inc. controlling
Paid-In Total
Shares Par _Capital Shares Amount Deficit Income Equity Interests  Equity

Common Stock

Balance at

August 17,

2009

(Inception) 0% —$ 1 —$ — 3 — $ —$ 1% —$ 1
Proceeds fror

public

offering of

common

stock 46,575,00 46€ 931,03: 931,50( 931,50(
Underwriting

and offering

costs (57,58¢) (57,58¢%) (57,58¢)
Proceeds fror

private

placemen 1,000,001 10 19,99( 20,00( 20,00(
Cancellation

of shares (200) Q) ) Q)
Stock-based

compensatit 8,80( 2,421 2,421 2,421
Net loss (3,017 (3,017 437 (2,580
Dividends

declarec (5,349 (5,349 (5,349
Contribution

from non-

controlling

interests 50,85¢ 50,85¢
Distribution to

non-

controlling

interests (43,229 (43,229
Balance at

December &

2009 47,583,80 47€ 895,85’ — — (8,366€) — 887,96 8,06¢  896,03!
Proceeds fror

public

offering of

common

stock 23,000,00 23C 453,56( 453,79( 453,79(
Underwriting

and offering

costs (18,98¢) (18,98¢) (18,98¢)
Stock-based

compensatit 437,54. 7,522 7,522 7,522
Net income 57,04¢ 57,04¢ 1,79¢ 58,84:
Dividends

declarec (67,987 (67,987 (67,987
Other

comprehens

income, ne 8,202 8,20: 1,13¢ 9,342
Contribution

from non-

controlling

interests 3,00z 3,00z
Distribution to

non-

controlling

interests (4,336 (4,336

Balance at

December :

2010 71,021,34 70€ 1,337,95: — — (19,309 8,20: 1,327,56! 9,66¢ 1,337,22!
Proceeds fror

public

offering of

common

stock 22,000,000 22C 476,50¢ 476,72t 476,72¢
Underwriting

and offering

costs (1,097 (1,097 (1,097
Stock-based

compensati 726,75+ 11 13,74 13,75 13,75¢
Managel




incentive fee

paid in stocl 63,25¢ 1 1,20¢ 1,207 1,207
Treasury stoc

purchasec 625,85( (10,647) (10,64 (10,64
Net income 119,37 119,37 1,231 120,60¢
Dividends

declarec (155,20 (155,20 (155,20
Other

comprehens

loss, ne (12,207 (12,20) (1,139 (13,340
Contribution

from non-

controlling

interests 5,23¢ 5,23¢
Distribution to

non-

controlling

interests (9,34)) (9,34))
Balance at

December &

2011 93,811,35 $93€ $1,828,31' 625,85( $(10,647) $ (55,129 $ (3,99¢)$1,759,48: $ 5,65¢ $1,765,14

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income (loss

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcprovided by (used in)

operating activities
Amortization of deferred financing cos
Accretion of net discount on mortgage backed séear{MBS)
Accretion of net deferred loan fees and disco
Accretion of premium from collateralized debt oklipns
Stocl-based compensatic
Incentive-fee compensatio
Gain on sale of availat-for-sale securitie
Gain on sale of loar
Gain on sale of other investmel
Unrealized gains on loans held for sale at faing
Unrealized losses on interest rate hec
Unrealized gains (losses) on currency hec
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement gairss¢is
OTTI
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Related party payab
Accrued interest receivable, less purchased irtt
Other asset
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Other liabilities
Origination of held for sale loar
Proceeds from sale of held for sale lo

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of mortga-backed securitie
Proceeds from sale of mortgi-backed securitie
Proceeds from mortga-backed securities maturiti
Mortgage-backed securities principal paydow
Origination and purchase of loans held for investr
Loan maturities
Proceeds from sale of loans held for investn
Loan investment repaymer
Purchased interest on investme
Investments in other investmel
Return of investment from other investm
Proceeds from sale of other investme
Purchase of treasury securit
Proceeds from sale of treasury securi
Cash deposited as collateral under treasury s@sulitan agreeme
Return of collateral under treasury securities lagreemen
Purchase of derivative contras

Net cash used in investing activitie

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Borrowings under secured financing agreem
Principal repayments on borrowings under securghfting arrangemen
Proceeds from collateralized debt obligations tusiéization trust
Payment of deferred financing co
Proceeds from common stock offeri
Payment of underwriting fees and offering cc
Purchase of treasury sto
Payment of dividend
Contributions from no-controlling interest owner
Distributions to no-controlling interest ownet

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid for intere:
Income taxes pai
Supplemental disclosure of r-cash investing and financing activitie
Dividends declared, but not yet p:
Unsettled securities trade receiva
Unsettled securities trade paya

For the

year ended
December 31

For the

year ended
December 31

For the
Period from
Inception to

December 31

2011 2010 2009
$ 12060 $ 58,84 $ (2,580)
3,78( 64€ 20
(18,07) (7,256) (347)
(26,96¢) (6,339 (318
(887) — —
13,74 7,52: 2,421
1,20¢ — —
(10,659 (2,119 —
(10,319 (9,259 —
27 (257) —
(5,760) — —
11,28 55 —
(5,75 7,38¢ —
6,51¢ (6,050 —
6,001 — —
3,20¢ 1,50+ 3,54¢
(10,989 (7,719 (1,67¢
(15,309) (459) (737
(476) 4,49: 1,03
(5,899 2,761 4,231
(270,06¢) (143,439 —
294,12¢ — —
79,40: (99,67) 5,59:
(208,38)) (204,509 (245,60)
287,35¢ 58,31: —
27,12¢ — —
113,91 38,83¢ 58
(1,558,69)  (1,208,81) (215,35))
305,31¢ 114,71 —
47 50( 38,16: —
26,93: 13,64 1,15
(2,119 (3,029) (501)
(37,089 (15,029 —
65E — —

2,84¢ 1,981 —
(112,619 — —
112,74 = =
(112,74) — —
112,74 = =
(7,559 — —
(1,002,05)  (1,165,71) (460,25)
1,604,02! 477,70! 171,57¢
(1,080,17) (69,44() (188)
= 54,08¢ =

(4,887) (4,469 (349
476,74( 453,79( 951,49
(28,28¢) (18,980 (30,399
(10,647 = =
(142,85)) (44,25() —
5,23¢ 3,00% 50,85¢
(9,349 (4,330 (43,229)
809,82, 847,101 1,099,78
(112,82) (418,27)) 645,121
226,85: 645,12 1

$ 11402 $ 22685 $ 645,12
$ 2519 $ 14,66 $ 1,617
$ 1,072 $ 632 =
$ 4143 $ 2008 $ 5,34¢
— $ 2221 —

— $ 4747 —



See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2011
1. Business and Organization

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. ("the Trusdbdether with its subsidiaries, "we" or the "Comy§ is a Maryland corporation that
commenced operations ("Inception™) on August 1 D20pon the completion of our initial public offeg. We are focused primarily on
originating, investing in, financing and managirmronercial mortgage loans and other commercialesiate debt investments. We also invest
in residential mortgage-backed securities ("RMBS8VE are externally managed and advised by SPT Mamext, LLC (the "Manager").

We are organized and conduct our operatmgsialify as a real estate investment trust ("REunder the Internal Revenue Code of 1¢
as amended (the "Code"). As such, we will generadtybe subject to U.S. federal corporate incometathat portion of our net income that is
distributed to stockholders if we distribute atse@0% of our taxable income to our stockholderptascribed dates and comply with various
other requirements.

We are organized as a holding companydbiatlucts our business primarily through three wholWned subsidiaries. In 2009, we formed
joint ventures (the "Joint Ventures") with Starwdddspitality Fund Il ("Hotel II") and Starwood Opitonity Fund VIII ("SOF VIII") in
accordance with the co-investment and allocatiorexgent with our Manager. The Joint Ventures aneeniv75% (and controlled) by us and
are therefore consolidated into our consolidatedrfcial statements. As of December 31, 2011, thesiments held by the Joint Ventures had
been sold and there were no remaining substangigeations.

As of December 31, 2011, investments witliateral in the hospitality, retail, and officeoperty sectors represented 39.9%, 21.0%, and
20.1% of our investment portfolio, respectivelycBuallocations could materially change in the fatur

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting and Principles of Consolidatic

The accompanying consolidated financiaiestents include our accounts and those of our didlased subsidiaries. Intercompany
amounts have been eliminated. The preparatiomah@ial statements in conformity with accountinpgiples generally accepted in the Uni
States of America ("GAAP") requires us to makereates and assumptions that affect the reported misiofiassets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements, as well as¢ported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Actual results cadiffer from those estimates. The most significamd aubjective estimate that we make is
estimating the cash flows that we expect to receiveur investments, which has a significant imgercthe amounts of interest income, credit
losses (if any), and estimated fair values thatepert and/or disclose.

A non-controlling interest in a consolidawubsidiary is defined as "the portion of the gg(net assets) in a subsidiary not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to a parent”. Non-controlfj interests are presented as a separate compufreaquity in the consolidated balance sheets.
In addition, the presentation of net income attelsiearnings to controlling and non-controllingenests.
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
As of December 31, 2011
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Segment Reportin
We are focused on originating and acquirege estate related debt investments and curreptiyate in one reportable segment.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cashrkdand short-term investments. Short-term investesnare comprised of highly liquid
instruments with original maturities of three mantir less. The Company maintains its cash andexgsialents in multiple financial
institutions and at times these balances exceetdty insurable limits.

Debt Securities

GAAP requires that at the time of purchase designate debt securities as held-to-matuwaitgtilable-forsale, or trading depending on
investment strategy and ability to hold such seéi@sito maturity. Held-to-maturity securities atated at cost plus any premiums or discounts,
which are amortized or accreted through the codatdd statements of operations using the effegtteeest method. Securities we (i) do not
hold for the purpose of selling in the near-term(iip may dispose of prior to maturity, are cldiesl as available-for-sale and are carried at fair
value in the accompanying financial statementsebiized gains or losses on available-for-sale #&siare reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive income (losspitkablders' equity. As of December 31, 2011 and20Lr commercial mortgage backed
securities ("CMBS") and RMBS were classified asilatde-for-sale. The classification of each invesiminvolves management's judgment,
which is subject to change.

When the estimated fair value of a secusitigss than its amortized cost, we consider wdrdtiere is an other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") in the value of the security. An impairmdas deemed an OTTI if (i) we intend to sell thewty, (ii) it is more likely than not that we
will be required to sell the security before reaovg our cost basis, or (iii) we do not expectéoaver the entire amortized cost basis of the
security even if we do not intend to sell the sigwar believe it is more likely than not that wéllvbe required to sell the security before
recovering our cost basis. If the impairment isrdeé to be an OTTI, the resulting accounting treatdepends on the factors causing the
OTTI. If the OTTI has resulted from (i) our intemti to sell the security, or (ii) our judgment titas more likely than not that we will be
required to sell the security before recovering @st basis, an impairment loss is recognized ireat earnings equal to the entire difference
between our amortized cost basis and fair valueer@és, if the OTTI has resulted from our conclusiat we will not recover our cost basis
even if we do not intend to sell the security diche it is more likely than not that we will bequired to sell the security before recovering our
cost basis, only the credit loss portion of theainpent is recorded in current earnings, and thigoof the loss related to other factors, such
as changes in interest rates, continues to be mexxjin accumulated other comprehensive inconss)ld-ollowing the recognition of an O1
through earnings, a new cost basis is establishretthé security. Determining whether there is afTOMay require us to exercise significant
judgment and make significant assumptions, inclgdiout not limited to, estimated cash flows, estedgrepayments, loss assumptions,
assumptions regarding changes
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
As of December 31, 2011
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

in interest rates. As a result, actual OTTI lossmdd differ from reported amounts. Such judgmemd assumptions are based upon a number
of factors, including (i) credit of the issuer detunderlying borrowers, (ii) credit rating of thecurity, (iii) key terms of the security,

(iv) performance of the underlying loans, includihgpt service coverage and loan-to-value ratigghg@ value of the collateral for the
underlying loans, (vi) the effect of local, indystand broader economic factors, and (vii) thednisal and anticipated trends in defaults and
loss severities for similar securities.

Loans Held for Investmen

Loans that are held for investment areiedrat cost, net of unamortized acquisition prengundiscounts, loan fees, and origination and
acquisition costs as applicable, unless the loemsl@emed impaired.

We evaluate each loan classified as helthfestment for impairment at least quarterly. &inment occurs when it is deemed probable
that we will not be able to collect all amounts deeording to the contractual terms of the loa. Ilfan is considered to be impaired, we re
an allowance to reduce the carrying value of tlam lim the present value of expected future castsfiliscounted at the loan's contractual
effective rate or the fair value of the collateratepayment is expected solely from the colldtera

Our loans are typically collateralized leplrestate. As a result, we regularly evaluateeitent and impact of any credit deterioration
associated with the performance and/or value ofittterlying collateral property, as well as thefinial and operating capability of the
borrower. Specifically, a property’'s operating tesand any cash reserves are analyzed and usegéss (i) whether cash from operations are
sufficient to cover the debt service requiremenitsently and into the future, (ii) the ability dfeé borrower to refinance the loan, and/or (iii) the
property's liquidation value. We also evaluatefthancial wherewithal of any loan guarantors aslaslthe borrower's competency in
managing and operating the properties. In additingconsider the overall economic environment, estdte sector, and geographic sudirket
in which the borrower operates. Such impairmentysea are completed and reviewed by asset managamefinance personnel, who utilize
various data sources, including (i) periodic finahdata such as property occupancy, tenant proélatal rates, operating expenses, the
borrower's exit plan, and capitalization and distaates, (ii) site inspections, and (iii) currenedit spreads and discussions with market
participants.

Upon completion of the process above, wekaled that no loans were impaired as of Decer@bg2011 or 2010. Significant judgment
is required when evaluating loans for impairmem¢réfore, actual results over time could be mdterifferent.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans that we intend to sell or liquidatehie short-term are classified as held-for-satbae carried at the lower of amortized cost ar fai
value, unless we have elected to record the |oafaéravalue at the time they were acquired undeafcial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") ASC Topic 825Financial Instruments Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financiatesnents for further disclosure regarding
loans held-for-sale.
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U.S. Treasury Securities Sold Short

In February 2011, in order to hedge thedotpf interest rate increases on the fair valueuofRMBS portfolio, we took short positions on
U.S. Treasury securities with durations similathtose expected within our RMBS portfolio. To execatr hedging strategy, we sold to a third
party $112.7 million in U.S. Treasury securitieatttvere simultaneously borrowed from our prime lerok he entire cash sale proceeds from
the third party were then immediately depositedhwitir prime broker as collateral for the U.S. Teegsecurities borrowing. On March 31,
2011, we purchased from a third party the samesefiU.S. Treasury securities that had been badoWwhe securities were then immediately
delivered to the prime broker in repayment of tbeusities borrowing, thereby settling the shortipims. We realized a gain from this strategy
of approximately $122 thousand, which is comprigkthe $194 thousand favorable movement in theepraf U.S. Treasury securities (from
our short position), offset by $72 thousand ofries that accrued on the securities during the tdrthe borrowing and transaction costs.

Revenue Recognitio

Interest income is accrued based on th&tanding principal amount and contractual termsurfloans and securities. Discounts or
premiums associated with the purchase of loansrams$tment securities are amortized or accretexliimierest income as a yield adjustmen
the effective interest method, based on expectsld ftaws through the expected maturity date ofséeurity. For loans that we have not ele:
to record at fair value under FASB ASC Topic 82fgioation fees and direct loan origination costs aso recognized in interest income over
the loan term as a yield adjustment using the g¥feinterest method. When we elect to record a ktefair value, origination fees and direct
loan costs are recorded directly in income anchataleferred.

Upon the sale of loans or securities, tteess (or deficiency) of net proceeds over thecaatying value of such loans or securities is
recognized as a realized gain (or loss).

Investments in Unconsolidated Entitie

We own non-controlling equity interestsvarious privately-held partnerships and limitedblidy companies. We use the cost method to
account for investments when we (i) own five peta@ress of and (ii) do not have significant irghce over the underlying investees. We use
the equity method to account for all other non-oaltihg interests in partnerships and limited ligicompanies. Cost method investments are
initially recorded at cost and income is generedigorded when distributions are received. Equityhoe investments are initially recorded at
cost and subsequently adjusted for our share ohiecor loss, as well as contributions made oribigions received.

We also own publicly-traded equity secestof certain companies in the real estate indugfeyhave virtually no influence over the
activities of these companies due to our minimahemship percentages. These investments are ciasasi available-for-sale and are reported
at fair value in the balance sheet, with unrealigaiths and losses reported as a component of cohgprehensive income (loss). Dividends on
our available-for-sale equity securities are reedrth the statement of operations on the recorel dat
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Investments in unconsolidated entitiesravéewed for impairment whenever events or chaimgegcumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment lssaeasured based on the excess of the carryingrdmban investment over its estimated
fair value. Impairment analyses are based on cuplans, intended holding periods and availablerimiation at the time the analyses are
prepared.

Securitization/Sale and Financing Arrangemen

We periodically sell our financial assetsch as commercial mortgage loans, CMBS and ofis&ts In connection with these transact
we may retain or acquire senior or subordinateer@sts in the related assets. Gains and lossagchriransactions are recognized using the
guidance in ASC 860Fransfers and Servicingwhich is based on a financial components appréizhfocuses on control. Under this
approach, after a transfer of financial assetsrests the criteria for treatment as a sale—lesgpdiion, ability of transferee to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets without constemidtiransferred control—an entity recognizes ihanicial assets it retains and any liabilities
it has incurred, derecognizes the financial agsées sold, and derecognizes liabilities whenrgished. We determine the gain or loss on
sale of mortgage loans by allocating the carryiaye of the underlying mortgage between securitidesans sold and the interests retained
based on their fair values, as applicable. The galoss on sale is the difference between the pesteeds from the sale and the amount
allocated to the securities or loans sold.

Acquisition and Investment Pursuit Cos

Net costs incurred in connection with acdiggi investments, as well as in pursuing unsuccégsfestment acquisitions and loan
originations, are charged to current earnings andieferred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Our assets and liabilities denominatedneifyn currencies are translated into U.S. doliaiag foreign currency exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. Income and expenses arslated at the weighted-average exchange rateadébrreporting period. As of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the GI&r evas the functional currency of all investmedenominated in foreign currencies.
The effects of translating the assets and anyliliaisi of our foreign investments are included imrealized foreign currency remeasurement
(loss) gain in the statements of operations.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially ®dbjus to concentrations of credit risk consistarily of cash investments, CMBS, RMBS, loan
investments and interest receivable. We may plask mvestments in excess of insured amounts wgthduality financial institutions. We
perform an ongoing analysis of credit risk concatidns in its investment portfolio by evaluatingpesure to various counterparties markets,
underlying property types, contract terms, tenaimtand other credit metrics.
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Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitie

GAAP provides the disclosure requiremeatsierivatives and hedging activities with the it provide users of financial statements
with an enhanced understanding of (a) how and whgrdity uses derivative instruments, (b) how thiitye accounts for derivative instruments
and related hedged items, and (c) how derivatisguments and related hedged items affect an &nfiityancial position, financial
performance, and cash flows. Further, we must peogualitative disclosures that explain our objediand strategies for using derivatives, as
well as quantitative disclosures about the faiueadf and gains and losses on derivative instrusneand disclosures about credit-risk-related
contingent features in derivative instruments.

We record all derivatives in the balanceettat fair value. The accounting for changes énfélir value of derivatives depends on the
intended use of the derivative, whether we havetedeto designate a derivative in a hedging ratatigp and have satisfied the criteria
necessary to apply hedge accounting under GAARv&tares designated and qualifying as a hedge®gttposure to changes in the fair value
of an asset, liability, or firm commitment attrilable to a particular risk, such as interest ratfle @re considered fair value hedges. Derivatives
designated and qualifying as a hedge of the expdsurariability in expected future cash flowsotiner types of forecasted transactions, are
considered cash flow hedges. Hedge accounting gignprovides for the matching of the timing of gair loss recognition on the hedging
instrument with the recognition of the changedim fair value of the hedged asset or liability tuat attributable to the hedged risk in a fair
value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedgestésted transactions in a cash flow hedge. Wdadgenter into derivative contracts that
are intended to economically hedge certain of @ksr even though the transactions may not quédifyor we may not elect to pursue, hedge
accounting. In such cases, changes in the faiewafithe derivatives are recorded in earnings.

Deferred Financing Cost:

Costs incurred in connection with obtaingagured financing arrangements are capitalizechamattized over the respective loan terms of
the respective facilities as a component of intezgpense. As of December 31, 2011 and Decemb&030, we had approximately
$5.0 million and $4.1 million, respectively, of éeghized financing costs, net of amortization. Bug years ended December 31, 2011 and :
approximately $3.8 million and $0.6 million, respreely, of amortization was included in interespexse on the statements of operations.

Earnings per share

We calculate basic earnings per share Wigidg net income (loss) attributable to the Comptor the period by the weighted-average of
shares of common stock outstanding for that peaftet consideration of the earnings allocated torestricted stock and restricted stock units,
which are participating securities as defined inAPADiluted earnings per share takes into effegtdilutive instruments, such as restricted
stock and restricted stock units, except when detmgould be anti-dilutive.
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Share-based payments

We recognize the cost of share-based cosgpen and payment transactions using the samensgmategory as would be charged for
payments in cash. The fair value of the restristedk or restricted stock units granted is recotdeskpense on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period for the award, with an offsettingrease in stockholders' equity. For grants to eygae and directors, the fair value is
determined based upon the stock price on the gatet For noremployee grants, the fair value is based on thekgitce when the shares vi
which requires the amount to be adjusted in eabkexyuent reporting period based on the fair valikeoaward at the end of the reporting
period until the award has vested.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT rstethd to comply with the Code with respect ther@iordingly, we will not be subject to
federal income tax as long as certain asset, incdimielend distribution and stock ownership testsraet. Many of these requirements are
technical and complex and if we fail to meet the=piirements we may be subject to federal, staté]acal income tax and penalties. A RE
net income from prohibited transactions is subje@ 100% penalty tax. We have two taxable REITsgliéries ("the TRSs") where certain
investments may be made and activities conductdijhmay have otherwise been subject to the pitgd transactions tax and (ii) may not be
favorably treated for purposes of complying witk tharious requirements for REIT qualification. Tiheome, if any, within the TRSs is subj
to federal and state income taxes as a domestirfgdi@tion based upon the TRSs' net income. D@, we recorded a provision for
income taxes of $0.8 million related to the acibstin our TRSs. These provisions were determirstgua Federal income tax rate of 34% and
state income tax rate of 7.5%. During 2010, we nded a provision for income taxes of $0.4 milli@tated to the activities in our TRSs, based
on a Federal income tax rate of 33% and state irdamrate of 7.5%. There was no income tax proridr 2009.

Underwriting Commissions and Offering Costs

Underwriting and offering costs incurretbted approximately $1.1 million in connection withr supplemental equity offering in May
2011, approximately $18.9 million in connectiontwibe supplemental equity offering in December 2@t approximately $57.6 million in
connection with our initial public offering in 2008nderwriting and offering costs are reflectechasduction in additional paid-capital in th
statement of equity.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2603, Reconsideration of Effective Control for RepurchAgeeements This update revises
the criteria for assessing effective control fgguehase agreements and other agreements thatiititth and obligate a transferor to
repurchase or redeem financial assets beforentadinrity. The update will be effective for the Caang on January 1, 2012, early adoption is
prohibited, and the amendments will be applied pectively to transactions or modifications of exigttransactions that occur on or after the
effective date. We do not believe that
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the adoption of this standard will have a maténglact on our financial position or results of cgtens.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2041 fxair Value Measurement: Amendments to Achieve Contfat Value Measurement
and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFR®ss update amends the existing fair value guidan improve consistency in the
application and disclosure of fair value measurdmenU.S. GAAP and International Financial RepagtStandards. ASU 2011-04 provides
certain clarifications to the existing guidancearmges certain fair value principles, and enhanisetodure requirements. The update will be
effective for the Company on January 1, 2012, eadlyption is prohibited, and the amendments wilhpplied prospectively to transactions or
modifications of existing transactions that occaroo after the effective date. We have not completegr evaluation as to whether the adoption
of this standard will have a material impact on fasancial position or results of operations.

In December 2011, the FASB issued amendéathgce which will enhance disclosures requiretUldy. GAAP by requiring improved
information about financial instruments and deliwainstruments that are either (1) offset or (@)jsect to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement, irrespectivelwdther they are offset. This information will erebkers of an entity's financial statemen
evaluate the effect or potential effect of nettmgangements on an entity's financial positionluiding the effect or potential effect of rights of
setoff associated with certain financial instrunseamid derivative instruments. An entity is requite@dpply the amendments for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after JanuargQ1,3, and interim periods within those annual psid\n entity should provide the
disclosures required by those amendments retragphctor all comparative periods presented. Weiarhe process of evaluating the impact
that this guidance will have on the consolidatedficial statement disclosures.

Reclassifications

Beginning in 2011, we have separately rigubthe amount of acquisition and investment ptists in the statement of operations. In
prior periods, such amounts were included in géraghainistrative expenses but have been recladdifieonform to the current year
presentation.

3. Debt Securities

We classified all CMBS and RMBS investmeagsavailable-for-sale as of December 31, 20110swtmber 31, 2010. The CMBS and
RMBS classified as available-for-sale are repoatefir value in the balance sheets with changéaiirvalue recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive (loss) income. The tables below suimeaarious attributes of our investments in mageg backed securities ("MBS")
available-for-sale as of December 31, 2011 and Déee 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

Unrealized Gains or (Losses) Recognized in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Purchase Recorded  Non-Credit Net Fair
December 31  Amortized Credit Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Value
2011 Cost OTTI Cost OTTI Gains Losses Adjustment  Fair Value
CMBS $ 17735 $ — $ 17735 % — $ —$ (567)$ (567) $ 176,78t
RMBS 170,42: (6,00 164,42. (1,310 3,367 (1,537 525 164,94¢

Total $ 347,77 $(6,00)$ 341,77t $ (1,310$ 3,361 $ (2,099 $ (42) $341,73:
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Weighted
Average
Weighted Weighted Life
Average Average ("WAL")
December 31, 2011 Coupon(1) Rating (Years)(3)
CMBS 2.1% NR(2) 3.E
RMBS 1.0% B- 4.8

D) Calculated using the December 31, 2011 one-morBIOR rate of 0.2953% for floating rate securities.

(2) Represents securities where the obligors are pespacial purpose entities that were formed to balastantially
all of the assets of a worldwide operator of hotedsorts and timeshare properties; the secudtiesot rated but
the loan-to-value ratio was estimated to be inrtimge of 39%-44% at December 31, 2011.

3) Represents the WAL of each respective group of MB® WAL of each individual security or loan is @alated
as a fraction, the numerator of which is the surtheftiming (in years) of each expected future @pal payment
multiplied by the balance of the respective paymantl with a denominator equal to the sum of thgeeted
principal payments. This calculation was made d3exfember 31, 2011. Assumptions for the calculatiothe
WAL are adjusted as necessary for changes in geajgarincipal repayments and/or maturity dateshefdecurity

Weighted
Recorded Net Fair Weighted
Amortized  Unrealized Unrealized Value Average Average WAL
December 31, 2011 Cost Gains Losses Adjustment Fair Value  Coupon(1) Rating  (Years)
CMBS $266,76: $ 9,072 $ (683 $ 8,391 $275,15! 5.6% AA- 1.8
RMBS 120,82 2,49t (797) 1,69¢ 122,52! 0.€% BB- 1.3

$387,59: $ 11,56¢ $ (1,480)$ 10,08¢ $ 397,68(

(1) Calculated using the December 31, 201C-month LIBOR rate of 0.2606% for floating rate setes.

During the year ended December 31, 20Kl ptirchases and sales trades executed, as wedl paricipal payments received, were as
follows (amounts in thousands):

RMBS CMBS
Purchases $ 161,20¢ $ —
Sales/Maturities 53,52¢ 238,73¢
Principal payments receivec 69,46¢ 44,44¢

In June 2011, we exercised a pre-exisigigt to convert one of our loans into a CMBS inartb maximize the investment's liquidity. As
a result, we reclassified the loan, which had ayazg
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amount of $176.6 million, from loans held for intragnt to MBS, available-for-sale, and recognizediarealized gain in connection with this
reclassification of $7.9 million.

During the year ended December 31, 2011sale various CMBS positions with aggregate grosggeds of $211.6 million
($74.0 million after repaying related financinghieh generated gains of approximately $10.0 milliddditionally, $27.1 million of our
CMBS portfolio matured and were paid off during ttear ended December 31, 2011.

From Inception through the first two quastef 2010, a portion of our CMBS portfolio was idesited as held-to-maturity. However,
during the third quarter of 2010 our investmenratelgy with respect to these securities changedwanub longer intended to hold them to
maturity. As a result, we reclassified the secesito available-for-sale and recorded an unreatizéu in connection with this reclassification
of approximately $10.3 million.

As of December 31, 2011, 100% of the CMBSvariable rate and pay interest at LIBOR pluseigited-average spread of 1.75%. As of
December 31, 2010, 5.0% of the CMBS were variadte and paid interest at LIBOR plus a weighted-ayerspread of 1.30%.

Subject to certain limitations on duratiowg have allocated an amount to invest in RMB$ ¢hanot exceed 10% of our total assets. We
have engaged a third party manager who speciahize®BS to execute the trading of RMBS, the costvbfch was $0.7 million and
$0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 281d December 31, 2010, respectively, which has teorded as an offset to interest
income in the accompanying consolidated statenwrdperations. As of December 31, 2011, approxitpa&54.7 million, or 93.8%, of the
RMBS are variable rate and pay interest at LIBOBS @l weighted-average spread of 0.43%. As of Deeef3th 2010, approximately
$120.7 million, or 98.5%, of the RMBS were variatdée and pay interest at LIBOR plus a weighted-aye spread of 0.31%. We purchased
all of the RMBS at a discount that will be accreigih income over the expected remaining life & gecurity. The majority of the income fr
this strategy is earned from the accretion of tlidseounts.

The following table presents the gross alized losses and estimated fair value of our séesithat are in an unrealized loss position ¢
December 31, 2011 for which OTTIs (full or partibBve not been recognized in earnings (amountsousands):

Estimated Fair Value Unrealized Losses
Securities with a loss Securities with a loss Securities with a loss Securities with a loss
As of December 31, 201 less than 12 months  greater than 12 months  less than 12 months  greater than 12 months
CMBS $ 176,78t $ — 3 (567) $ —
RMBS 70,10% 2,68¢ (2,442 (399)
Total $ 246,88¢ $ 2,68, $ (3,011 $ (399
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As of December 31, 2011 there were 42 #&ssiwith unrealized losses. After evaluating eseburity we determined that the
impairments on 25 of these securities, all of whaok non-agency and whose impairments totaledridlion, were other-than-temporary.
Credit losses represented $3.4 million of thisltatdich we calculated by comparing (i) the estiesbtuture cash flows of each security
discounted at the yield determined as of the indttajuisition date or, if since revised, as of ldst date previously revised, to (ii) our amortized
cost basis. For the year ended December 31, 20t hggregate MBS credit losses (as reported istdtement of operations) were
$6.0 million. We further determined that none & itV remaining securities were other-than-templgrampaired. We considered a number of
factors in reaching this conclusion, including that did not intend to sell any individual securitywas not considered more likely than not
we would be forced to sell any individual secuptyor to recovering our amortized cost, and theegeano material credit events that would
have caused us to otherwise conclude that we wmtldecover our cost. Significant judgment is regdiis used in projecting cash flows for
our non-agency RMBS. As a result, actual incomédarichpairments could be materially different fravhat is currently projected and/or
reported.

The following table presents the gross alized losses and estimated fair value of our séesithat are in an unrealized loss position ¢
December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands).

Estimated Unrealized
As of December 31, 2010 Fair Value Losses
CMBS $ 1902: $ (689
RMBS 25,72¢ (797)
Total $ 44775: $ (1,480

4. Loans

Our investments in loans held-for-investirame accounted for at amortized cost and the lbaltsfor-sale are accounted for at the lower
of cost or fair value, unless we elect to recorthdoans at fair value. The following table sumraesi our investments in loans by subordine
class as of December 31, 2011 and December 31,(28dd@unts in thousands):

Weighted
Carrying Face Average WAL

December 31, 201 Value Amount Coupon (years)(2)
First mortgage: $ 1,202,61: $ 1,248,54! 6.6% 3.2
Subordinated mortgages( 437,16: 487,17" 7.4% 4.1
Mezzanine loan 628,82: 642,83 8.4% 3.C
Total loans held for

investmen 2,268,59! 2,378,55!
First mortgages held for se

at fair value 128,59! 122,83: 5.9% 8.¢
Loans held in securitizatic

trust 50,31¢ 50,63: 5.0% 3.7

Total Loans $ 2,447,50i $ 2,552,02
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Weighted
Carrying Face Average WAL
December 31, 2011 Value Amount Coupon (years)(2)
First mortgage $ 757,68 $ 797,15 6.9% 3.3
Subordinated mortgages( 406,41( 465,92¢ 6.€% 4.¢
Mezzanine loan 66,68¢ 67,88 10.8% 4.8
Total loans held fo
investmen 1,230,78: 1,330,96!
First mortgages held for se
at fair value 144,16: 143,90: 5.7% 4.9
Loans held in securitization
trust 50,29 50,73¢ 5.0% 4.2
Total Loans $ 1,425,24. $ 1,525,60!

1) Subordinated mortgages include (i) subordinatedgages that we retain after having sold first magtg position
related to the same collateral, (ii) B-Notes, aiifiIubordinated loan participations.

(2 Represents the WAL of each respective group ofdodihe WAL of each individual loan is calculatedsas
fraction, the numerator of which is the sum oftinging (in years) of each expected future principayment
multiplied by the balance of the respective paymantl with a denominator equal to the sum of thpeeted
principal payments. This calculation was made d3exfember 31, 2011. Assumptions for the calculatiothe
WAL are adjusted as necessary for changes in gegjgarincipal repayments and/or maturity datesheflban.

As of December 31, 2011, approximately $fllion, or 45.2% of the loans are variable ratel @ay interest at LIBOR plus a weighted-
average spread of 4.33%. Of the approximately Billibn of floating rate loans, $264.0 million payerest using one-month LIBOR
(0.2953%), $143.4 million pay interest using threenth LIBOR (0.5810%), $134.0 million pay interesing one-month Citibank LIBOR
(0.2700%), $7.1 million pay interest using threenthoCitibank LIBOR (0.5600%), $6.0 million pay inést using six-month Citibank LIBOR
(0.7800%), and $551.3 million pay interest usingBOR floor (0.5%-2.0%). As of December 31, 201ppeoximately $332.7 million, or
23.3% of the loans are variable rate and pay isteeLIBOR plus a weighted-average spread of 2@%the approximately $332.7 million of
floating rate loans, $211.5 million pay interesingsone-month LIBOR (0.2606%) and $121.2 milliory jiaterest using three-month LIBOR
(0.3028%).

As described in Note 2, we evaluate eaabuofloans for impairment at least quarterly. Quans are typically collateralized by real estate.
As a result, we regularly evaluate the extent amgbict of any credit deterioration associated withgerformance and/or value of the
underlying collateral property, as well as the ficial and operating capability of the borrower. Sfieally, a property's operating results and
any cash reserves are analyzed and used to agselsther cash flow from operations is sufficiémtcover the debt service requirements
currently and into the future, (ii) the ability tife borrower to refinance the loan at maturity /andii) the property's liquidation value. We al
evaluate the financial wherewithal of any loan gudors as well as the borrower's competency in gingand operating the properties. In
addition, we consider the overall economic envirentreal estate sector, and geographic sub-miarkédtich the borrower operates. Such
impairment
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analyses are completed and reviewed by asset maeagand finance personnel who utilize various dataces, including (i) periodic
financial data such as property operating statespestupancy, tenant profile, rental rates, opegatixpenses, the borrower's exit plan, and
capitalization and discount rates, (i) site ingfmets, and (iii) current credit spreads and disimrsswith market participants.

Our evaluation process as described abmaupes an internal risk rating of between 1 andtich is a weighted-average of the
numerical ratings in the following categories:gfonsor capability and financial condition, (iipfoand collateral performance relative to
underwriting, (iii) quality and stability of collatal cash flows, and (iv) loan structure. We utilthe overall risk ratings as a concise means to
monitor any credit migration on a loan as well agtee whole portfolio. While the overall risk ragifis not the sole factor we use in determir
whether a loan is impaired, a loan with a highegrall risk rating would tend to have more adversidators of impairment, and therefore
would be more likely to experience a credit loss.
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The rating categories generally includedharacteristics described below, but these alieadias guidelines and therefore not every loan
will have all of the characteristics described atle category:

Rating Characteristics
1 e Sponsor capability and financial condition—Sporisdrighly rated or investment grade or,
if private, the equivalent thereof with significananagement experienc
¢ Loan collateral and performance relative to undiiimg—The collateral has surpass
underwritten expectation
¢ Quality and stability of collateral cash flows—Ogpauncy is stabilized, the property has had
a history of consistently high occupancy, and ttapprty has a diverse and high quality
tenant mix.
¢ Loan structur—Loar-to-collateral value ratio ("LTV") does not exceed 65Pke loan ha
structural features that enhance the credit pic
2 e Sponsor capability and financial condition—Stropgrsorship with experienced
management team and a responsibly leveraged por!
¢ Loan collateral and performance relative to undiimg—Collateral performance equals
exceeds underwritten expectations and covenantperfickmance criteria are being met or
exceeded
¢ Quality and stability of collateral cash flows—Ogpauncy is stabilized with a diverse tenant
mix.
e Loan structur—LTV does not exceed 70% and unique property risksyatigated by
structural feature:
3 e Sponsor capability and financial condition—Sponsas historically met its credit
obligations, routinely pays off loans at maturiéiyd has a capable management te
¢ Loan collateral and performance relative to undiing—Property performance
consistent with underwritten expectatio
¢ Quality and stability of collateral cash flo—Occupancy is stabilized, near stabilized, ¢
on track with underwriting
¢ Loan structure—LTV does not exceed 80%.

4 e Sponsor capability and financial condition—Spons@dit history includes missed
payments, past due payment, and maturity extendidasagement team is capable but t
¢ Loan collateral and performance relative to undiing—Property performance lags beh
underwritten expectations. Performance criterialaad covenants have required occasional
waivers. A sale of the property may be necessaoyder for the borrower to pay off the Ic
at maturity.
¢ Quality and stability of collateral cash flo—Occupancy is not stabilized and the prop:
has a large amount of rollove
e Loan structur—LTV is 80% to 90%
5 e Sponsor capability and financial condit—Credit history includes defaults, de-in-lieu,
foreclosures, and/or bankruptci
¢ Loan collateral and performance relative to undiing—Property performance
significantly worse than underwritten expectatiofse loan is not in compliance with loan
covenants and performance criteria and may befautteSale proceeds would not be
sufficient to pay off the loan at maturit
¢ Quality and stability of collateral cash flows—Tpeperty has material vacancy and
significant rollover of remaining tenan
e Loan structure—LTV exceeds 90%.

87




Table of Contents

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contired)
As of December 31, 2011
4. Loans (Continued)
As of December 31, 2011, the risk ratingslass of loan were as follows (amounts in thodsn

Balance Sheet Classification

Loans
Held for
Loans Held for Investment Sale
Loans held in
Risk Subordinated Securitization
Rating First Mezzanine First
Category Mortgages Mortgages Loans Mortgages Trust Total
$ — 3 — 3% —3$ — 3 — 3 —

108,90( 131,28. 139,16 89,76( 13,19¢ 482,30:
1,054,71 251,78t 481,98 38,83 37,12 1,864,44.
38,99/ 54,09/ 7,67¢ 100,76

$1,202,61: $ 437,16! $628,82' $128,59! $ 50,31t $2,447,50!

O wWNPE

After completing our analysis of each loejuding the resulting risk ratings as describbdve, we concluded that no allowance for loan
losses was necessary as of December 31, 2011 enibec 31, 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2011,dtéts in our loan portfolio (including loans hefdr-sale) was as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Balance December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.
Acquisitions/origination: 1,782,96.
Additional funding 45,79:
Capitalized interest(] 7,48t
Basis of loans sol (331,31)
Loan maturities (305,31¢)
Transfer o.—loan converted to a securi (176,63
Principal repayment (26,93
Discount accretion /premium amortizati 26,96¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement (6,50€)
Unrealized gains on loans held for sale at faiug 5,76(
Balance December 31, 20! $ 2,447,50!

1) Represents accrued interest income on loans wka®s o not require current payment of inter

As disclosed above, we acquired or origida1.8 billion in loans for the year ended Decen®de 2011, which included (i) a
$165.5 million origination of a first mortgage Iganezzanine loan and corporate loan on a porttdlgx full service hotels located throughout
California; (ii) an acquisition of 90% interestar188 million (face amount) mezzanine loan colidized by an ownership interest in a
portfolio of ten office buildings in Northern Vingia for $156.5 million; (i) an acquisition of &$7.8 million (face amount) mezzanine loan
tranche collateralized by ownership interests im@&ls located throughout the U.S. for $127.1iomill (iv) an origination of a
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$175.0 million first mortgage collateralized byuarfiture showroom located in North Carolina; (v)aigination of a $60.5 million first
mortgage loan secured by two retail centers in By@mania; (vi) an origination of a $34.5 milliorrst mortgage loan secured by a multi-family
apartment property located in Virginia; (vii) adisinted acquisition from a top tier internationahk of a portfolio of 26 separate commercial
mortgage loans with a face value of $333 milliomgl viii) an acquisition of a $185 million A-notecured by a portfolio of 143 limited service
hotels.

For the year ended December 31, 2010,dtits in our loan portfolio was as follows (amdsrin thousands):

Balance December 31, 20 $ 214,52
Acquisitions/origination: 1,352,25:
Capitalized interest(1 3,32
Carrying amount of loans so (28,91))
Loan maturities (114,71
Principal repaymenti (13,64)
Discount/premium amortizatic 6,33¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement 6,07
Balance December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.

1) Represents accrued interest income on loans wha®s tlo not require current payment of intel

From Inception through December 31, 2008 dctivity in our loan portfolio was as followsy{aunts in thousands):

Balance at Inceptio $ —
Originations/acquisition 215,04¢
Additional fundings(1. 30E
Principal pay down (1,150
Discount/premium amortizatic 31¢
Provision for credit losse —
Balance December 31, 20 $ 214,52:

1) Represents accrued interest income on loans wkass tlo not require current payment of intet
5. Other Investments

In January 2010, we committed $6.3 millioracquire a 5.6% interest in a privatélgld limited liability company formed to acquiresat
of a commercial real estate debt management anitisey business primarily for the opportunity torfigipate in debt opportunities arising
from the venture's special servicing business'{#taticipation Right"). In May 2010, we made an iéiddal $3.4 million commitment to the
venture to maintain at least a 5% ownership andoiteesponding Participation
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Right. Because we do not have control or signifiéafluence over the venture, the investment issaoted for under the cost method. As of
December 31, 2011, we had funded $8.0 million efemmmitment. For the year ended December 31, #@&lfecognized income of

$1.1 million related to this investment which islided in other income on the consolidated statésnafroperations. There was no income for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and the periadlfroeption through December 31, 2009.

Through December 31, 2011, we had purchase total of $13.8 million ($9.3 million of whiavas purchased during the year ended
December 31, 2011) of publicly traded equity seimgithat are classified as available-for-sale @arded at fair value with changes in fair
value recorded to other comprehensive income (l6s8)the years ended December 31, 2011 and 20.6ad an unrealized loss of
$2.5 million and unrealized gain of $0.9 milliorated to these investments, respectively. For #eyended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we
recognized dividend income of $0.8 million and $@uillion, respectively, which is included in othiecome in the consolidated statements of
operations. For the period from Inception througit@mber 31, 2009, we did not own any publicly tdaeguity securities. All of the equity
securities have been in an unrealized loss poditioless than 12 months and are not other-thampoeanily impaired.

In June 2011, we acquired a non-controlfépo interest in a privateligeld limited liability company for $25.5 million, lich is accounte
for under the equity method. The entity owns a rage loan participation, and our share of earnfogghe year ended December 31, 2011
was $1.1 million, which is included in other incowr the consolidated statement of operations.

6. Secured Financing Agreements

On March 31, 2010, Starwood Property Maggg8ub-1, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-1"), our indirect whetiywned subsidiary, entered into a
Master Repurchase and Securities Contract (thelSVRalpurchase Agreement") with Wells Fargo Bankjdwal Association ("Wells Fargo").
The Wells Repurchase Agreement is secured by appately $162.3 million of the diversified loan piiio purchased from Teachers
Insurance and Annuity Association of America ontgeby 26, 2010 (“the TIAA Portfolio"). The Wells Rerchase Agreement provides for
asset purchases of up to $108.9 million. Advanceleuthe Wells Repurchase Agreement accrue intat@sper annum pricing rate equal to
the sum of one-month LIBOR plus the pricing margfir3.0%. If an event of default (as such term isneel in the Wells Repurchase
Agreement) occurs and is continuing, amounts boztbmay become due and payable and interest actrties default rate, which is equal to
the pricing rate plus 4.0%. The maturity date ef ¥iells Repurchase Agreement is May 31, 2013. Th#sViRepurchase Agreement allowed
for advances through May 31, 2010. As of Decemhe2811, $108.9 million was outstanding under thel$\Repurchase Agreement and the
carrying value of the pledged collateral was $1682ilBion. The Company guarantees certain of thegalblons of SPM Sub-1 under the Wells
Repurchase Agreement up to maximum liability of 2824he then currently outstanding repurchase mfaal purchased assets.

On August 6, 2010, Starwood Property Maggg&ub-2, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-2"), our indirect whetiyned subsidiary, entered into a
second Master Repurchase and Securities ContrtiMeélls Fargo, which second repurchase facilitg waended and restated by SPM Sub-
and Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2-A, L.L.C. (68ub-2-A"), our indirect wholly-owned subsidiagn
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February 28, 2011, pursuant to an Amended and Rdstéaster Repurchase and Securities Contract &heond Wells Repurchase
Agreement"). The Second Wells Repurchase Agreemastamended on May 24, 2011 and November 3, 20dfe(ment No. 2), and is
being used by SPM Sub-2 and SPM Sub-2-A to findineecquisition or origination of commercial moggdoans (and participations therein)
and mezzanine loans. In connection with Amendment2\available borrowings under the facility iresed by $200 million, to $550 million.
Advances under the Second Wells Repurchase Agrdeanerue interest at a per annum pricing rate etguiddle sum of oneaonth LIBOR plus

a margin of between 1.75% and 6.0% depending otyfieeof asset being financed. If an event of défas such term is defined in the Second
Wells Repurchase Agreement) occurs and is contin@mounts borrowed may become due and payabledmtety and interest accrues at
default rate, which is equal to the pricing ratespd.0%. The initial maturity date of the Secondl$vRepurchase Agreement is August 5, 2
subject to two one-year extension options, eackhhi¢h may be exercised by us upon the satisfactfaertain conditions and the payment of
an extension fee. Pursuant to a Guarantee andi§e&greement, dated August 6, 2010, as amendedestdted by an Amended and Restated
Guarantee and Security Agreement, dated Februar@@a. (the "Second Wells Repurchase Guarantés'Cbmpany guarantees certain of
the obligations of SPM Sub-2 and SPM Sub-2-A uttdeMVells Repurchase Agreement up to a maximuniitiabf either 25% or 100% of

the then-currently outstanding repurchase priqeuothased assets, depending upon the type oftesiggtfinanced. As of December 31, 2011,
$435.3 million was outstanding under the Second$\Répurchase Agreement and the carrying valubeopledged collateral was

$630.8 million.

On December 2, 2010, Starwood Property §dayé Sub-3, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-3"), our indirect whalwned subsidiary, entered into a
Master Repurchase Agreement with Goldman Sachsgsélget Company, which repurchase facility was ameadedestated by SPM Sub-3
and Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-3-A, L.L.C. (V68Bub-3-A"), our indirect wholly-owned subsidiagn February 28, 2011, pursuant to
an Amended and Restated Master Repurchase AgreétinefiGoldman Repurchase Agreement"). The GoldRepurchase Agreement will
be used to finance the acquisition or originatigr&PM Sub-3 and SPM Sub-3-A of commercial mortdagas that are eligible for CMBS
securitization. The Goldman Repurchase Agreemeiges for asset purchases of up to $150 millidre Tompany guarantees certain of the
obligations of SPM Sub-3 and SPM Sub-3-A underGoé&man Repurchase Agreement up to a maximumitiabil 25% of the then-currently
outstanding repurchase price of all purchased lo&thgances under the Goldman Repurchase Agreermentainterest at a per annum pricing
rate equal to the sum of one-month LIBOR plus agnanf between 1.95% and 2.25% depending on thetoavalue ratio of the purchased
mortgage loan. If an event of default (as such tierdefined in the Goldman Repurchase Agreement)rscand is continuing, amounts
borrowed may become due and payable immediatelyraeest accrues at the default rate, which isaktputhe pricing rate plus 2.0%. The
maturity date of the Goldman Repurchase AgreenseRecember 3, 2012. As of December 31, 2011, $98libn was outstanding under the
Goldman Repurchase Agreement and the carrying \dltres pledged collateral was $128.6 million.

On March 18, 2011, Starwood Property Maggegd..L.C. ("SPM"), our indirect wholly-owned subgiry, entered into a third Master
Repurchase and Securities Contract with Wells Féithe Third Wells Repurchase Agreement"). The diWells Repurchase Agreement is
being used by SPM
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to finance the acquisition and ownership of RMBS provides for asset purchases up to $100.0 milkaivances under the Third Wells
Repurchase Agreement generally accrue interespat annum pricing rate equal to one-month LIBO&Rs@ margin of 1.5% to 1.75%. If an
event of default (as such term is defined in thediWells Repurchase Agreement) occurs and is eoimg, amounts borrowed may become
due and payable immediately and interest accruteatefault rate, which is equal to the pricintgnalus 4.0%. The facility is scheduled to
terminate on March 16, 2012 but can be extendestito certain conditions. The Company has guasgthtertain of the obligations of SPM
under the Third Wells Repurchase Agreement. Asexfdinber 31, 2011, $86.6 million was outstandingthadtarrying value of the RMBS
collateral was $136.8 million.

On June 30, 2011, Starwood Property Morgagb-4, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-4") and Starwood Prop&ttrtgage Sub-4-A, L.L.C. ("SPM
Sub-4-A"), our indirect wholly-owned subsidiariesitered into a Mortgage Loan Purchase Agreemeat'Rbeutsche Repurchase Agreement")
with Deutsche Bank AG, Cayman Islands Branch. ThatBche Repurchase Agreement provides for assetigmeas of up to $150 million. The
Company has guaranteed certain of the obligati6sPM Sub-4 and SPM Sub-4-A under the Deutsche Rbepse Agreement up to a
maximum liability of the sum of (a) the greater()f25% of the then currently outstanding repurehpsce of all purchased loans, and
(i) $20,000,000, plus (b) all obligations assoethtvith hedging. Advances under the Deutsche RbpaecAgreement accrue interest at a
pricing rate equal to the sum of one-month LIBORsph margin of between 1.85% and 2.5% dependinfeproperty type and loan-to-value
ratio of the purchased mortgage asset. If an enfesiefault (as such term is defined in the DeutdRbBpurchase Agreement) occurs and is
continuing, amounts borrowed may become due andhpaymmediately and interest accrues at the defatd, which is equal to the pricing
rate plus 4.0%. The maturity date of the DeutscepuRchase Agreement is June 30, 2012 with two @ae-gxtension options, subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions. As of Decem®&r2011, there were no borrowings under the Daet&epurchase Agreement.

On June 28, 2011, SPT Rosslyn Holdings,C.I("'SPT Rosslyn™), our indirect whollywned subsidiary, entered into a Master Repurt
Agreement (the "Second Deutsche Repurchase Agré®méth Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch ("DeutedNY"). In connection with
the Second Deutsche Repurchase Agreement, SPTyRissisferred assets to Deutsche NY, with suatsteat providing access to repurchase
borrowings of up to $117.4 million. Interest ongheéborrowings accrues at a pricing rate equal éemanth LIBOR plus a margin of between
3.5% and 5.0%, depending on the loan-to-valuen went of default (as such term is defined in8beond Deutsche Repurchase Agreement)
occurs and is continuing, amounts borrowed may fpecdue and payable immediately and interest acertuébe default rate, which is equal to
the pricing rate plus 5.0%. As of December 31, 2@HT Rosslyn had borrowed $117.3 million undes facility and the carrying value of the
pledged collateral was $164.7 million. The borrogvmatures in May 2012. The Company has guarantegair of the obligations of SPT
Rosslyn under the Second Deutsche Repurchase Agntem

On December 30, 2011, Starwood Propertytgdge Sub-6, L.L.C. ("SPM Sub-6"), our indirect wirmwned subsidiary, entered into a
fourth repurchase agreement with Wells Fargo (Bautth Wells Repurchase Agreement”). The FourthiS\Répurchase Agreement provides
for advances up to $236.0 million and is secured lan portfolio of 26 separate commercial moregglans that we
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acquired on December 30, 2011 for $307.3 millios.oADecember 31, 2011, the $144.3 million in adesrnunder the Fourth Wells
Repurchase Agreement accrued interest at one-ndB@MR plus a pricing margin of 2.75%. The avail@libf additional advances, as well as
the pricing margin on all outstanding borrowings@ay given time, is determined by the current ofiegacash flows and fair values of the
underlying collateral, both in relation to the dixig collateral loan receivable balances outstamdati as approved by Wells Fargo. The overall
term of the Fourth Wells Repurchase Agreementresstiyears, with two one-year conditional extensiéwssof December 31, 2011, SPM S@ib-
had borrowed $144.3 million under this facility atheé carrying value of the pledged collateral wa874 million. However, $32.5 million of
the borrowings outstanding at December 31, 201Haeein June 2012, subject to a conditionalmbath extension for a 0.25% fee. At closi
we paid a 0.50% commitment fee based upon the dotamitted proceeds. If the overall facility is extied beginning in December 2014, we
would pay a 0.25% extension fee for each year.ddmpany guarantees 60% of the currently outstandipgrchase price for all purchased
assets; however, the Company guarantees 100% otiteanding balance of any individual repurchasesaction involving a collateral
property with operating cash flows that at any tisess than 15% of the related collateral loaeiveable balance.

Under the Wells Repurchase Agreement, deoid Wells Repurchase Agreement, the Goldman Rlepse Agreement, the Third Wells
Repurchase Agreement, the Deutsche Repurchasemgnéethe Second Deutsche Repurchase Agreementhakaurth Wells Repurchase
Agreement, the counterparty retains the sole discrever both whether to purchase the loan orrégdiniom us and, subject to certain
conditions, the market value of such loan or ségtior purposes of determining whether we are negglifo pay margin to the counterparty.

On December 3, 2010, SPT Real Estate Swh.@ ("SPT 1I"), our wholly-owned subsidiary, enéel into a term loan Credit Agreement
(the "BAML Credit Agreement") with Bank of Americhl.A. ("Bank of America") as administrative agentiaas lender, and us and certain of
our subsidiaries as guarantors. The BAML Creditefgnent provides for loans of up to $119 millioneThitial draw under the BAML Credit
Agreement was used, in part, to partially finarfeedcquisition of a senior secured note due Mabgl2Q15 in the amount of $205.0 million
(the "Purchased Note") from Bank of America. ThedRased Note was converted into a security in 2044 (refer to Note 3) and is due from
certain special purpose entities that were forrodubid substantially all of the assets of a worltvdperator of hotels, resorts and timeshare
properties.

Advances under the BAML Credit Agreemertrae interest at a per annum rate based on LIBORbaise rate, at the election of SPT II.
The margin can vary between 2.35% and 2.50% oVROR, and between 1.35% and 1.50% over base ratedlmm the performance of the
assets securing the Purchased Note. The initiainhatate of the BAML Credit Agreement is Novemi3€y, 2013, subject to a 12 month
extension option, exercisable by SPT Il upon satigbn of certain conditions set forth in the BAMIredit Agreement. Bank of America
retains the sole discretion, subject to certairddt@ms, over the market value of collateral aséatpurposes of determining whether we are
required to pay margin to Bank of America. As oftBmber 31, 2011, $119.0 million was outstandingeuride BAML Credit Agreement. The
carrying value of the CMBS pledged as collateralenthe Credit agreement was $176.8 million aseddnber 31, 2011. If an event of def
(as such term is defined in the BAML Credit Agreat)@ccurs and is continuing,
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amounts borrowed may become due and payable imtagdénd interest would accrue at an additional@¥annum over the applicable rate.

The following table sets forth our five-ygaincipal repayments schedule for the secureahfiings assuming no defaults or expected
extensions, which excludes the collateralized déligation in securitization trust (amounts in teands):

2012 $ 398,90
2013 491,13!
2014 213,47
2015 —
2016 and thereafte —
Total $ 1,103,51

Secured financing maturities for 2012 pritgaelate to $59.7 million of financings on theelis Financing Facility, $2.3 million under t
Second Wells Repurchase Agreement and $5.6 miliimier the BAML Facility. Additionally, there areceed financing maturities of
$92.1 million on the Goldman Repurchase Agreen,6 million on the Third Wells Repurchase Agreem&117.3 million under the
Second Deutsche Repurchase Agreement, and $3%i@nuihder the Fourth Wells Repurchase Agreememe. financing of the TIAA
Portfolio, Second Wells Repurchase Agreement, BABfedit Agreement, and Fourth Wells Repurchase Agese generally require principal
to be paid down prior to the facilities' respectimaturities if and when we receive principal paytsem the loan assets, or sell the loan assets,
that we have pledged as collateral.

7. Loan Securitization/Sale Activities

During 2010, the Company participated coenmercial mortgage securitization which generaturecourse match funded financing
with an effective cost of funds of approximatel$%. The Company separated five mortgage loansamithggregate face value of $178 mil
into senior and junior loans. It contributed theefsenior loans, or A Notes (the "Contributed Ldansith a face value of approximately
$84 million to the securitization trust and receiapproximately $92 million in proceeds, while miag $94 million of junior interests. The
Contributed Loans are secured by office, retail imddistrial properties and have remaining matwgibietween four and seven years.

Each of the five Contributed Loans wasaesitbriginated or acquired by the Company as paatfakt mortgage loan. In connection with
the securitization, two of the first mortgage loarese each split by the Company into an A Note a®iNote and three of the first mortgage
loans had each been previously split into A NoBeblotes and C Notes.

The secured financing liability relateswm of the Contributed Loans that we securitizetidid not qualify for sale treatment under
GAAP. As of December 31, 2011, the balance of da@$ pledged to the securitization trust was $60l8n and the related liability of the
securitization trust was $53.2 million.

During the first quarter of 2011, we cobattied three loans to a securitization trust forrapipnately $56 million in gross proceeds. Con
of the loans was surrendered in the loan transfer
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and it was therefore treated as a sale under GAgsRlting in a gain of $1.9 million. We effectivalyalized a net gain of $1.8 million on this
transaction after considering the realized lossethe interest rate hedges of $0.1 million that teasiinated in connection with the sale.

During the second quarter of 2011, we sdldan to an independent third party for gross @eds of $78.4 million. Control of the loan v
surrendered in the transaction and it was therdfested as sale under GAAP, resulting in a gai®304 million. We effectively realized a net
gain of $2.9 million on this transaction after ciolesing the realized loss on the interest rate bexfgb0.5 million that was terminated in
connection with the sale.

During the third quarter of 2011, we saldris with a carrying value of $154.4 million intsecuritization resulting in proceeds, net of
financing repayments, of $69.7 million. Controltbé loans was surrendered in the loan transfeitamas therefore treated as a sale under
GAAP, resulting in a realized gain of $5.1 millidhowever, we effectively broke even on this tratisacafter considering the realized gains
the credit hedges of $2.2 million and realized désssn the interest rate hedges of $7.4 millionwhee terminated in connection with the sale.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, we sallban with a carrying value of $42.5 million atrp@ontrol of the loan was surrendered in the
loan transfer and it was therefore treated aseawsaler GAAP, resulting in no realized gain or loss

8. Derivatives and Hedging Activity
Risk Management Objective of Using Derivativ

We are exposed to certain risks arisingnflmth our business operations and economic condit\We principally manage our exposures
to a wide variety of business and operational rikksugh management of our core business activifilEssmanage economic risks, including
interest rate, foreign exchange, liquidity, andd@reésk primarily by managing the amount, souraes] duration of our debt funding and the
of derivative financial instruments. Specificallye enter into derivative financial instruments tarmage exposures that arise from business
activities that result in the receipt or paymenfutfire known and uncertain cash amounts, the wa@flweéhich are determined by interest rates,
credit spreads, and foreign exchange rates. Ouwradiee financial instruments are used to manafferdinces in the amount, timing, and
duration of the known or expected cash receiptskaogvn or expected cash payments principally rdl&teour investments, anticipated leve
loan sales, and borrowings.

Cash Flow Hedges of Forecasted Interest Payments

Our objectives in using interest rate detikes are to add stability to interest expensetamdanage our exposure to interest rate
movements. To accomplish this objective, we prilyiarse interest rate swaps as part of our inteegetrisk management strategy. Interest rate
swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve tegpteof variable amounts from a counterparty iohenge for us making fixed-rate
payments over the life of the agreements withoaharge of the underlying notional amount.
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In connection with our repurchase agreememé have entered into six interest rate swapdhthge been designated as cash flow hed
the interest rate risk associated with forecastedhble interest payments. As of December 31, 2fiElaggregate notional amount of our
interest rate swaps designated as cash flow heddesecasted variable interest payments totaled7$2million. Under these agreements, we
will pay fixed monthly coupons at fixed rates ramgyfrom 0.722% to 2.228% of the notional amourth®counterparty and receive floating
rate LIBOR. Our interest rate swaps designatedaals low hedges of interest rate risk have maagitanging from November 2012 to
December 2017.

The effective portion of changes in the failue of derivatives designated and that qualifycash flow hedges is recorded in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) and is subselguectassified into earnings in the period tha Hedged forecasted transaction affects
earnings. The ineffective portion of the changéinvalue of the derivatives is recognized dirg@tl earnings. During the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the period endedniler 31, 2009, we recorded $45 thousand, $46&dmouand $0, respectively as hedge
ineffectiveness in earnings, which is includedniterest expense on the consolidated statemenfseodtions.

Amounts reported in accumulated other cahgnsive income (loss) related to derivatives bdlreclassified to interest expense as
interest payments are made on the associated learate debt. Over the next twelve months, we exténthat an additional $1.5 million will be
reclassified as an increase to interest expensearé/kedging our exposure to the variability inufatcash flows for forecasted transactions
a maximum period of 59 months.

Non-designated Hedges

Derivatives not designated as hedges areadiges that do not meet the criteria for hedgeoainting under GAAP or for which we have
not elected to designate as hedges. We do nohase terivatives for speculative purposes butretead used to manage our exposure to
foreign exchange rates, interest rate changes;entain credit spreads. Changes in the fair vafudenvatives not designated in hedging
relationships are recorded directly in net (losgés on interest rate hedges in the consolidsteedments of operations.

During 2010, we entered into a series ofvéod contracts whereby we agreed to sell an amafuBBP for an agreed upon amounts of
USD at various dates through October of 2013. Tkaseard contracts were executed to economicakytfe USD amounts of GBP-
denominated cash flows expected to be receivedbglated to our GBBenominated loan investment. During 2011, we edtar® a series
forward contracts whereby we agreed to sell an atnolUEUR for an agreed upon amount of USD at vwaridates through June of 2014. Tt
forward contracts were executed to economicallyifexUSD amount of EUR-denominated cash flows ebgoeto be received by us related to
our mezzanine loan in Germany. As of December 8112we had 12 foreign exchange forward derivativesell GBP with a total notional
amount of GBP 99.1 million and 13 foreign exchafgward derivatives to sell EUR with a total not@of EUR 64.7 million that were not
designated as hedges in qualifying hedging relahigs.

During 2010 and 2011, we entered into s&E\viaterest rate swaps that were not designatéeédges. Under these agreements, we pay
fixed coupons at fixed rates ranging from 0.71698.t0% of
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the notional amount to the counterparty and recioating rate LIBOR. These interest rate swapsuse to limit the price exposure of certain
assets due to changes in benchmark USD-LIBOR satap from which the pricing of these assets isvddriAs of December 31, 2011, the
aggregate notional amount of these interest ratgsuotaled $265.0 million. Changes in the faiueadf these interest rate swaps are recorded
in net (losses) gains on interest rate hedge<itadhsolidated statements of operations.

In connection with our acquisition of amoaortfolio from an international bank during tloaifth quarter of 2011, we acquired an interest
in nine interest rate swaps whereby we receivalfoc@ipons ranging from 2.86% to 6.28% of the nai@mount and pay floating rate LIBC
We acquired these positions at a cost of $7.5anillThe premium paid reflects the fact that theezps had above market rates which we
receive. These swaps effectively convert certaiatfhg rate loans we acquired to fixed rates. AB@dember 31, 2011, the aggregate notional
amount of these swaps totaled $108.3 million. Ckarig the fair value of these interest rate swapserorded directly in earnings.

During the year ended December 31, 201lentered into a series of derivatives that areniee to hedge against increases in market
credit spreads of CMBS. Such movements would havegative impact on the proceeds we expect tovedsm selling the loans. Under the
terms of the contract, a market credit spread ivdex defined at the contract's inception by refezdn a portfolio of specific independent
CMBS. To the extent the referenced credit spredédxnncreased, our counterparty paid us. To thengxhe referenced credit spread index
decreased, we paid our counterparty. We settletbapately every 30 days based upon the movemethieineferenced index during such
period. As of December 31, 2011, all contracts tnatured and we realized net gains of $2.4 million.

The table below presents the fair valuthefCompany's derivative financial instruments a#l as their classification on the balance sheet
as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 @msouthousands).

Tabular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Ingruments

Derivatives in an Asset Position Derivatives in a Liability Position
As of December 31, As of December 31, As of December 31, As of December 31,
2011 2010 2011 2010
Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair Sheet Fair
Location Value Location Value Location Value Location Value
Derivatives designated a
hedging instruments
Derivative Derivative Derivative
Interest rate swag N/A $ — Assets $ 89 Liabilities $ 1,42( Liabilities $1,71¢

Total derivatives
designated as hedging
instruments

©
|
©
©
[{e}

$ 1,42( $1,71¢«

Derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative
Interest rate swag Assets $ 7,55¢ Assets $ 24¢ Liabilities $11,34: Liabilities $ 302
Derivative Derivative Derivative
Foreign exchange contrac Assets 5,261 N/A Liabilities 6,89( Liabilities 7,38
Total derivativesiot

designated as hedging
instruments $12,81¢ $ 24¢ $18,23: $7,68¢
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The tables below present the effect ofGbenpany's derivative financial instruments on tia¢esnents of operations and of comprehensive
income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 28@l1December 31, 2010.

Cash flow hedges' impact for the year eridecember 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Location of loss

Amount of loss Location of loss Amount of loss recognized in Amount of loss
recognized in reclassified from reclassified from income on recognized in
OcClI accumulated OCI  accumulated OCI derivative income on
Derivative type for on derivative into income into income (ineffective derivative
cash flow hedge (effective portion)  (effective portion)  (effective portion) portion) (ineffective portion)
Interest Ratt Interest Interest
Swaps $ 1,951 Expense $ 2,11z Expense $ 45

Cash flow hedges' impact for the year eridedember 31, 2010:

Location of gain

Amount of loss Location of loss Amount of loss recognized in Amount of gain
recognized in reclassified from reclassified from income on recognized in
OcClI accumulated OCI  accumulated OCI derivative income on
Derivative type for on derivative into income into income (ineffective derivative
cash flow hedge (effective portion)  (effective portion)  (effective portion) portion) (ineffective portion)
Interest Rate Interest Interest
Swaps $ 3,361 Expense $ 1,742 Expense $ 46

Non-designated derivatives' impact forykars ended December 31, 2011 and December 31,(20unts in thousands):

Amount of
Gain/(Loss)
Recognized in
Location of Gain/(Loss) Income on
Recognized in Income on Derivative
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instrument Derivative 2011 2010
Gains (losses) on interest rate
Interest Rate Swa—Realized losse hedges $ (15,849 $ (1,630)
Gains (losses) on interest ri
Interest Rate Swa—Unrealized losse hedges $(11,28) $ (55
Gains (losses) on currency
Foreign Exchanc—Realized losse hedges $ (1,269 $ (119
Gains (losses) on currency
Foreign Exchanc—Unrealized gains(losse hedges $ 5,75t $ (7,387
Gains (losses) on credit spre
Credit Spread Derivati—Realized gain hedge: $ 2,35¢ % —

Credit-risk-related Contingent Features

We have entered into agreements with gedbour derivative counterparties that containvisions where if we were to default on any of
our indebtedness, including default where repayroétite indebtedness has not been acceleratecebgriier, we may also be declared in
default on our derivative obligations. We also haggain agreements that contain provisions whesariratio of principal amount of
indebtedness to total assets at any time exceddsti&n we could be declared in default of ourvddive obligations.

As of December 31, 2011 the fair value efihtives in a net liability position, which indas accrued interest but excludes any
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to tlaggeements, was
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$17.2 million. As of December 31, 2011, we had pdstollateral of $5.2 million related to these agnents. If we had breached any of these
provisions at December 31, 2011, we could have beguired to settle our obligations under the ages®s at their termination liability value
of $17.2 million.

9. Related-Party Transactions

We entered into a management agreementonitivianager upon closing of our initial publicexfihg ("IPO"), which provides for an
initial term of three years with automatic one-yegtensions thereafter unless terminated as destchielow. Under the management
agreement, our Manager, subject to the oversightipboard of directors, is required to managedayrto-day activities, for which our
Manager receives a base management fee and isleligr an incentive fee and stock awards. Our Mané# also entitled to charge us for
certain expenses incurred on our behalf, as destbklow.

Base Management Fee.The base management fee is 1.5% of our stodkhsllequity per annum and calculated and payalagerly in
arrears in cash. For purposes of calculating theag@ment fee, our stockholders' equity meanshé&3um of (1) the net proceeds from all
issuances of our equity securities since inceg@tincated on a pro rata daily basis for such issaa during the fiscal quarter of any such
issuance), plus (2) our retained earnings at tdeoéthe most recently completed calendar quavtéhéut taking into account any non-cash
equity compensation expense incurred in curreprior periods), less (b) any amount that we payepurchase our common stock since
inception. It also excludes (1) any unrealized gaind losses and other non-cash items that havactegpstockholders' equity as reported in
our financial statements prepared in accordande @RAP, and (2) one-time events pursuant to chaimg€AAP, and certain non-cash items
not otherwise described above, in each case afteuskions between our Manager and our indepediteictors and approval by a majority of
our independent directors. As a result, our stolddrs' equity, for purposes of calculating the nggamaent fee, could be greater or less than the
amount of stockholders' equity shown in our comad financial statements.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 aeerber 31, 2010 and for the period ended DeceBihe009, approximately $24.2 millic
$14.1 million and $5.1 million, respectively, wasurred for base management fees, of which $6.ltoménd $3.8 million was payable as of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, resphrctive

Incentive Fee. From August 17, 2009 (the effective date ofManagement Agreement), our Manager is entitldoetpaid the incentive
fee described below with respect to each calendarter (or part thereof that the management agreeimén effect) if (1) our Core Earnings
for the previous 12-month period (or part therédaitthe management agreement is in effect) exaae8% threshold, and (2) our Core
Earnings for the 12 most recently completed calegdarters (or part thereof that the managememtemgent is in effect) is greater than zero.

The incentive fee will be an amount, nesl¢éhan zero, equal to the difference betweerh@ ptoduct of (x) 20% and (y) the difference
between (i) our Core Earnings (as defined belowjte previous 12-month period (or part thereof tha management agreement is in effect),
and (ii) the product of (A) the weighted-averagehaf issue price per share of our common stock of aur
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public offerings multiplied by the weighted-averagember of all shares of common stock outstandmguding any restricted stock units, any
restricted shares of common stock and other sludirg@mmon stock underlying awards granted undelequity incentive plans) in such
previous 12-month period (or part thereof thatrtt@agement agreement is in effect), and (B) 8% (2nthe sum of any incentive fee paid to
our Manager with respect to the first three calemgerters of such previous henth period (or part thereof that the managemgreeament it

in effect). One half of each quarterly installmefthe incentive fee is payable in shares of ounmmon stock so long as the ownership of such
additional number of shares by our Manager wouldviwate the 9.8% stock ownership limit set foirttour articles of incorporation, after
giving effect to any waiver from such limit thatrdward of directors may grant in the future. Temainder of the incentive fee is payable in
cash. The number of shares to be issued to our §éagequal to the dollar amount of the portiohef quarterly installment of the incentive
fee payable in shares divided by the average ofltdsng prices of our common stock on the New Y8tiick Exchange for the five trading
days prior to the date on which such quarterlyaithstent is paid.

Core Earnings is a non-GAAP financial measWe calculate Core Earnings as GAAP net incdoss) excluding non-cash equity
compensation expense, the incentive fee, depreciatid amortization of real estate (to the exteait we own properties), any unrealized g:
losses or other non-cash items recorded in netriedor the period, regardless of whether such iterasncluded in other comprehensive
income (loss), or in net income. The amount is stéjgi to exclude one-time events pursuant to chang@aAP and certain other non-cash
charges as determined by our Manager and approvadiajority of our independent directors.

As of December 31, 2010, the incentivefdagable to our Manager was approximately $1.2 omillFor the year ended December 31,
2011, approximately $1.2 million was incurred foe incentive fee, none of which remained unpaidedtember 31, 2011.

Expense ReimbursementWe are required to reimburse our Manager farajing expenses incurred by our Manager on oualbeh
addition, pursuant to the terms of the managengneteanent, we are required to reimburse our Manfagehe cost of legal, tax, consulting,
auditing and other similar services rendered fopyisur Manager's personnel provided that suctsarst no greater than those that would be
payable if the services were provided by an inddpanthird party. The expense reimbursement isuabject to any dollar limitations but is
subject to review by our independent directors.theryears ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 ametioel from Inception through
December 31, 2009, approximately $4.0 million, $tiion and $0.2 million was incurred, respectiydior executive compensation and other
reimbursable expenses of which approximately $lillfomand $0.3 million was payable as of Decem®gr2011 and 2010, respectively. In
addition, see disclosure in Note 10 regarding diocgant reimbursement to our Manager in conneatidh our IPO that was extinguished
during 2011.

Termination Fee. After the initial three-year term, we can temate the management agreement without cause, iagdli@f the
management agreement, with an affirmative two-thirdte by our independent directors and 180 daitsewmotice to our Manager. Upon
termination without cause, our Manager is due mitgation fee equal to three times the sum of treraye annual base management fee and
incentive fee earned by our Manager over the piageglght calendar quarters.
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No termination fee is payable if our Manager isrimated for cause, as defined in the managemeaeawnt, which can be done at any t
with 30 days written notice from our board of dias.

10. Stockholders' Equity

The Company's authorized capital stock ist&ief 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock,1$pd0 value per share, and 500,000,000
shares of common stock, $0.01 par value per share.

On August 17, 2009, we sold 47,575,000eshaf our common stock (including 1,000,000 shaots to an entity controlled by Starwood
Capital Group pursuant to a simultaneous privagegrhent) in our IPO at an offering price of $20 sfeare.

In December 2010, we completed a followstfering of 23,000,000 shares of our common stdck arice of $19.73 per share.
In May 2011, we completed another followedfering of 22,000,000 shares of our common statck price of $21.67 per share.

At the time of our IPO in 2009, the undetens for the IPO agreed to defer and conditionreeipt of a portion of their underwriting fees
on our future achievement of certain minimum inwemtt returns. Similarly, at the time of the IPO Manager agreed to pay to the
underwriters a separate portion of the underwrifeegs on our behalf, with our reimbursement of danager of those amounts conditioned
upon our achievement of the same investment retunribe absence of the achievement of such invastmeturns, we would not pay the
underwriters the deferred portion of the underwgtfees nor would our Manager be reimbursed foptivion of the underwriting fees that it
paid on our behalf. Specifically, pursuant to tR@©lunderwriting agreement among the underwritersManager and us, we were required to
pay to the underwriters $18.1 million of underwrgifees if during any full four calendar quarteripe during the 24 full calendar quarters &
the consummation of the IPO our Core Earnings igrsach four-quarter period exceeded the produtt)ahe weighted-average of the issue
price per share of all public offerings of our coomstock, multiplied by the weighted-average nundfeshares outstanding (including any
restricted stock units, any restricted shares ofroon stock and any other shares of common stockriyig awards granted under our equity
incentive plans) in such four-quarter period andg@6. Additionally, because at the time of our IB@ Manager paid $9.1 million of
underwriting fees on our behalf, pursuant to ounaggement agreement with our Manager, we agreegrtdourse our Manager for such
payments to the extent the same 8% performancshiblicewas exceeded. For the four calendar quaetéwgs ended March 31, 2011 we
exceeded the threshold and therefore paid $271Bmiklated to these contingent arrangements duhia second quarter of 2011. Prior to
2011, we had recorded a deferred liability and fégetting reduction to additional paid-in-capital the full $27.2 million based upon actual
and forecasted operating results at the time. Refiiote 9 for disclosure of the expenses incufoedhe year ended December 31, 2011.

In August 2011, our board of directors awitted us to repurchase up to $100.0 million of @utstanding common stock over a one-year
period. Purchases made pursuant to the prograin deemade in either the open market or in privatelgotiated transactions from time to
time as permitted by federal securities laws ahemolegal requirements. The timing, manner, priwg @mount of any repurchases are
determined by us and are subject to economic amlemneonditions, stock price,
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applicable legal requirements and other factore. filogram may be suspended or discontinued atrmey Through December 31, 2011, we
purchased 625,850 shares of common stock on theropeket at an aggregate cost of approximatelygsidflion, resulting in a weighted-
average share cost of $17.00.

The Company's board of directors declardividend of $0.42 per share of common stock ferdbarter ended March 31, 2011 on
March 1, 2011. The dividend was paid on April 1612 to common stockholders of record as of March2B11. The board also declared a
dividend of $0.44 per share of common stock forgharter ended June 30, 2011. The dividend wasqguaitily 15, 2011 to common
stockholders of record as of June 30, 2011. Thedbfoather declared a dividend of $0.44 per shdmommon stock for the quarter ended
September 30, 2011. The dividend was paid on Octbhe2011 to common stockholders of record asept@mber 30, 2011. On November 4,
2011, the board declared a dividend of $0.44 paresbf common stock for the quarter ended Dece®bge2011. The dividend was paid on
January 13, 2012 to common stockholders of recomf ®ecember 31, 2011.

Equity Incentive Plans

We have reserved an aggregate of 3,11b&fes of common stock for issuance under the StahRroperty Trust, Inc. Equity Plan and
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Manager Equity Plad an additional 100,000 shares of common stociséarance under the Starwood Prop
Trust, Inc. Non-Executive Director Stock Plan. Téesans provide for the issuance of restrictedkstwaestricted stock units. The holders of
awards of restricted stock or restricted stockamwitl be entitled to receive dividends or "distriton equivalents,” which will be payable at
such time dividends are paid on our outstandingeshaf common stock.

We granted each of our four independeratiars 2,200 shares of restricted stock concuygrevith our IPO, with a total fair value of
approximately $175,000. The grants vest ratabljriae annual installments on each of the firstpsdcand third anniversaries of the grant
date, respectively, subject to the director's cumd service. Effective August 19, 2010, we graei@ech of our four independent directors an
additional 1,000 shares of restricted stock, witbtal fair value of approximately $75,000. Thergsavested in one annual installment on the
first anniversary of the grant. Effective August 2011, we granted each of our four independepttirs an additional 2,877 shares of
restricted stock, with a total fair value of apgroately $200,000. The grant will vest in one anrinatallment on the first anniversary of the
grant, subject to the director's continued senkae.the years ended December 31, 2011 and 201thamgkriod from Inception through
December 31, 2009, approximately $179 thousandii$@fsand and $16 thousand was included in gearchhdministrative expense,
respectively, related to the grants.

In August 2009, we granted 1,037,500 ret&td stock units with a fair value of approximat$®0.8 million at the grant date to our
Manager under the Manager Equity Plan. The graedsnatably in quarterly installments over threargebeginning on October 1, 2009, with
86,458 shares vesting each quarter, respectivelyoinection with the supplemental equity offerimdpecember 2010, we granted 1,075,000
restricted stock units with a fair value of approately $21.8 million at the grant date to our Magragnder the Manager Equity Plan. The
grants vest ratably in quarterly installments abeee years beginning on March 31, 2011, with 89 &i#ares vesting each quarter. For the \
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ended December 31, 2011, December 31, 2010, argktiwe from Inception through December 31, 20@@raximately 704,164, 432,292,
and 86,458 shares have vested, respectively, gnmdxamately $13.5 million, $7.4 million, and $2.4llwn have been included in management
fees related to these grants, respectively.

In May 2011, we issued 9,021 shares of comstock to our Manager at a price of $22.08 pareshilhe shares were issued to our
Manager as part of the incentive compensation dweit Manager under the management agreement. @ee3N

In August 2011, we issued 54,234 sharemofmon stock to our Manager at a price of $18.5&pare. The shares were issued to our
Manager as part of the incentive compensation dweit Manager under the management agreement. @ee8N

We granted 5,000 restricted stock unithaifair value of $100,000 to an employee undeStiaewood Property Trust, Inc. Equity Plar
August 2009. The award was scheduled to vest satalgjuarterly installments over three years beigigron October 1, 2009. Upon the
departure of this employee in July 2010, we issLi@80 shares of our common stock relating to ttsteekportion of the award, while the
remaining 3,750 unvested units were forfeited. ébraary 2011, we granted 11,082 restricted stodk with a fair value of $250,000 to an
employee under the Starwood Property Trust, Incitiédlan. The award vests ratably in quarterlyahsients over three years beginning on
March 31, 2011. For the years ended December 311, @d December 31, 2010 and the period from limephrough December 31, 2009,
3,694, 1,250, and 417 shares have vested, resplgctand approximately $71 thousand, $16 thousand $11 thousand, respectively, was
included in general and administrative expensea@élto the grants.

Schedule of Non-Vested Share and Share Equivalents

Restricted Stock

Grants to Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Independent Unit Grants Unit Grants

Directors to Employees to Manager Total
Balance as of December 31, 2( 10,601 — 1,680,20¢ 1,690,80!
Granted 11,50¢ 11,08: — 22,59(
Vested (6,939 (3,697 (704,169  (714,79Y)
Forfeited — — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2( 15,17¢ 7,38¢ 976,04« 998,60

Vesting Schedule

Restricted Stock

Grants to Restricted Stock Restricted Stock
Independent Unit Grants Unit Grants
Directors to Employees to Manager Total
2012 2,93¢ 3,69/ 617,70¢ 624,33¢
2013 12,24 3,691 358,33t 374,26¢
Total 15,17¢ 7,38t 976,04: 998,60
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Accumulated other comprehensive incomesjlascomprised of the following, net of non-cotitng interests in consolidated subsidiaries
(amounts in thousands):

December 31, 201 December 31, 201/

Cumulative unrealized (loss) gain

availablefor-sale securitie $ (2,57¢) $ 9,82¢
Effective portion of cumulative loss on ci

flow hedges (1,420 (1,625
Total $ (3,99¢) $ 8,20¢

12. Net Income (Loss) per Share

The following table provides a reconcilitiof both net income and the number of commoneshased in the computation of basic and
diluted income (loss) per share. We use the twssataethod in calculating both basic and dilutediiegs per share as our unvested restricted
stock units (refer to Note 10) are participatinguséies as defined in GAAP (amounts in thousand®pt share and per share amounts):

Year ended Year ended Period ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Net income (loss) attributable

Starwood Property Trust, In $ 119,370 $ 57,04¢ $ (3,019)
Net income (loss) allocated

participating securitie (2,22¢) (1,389¢) (97)
Numerator for basic and diluted r

income (loss) per sha $ 117,15. $ 55,65¢ $ (3,119
Basic weighted average sha

outstanding 84,974,60. 49,138,72 47,575,63
Weighted average number of dilut

shares outstanding( 86,409,32 50,021,822 48,540,05
Basic income (loss) per she $ 13¢ $ 11€ $ (0.0¢)
Diluted income (loss) per sha $ 13¢ $ 114 $ (0.0¢)

Since distributions were greater than earningsndgutie years ended December 31, 2011 and 201@hamdsults of operations
for the period ended December 31, 2009 were aosst Each of the three periods had a net undigtddass. As a result, diluted
earnings per share would result in antidilution #retefore diluted EPS has been computed in the saamner as basic earnings
per share.

1) The weighted average number of diluted sharesandstg includes the impact of unvested restrictedksunits totaling
998,604, 1,690,810, and 964,425 as of Decembe2@®11,, 2010, and 2009, respective
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GAAP establishes a hierarchy of valuatiechnhiques based on the observability of inputizetllin measuring financial instruments at
values. GAAP establishes market-based or obseruanlgs as the preferred source of values, follobgstaluation models using management
assumptions in the absence of market inputs. Tilee levels of the hierarchy are described below:

Level [—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

Level ll—Prices are determined using other significant alzg#e inputs. Observable inputs are inputs thagrotarket
participants would use in pricing a security. Thesgy include quoted prices for similar securitieggrest rates, prepayment speeds,
credit risk and others.

Level lll—Prices are determined using significant unobseevidguts. In situations where quoted prices or nladde inputs are
unavailable (for example, when there is little ormarket activity for an investment) unobservahfauiits may be used. Unobservable
inputs reflect our own assumptions about the fadioat market participants would use in pricingaaset or liability, and would be
based on the best information available.

We determine the fair value of our finaha@igtruments as follows:
Available-for-sale debt securities

Available-for-sale debt securities valuditiaing observable and unobservable market inplit® observable market inputs include recent
transactions, broker quotes and vendor prices Ketatata"). However, given the implied price digi@n amongst the market data, the fair
value determination for these securities has atgtfantly utilized unobservable inputs in discwed cash flow models including
prepayments, default and severity estimates basdideorecent performance of the collateral, theedgihg collateral characteristics, industry
trends, as well as expectations of macro-econowgnts (e.g. housing price curves, interest rateegjretc.). At each measurement date, we
consider both the observable and unobservable ti@tuiaputs in the determination of fair value. Hower, given the significance of the
unobservable inputs these securities have beesifaaswithin level 3.

Available-for-sale equity securities

The available-for-sale equity securities punblicly registered and traded in the Unitede&taind their prices are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange.

Derivatives

The valuation of derivative contracts aggedmined using widely accepted valuation techréqoeluding discounted cash flow analysis
the expected cash flows of each derivative. Thidyesis reflects the contractual terms of the denves, including the period to maturity, and
uses observable market-based inputs, includingeisteate curves, spot and market forward poirtte. fair values of interest rate swaps are
determined using the market standard methodologyetiing the discounted future fixed cash paymantsthe discounted expected variable
cash receipts. The variable cash receipts are lmasad expectation of future interest rates (fodivarrves) derived from observable market
interest rate curves. The fair value of the foraigrrency forward contracts is based on interd&treintials between the currencies being
traded, spot and market forward points.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustmeatappropriately reflect both our own nonperformenisk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measuremeéntadjusting
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the fair value of its derivative contracts for #féect of nonperformance risk, we have considelnedrmpact of netting and any applicable credit
enhancements, such as collateral postings, thdsholutual puts, and guarantees.

Although we have determined that the mgjaf the inputs used to value our derivatives fathin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, t
credit valuation adjustments associated with ouivegves utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimaikesurrent credit spreads to evaluate the
likelihood of default by itself and its counterpast However, as of December 31, 2011, we havessadehe significance of the impact of the
credit valuation adjustments on the overall valwatf our derivative positions and have determitiied the credit valuation adjustments are
significant to the overall valuation of our derivas. As a result, we have determined that ouwegvie valuations in their entirety are
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Loans

We estimate the fair values of our loanglisgounting their expected cash flows at a ratestgnate would be demanded by the market
participants that are most likely to buy our loaRse expected cash flows used are generally the santhose used to calculate our level yield
income in the financial statements.

Any changes to the valuation methodologl Ivé reviewed by our management to ensure thegdsare appropriate. The methods used
may produce a fair value calculation that is ndidative of net realizable value or reflective ofure fair values. Furthermore, while we
anticipate that our valuation methods are apprtpaad consistent with other market participatis,use of different methodologies, or
assumptions, to determine the fair value of ceffiagncial instruments could result in a differestimate of fair value at the reporting date. We
use inputs that are current as of the measurenag¢at @hich may fall within periods of market diséion, during which price transparency r
be reduced.
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13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following table presents our finandmdtruments carried at fair value on a recurringid@ the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2011 (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using Inputs:
December 31, 2011

Total Level | Level Il Level Il
Loans hel-for-sale at fair valu $ 128,59 $ 128,59
Available-for-sale debt securitie
Residentie-mortgag-backed securitie 164,94¢ 164,94¢
Commercie-mortgag-backed securitie 176,78¢ 176,78¢
Total availabl-for-sale debt securitie 341,73 — — 341,73
Available-for-sale equity securitie:
Real estate industi 11,26¢ $ 11,26¢ — —
Total availabl-for-sale equity securitie: 11,26¢ 11,26¢ — —
Total investments 481,59¢ 11,26¢ — 470,32
Derivative Assets
Foreign exchange contrac 5,261 $ 5,261
Interest rate contrac 7,55¢ 7,55¢
Derivative Liabilities:
Interest rate contrac (12,762) (12,762)
Foreign exchange contrac (6,890 (6,890
Total Derivatives (6,83¢€) (6,83€) —
Total: $ 474,76( $ 11,26¢ $ (6,83€) $ 470,32
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13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The changes in investments classified aglUd are as follows for the year ended Decenfer2011 (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobserdale Inputs

(Level 111)
Loans MBS
held-for-sale, available-for-sale
at fair value at fair value Total
Beginning balance, January 1, 201 $ 144,160 $ — $ 144,16
Purchase — 115,79! 115,79!
Originations 270,06¢ — 270,06¢
Transfer in (7,000 282,76 275,76
Sales (294,129 (3,600)  (297,72¢)
Maturities — (15,409 (15,409
Settlement: (252 (36,567) (36,819
Net increase on ass¢ (31,319 342,98 311,67t
Gain (loss) on investments at fair val
Unrealized gain (loss) on ass 5,76( (7,967 (2,200
Realized gain on asse 10,31« 24¢ 10,56
Accretion of discoun — 10,73( 10,73(
OTTI — (4,272) (4,277)
Other (332 — (332
Net gain (loss) on asse 15,74 (1,259 14,48¢
Ending balance, as of December 31, 20: $ 128,590 $ 341,73¢ $ 470,32
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13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The following table presents our finandmdtruments carried at fair value on a recurringid@ the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2010 (amounts in thousands):

Fair Value at Reporting Date Using Inputs:
December 31, 2010

Total Level | Level Il Level Il
Available-for-sale debt securitie
Residentie-mortgag-backed securitie $ 122,52 $ 122,52
Commercie-mortgag-backed securitie 275,15! 275,15!
Loans hel-for-sale at fair valu 144,16: $ 144,16:
Total availabl-for-sale debt securitie 541,84 — 397,68( 144,16:
Available-for-sale equity securitie:
Real estate industi 8,171 $ 8,17 — —
Total availabl-for-sale equity securitie: 8,171 8,17 — —
Total availabl-for-sale securities 550,02( 8,17 397,68 144,16:
Derivative Assets
Interest rate contrac 337 337
Derivative Liabilities:
Interest rate contrac (2,017 (2,019
Foreign exchange contrac (7,389 (7,389
Total Derivatives (9,069 — (9,069 —
Total: $ 540,95 $ 8,177 $ 388,61 $ 144,16:

The changes in investments classified aglUd are as follows for the year ended Decenfer2010 (amounts in thousands):

Beginning balan—January 1, 201 $ —
Purchases of loans h-for-sale at fair valu 144,16:
Ending balanc—December 31, 201 $ 144,16:

During the year ended December 31, 201 lgnggnated various loans that we intend to sethie short-term. At the time of the
origination, we elected to account for these lcarfair value. The associated interest rate anditcspread derivatives were not designated as
hedging instruments for accounting purposes. Assalt, changes in the fair value of these derieatiare reported in current earnings. It is
expected that changes in the fair value of the-fatéale loans, which will also be recorded thhlowgrnings as a result of our fair value
election, will materially offset the changes in fag value of the interest rate and credit spreadvatives. The unpaid principal balance on the
loans was $122.8 million as of December 31, 2011.

GAAP requires disclosure of fair value imf@tion about financial instruments, whether ornmeabgnized in the financial statements, for
which it is practical to estimate the value. Ineswhere quoted market prices are not availahireyddues are based upon the estimation of
discount rates to estimated future cash flows usiagket yields or other valuation methodologiesn€igerable judgment is necessary to
interpret market data and develop estimated fdirevaAccordingly, fair values are not necessarilgicative of the amount we could realize on
disposition of the financial
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instruments. The use of different market assumpt@restimation methodologies could have a mateffatt on the estimated fair value
amounts.

The fair value of cash and cash equivajentd cash collateral under treasury securitias dmaeement accrued interest and accounts
payable approximate to their carrying values dutaéir short-term nature. CMBS and RMBS securiiesvalued by averaging broker quotes
from dealers in those securities as well as othailable market data sources as deemed appropbiseounted cash flows, credit and tenant
review as well as other quantitative and qualisfictors are evaluated to estimate the fair vafueir loan portfolio.

The following table presents the fair vatdeur financial instruments, including loans heldsecuritization trust, not carried at fair value
on the consolidated balance sheet (amounts in dmois3:

Carrying Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Value as of as of as of as of
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2010

Financial Instrumen
not carried at Fair

Value:
Loans $ 2,318,91! $ 2,359,25! $ 1,281,081 $ 1,319,97!
Other Investment $ 33,11(C $ 33,11(C $ 6,000 $ 6,00(

Financial Liabilities:
Secured financing
agreements ani
collateralized
debt obligation
in securitization
trust $ 1,156,711 $ 1,157,81. $ 633,74 $ 637,49¢

14. Commitments and Contingencies
As described in Note 5, as of December2B1,1, we have unfunded commitments totaling $1lliamirelated to an investment.

As of December 31, 2011, we had future fap@dommitments on 11 loans totaling $79.7 millidhe funding commitments relate
primarily to leasing commissions and tenant improgats to the extent new leases on the underlyiligteral are signed.

Management is not aware of any other cohied obligations, legal proceedings, or any otfwettingent obligations incurred in the norr
course of business that would have a material adveffect on our financial statements.
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The following table summarizes our quayténiancial data which, in the opinion of manageineegflects all adjustments, consisting only
of normal recurring adjustments, necessary foirgfasentation of our results of operations (anteimthousands, except per share data):

For the Three-Month Periods Ended
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31

2011:
Net interest margi $ 31,43¢ $ 41,127 $ 50,75¢ $ 52,09t
Net income 31,72¢ 33,31 14,50%(c) 41,06¢
Net income allocable to Starwood Prope

Trust 31,445 32,42¢ 14,47¢ 41,02¢
Total earnings per she—Basic(a) $ 04z $ 03¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.4
Total earnings per she—Diluted(a) $ 04z $ 03¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.4¢
2010:
Net interest margi $ 12,39¢ $ 17,97¢ $ 22,82 $ 24,53t
Net income 6,26( 11,41( 23,28: 17,88¢
Net income allocable to Starwood Prope

Trust 5,941 10,84¢ 22,68: 17,57:
Total earnings per she—Basic(a) $ 01z $ 0.2t $ 047 $ 0.3¢
Total earnings per sheDiluted(a) $ 01z $ 02z $ 047 $ 0.3¢
2009:
Net interest margi — — 612(b)$ 4,411
Net (loss) — — (2,771 (b) (809)
Net (loss) allocable to Starwood Prope

Trust — — (1,919(b) (1,09¢)

Total (loss) per sha—Basic(a) — —
Total (loss) per sha—Diluted(a) — —

0.04(b)$  (0.09)
0.04(b)$  (0.02)

©® A

(@)  Amounts for the individual quarters when aggregaey not agree to the earnings per share for thgdar due tc
rounding.

(b) Represents the period from August 17, 2009 (Inoeptio September 30, 2009.

(c) Includes the effects of a decrease in value of@pprately $19.0 million on derivative instrumentsdsheld for sale loar
16. Subsequent Events

On January 30, 2012, Starwood Property §y&are Sub-7 ("SPM Sub-7"), our indirect wholly-owrsedbsidiary, purchased floating rate
CMBS for $206.4 million ($222.8 million face valuehere the obligors are certain special purposiéesithat were formed to hold
substantially all of the assets of a worldwide hoperator of hotels, resorts and timeshare pragserThe CMBS is not currently rated but the
loan-to-value ratio was estimated by managemebe tim the range of 39%-44% at December 31, 201&.AMBS currently pays interest at a
rate of one-month LIBOR plus a spread of 1.75%hevent of full extension, the spread will in@e#o 3.3%. In addition, on February 1,
2012, SPM Sub-7 entered into a $155.4 million ntaseurchase agreement with Goldman Sachs Interrat{the "Second Goldman
Repurchase Agreement") and borrowed the entiretigeofacility to finance the CMBS purchase. Bornogs under the Second Goldman
Repurchase Agreement accrue interest at a per aratarof one-month LIBOR plus a spread of 2.9%. iffagurity date of the Second
Goldman Facility is August 2015. Under the termshef Second Goldman Repurchase Agreement, SPIM Sudald be required to pay a mi
whole premium upon any acceleration of the
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16. Subsequent Events (Continued)

facility. Additionally, Goldman Sachs Internatiomatains discretion, subject to certain conditiangr the market value of the CMBS for
purposes of determining whether we are requirgghiomargin.

On February 23, 2012, the Company origthat$40 million mezzanine loan secured by a 10gmgpportfolio of full-service and
extended-stay hotels located in eight differenestalhe Company's expected levered return omtlesiment exceeds 12%.

On February 28, 2012, the Company acquigsi3 million of B notes secured by four resortthi@ United Kingdom. The Company's
expected levered return on the investment ranges 11-12%. The newly issued B notes are part afvamnall corporate refinancing in which
the Company had a $143.9 million pre-existing invesnt.

On February 29, 2012, our board of directteclared a dividend of $0.44 per share for tts¢ dguarter of 2012, which is payable on
April 13, 2012 to common stockholders of recorafslarch 30, 2012.
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(Amounts in thousands)

Prior Face Carrying Interest Payment Maturity
Description/Location Liens(1) Amount Amount Rate(3) Terms(2) Date(7)
First Mortgages
Retail, Chandler,

AZ — 3 1,00C $ 74z CL +1.25% /0 10/31/201!
Multi -family,

Anaheim, CA — 25,60( 21,17( CL + 1.0(% /O 10/12/201
Multi-family,

Cupertino, CA — 20,00( 19,15¢ CL+1.1%% 110 2/13/201:
Retail, Escondido

CA — 9,07¢ 8,06( CL + 1.3(% P&l 5/12/201!
Mixed Use, Irvine

CA — 2,291 2,247 5.4% P&l 11/19/201.
Hospitality,

Laguna Beach,

CA — 18,00( 17,96¢ 9.0(% 110 12/1/201:
Industrial, Orange

CA — 1,28¢ 1,28¢ 9.7%% P&l 6/20/201°
Multi -family,

Redding, CA — 4,40( 4,157 3.85% P&l 8/16/201!
Office,

Sacramento,

CA—1 — 2,312 2,297  6CL + 3.5(% P&l 9/24/201:
Office,

Sacramento,

CA—2 — 46,25( 43,25¢ CL + 3.5(% P&l 9/24/201:
Retail, Sar

Bernardino, CA — 1,25¢ 1,26: 10.1% P&l 5/1/201°
Office, San

Francisco, C# — 17,50( 14,53¢ 3L + 3.5(% I/O* 10/1/202(
Multi -family,

Southgate, C/ — 8,92t 8,30¢ CL +4.5(% P&l 10/1/201-
Hospitality,

Walnut Creek,

CA — 20,54 20,55¢ 15.0(% 110 5/6/201:
Retail, Aspen, C( — 8,00( 5,69( CL + 1.0% 110 1/19/201°
Retail, Fort

Meyers, FL — 5,63¢ 5,70: 5.9:% P&  10/16/201i
Industrial,

Jacksonville,

FL—1 — 4,86¢ 4,25: 7.8(% P&l 8/31/201°
Industrial,

Jacksonville,

FL—2 — 9,90¢ 7,28( 8.1¢% I/O* 8/31/202:
Industrial,

Jacksonville,

FL—3 — 4,99¢ 2,67¢ 8.1% 110 8/31/202:
Industrial, Ocala,

FL — 12,15¢ 12,15 9.82% P&l 2/5/201°
Industrial,

Orlando, FI—1 — 4,93: 4,311 7.8(% P&l 8/31/201°
Industrial,

Orlando, FI—2 — 10,03¢ 7,37¢ 8.1¢% I/O* 8/31/202:
Industrial,

Orlando, FI—3 — 5,062 2,70¢ 8.1¢% 110 8/31/202:

Retail, Spring Hill



FL

Office, Tampa, Fl

Retail, Various,
FL

Hospitality, New
Orleans, L/—1

Hospitality, New
Orleans, LA—2

Mixed Use,
Baltimore, MD

Retail, Greenville
Ml

Retail, lonia, Ml

Office,
Minnetonka,
MN—1

Office,
Minnetonka,
MN—2

Office,
Minnetonka,
MN—3

Office,
Minnetonka,
MN—4

Multi-family,
Robbinsdale,
MN

Office, St. Louis
Park, MN

Retail, Glendale,
USA

Hospitality,
Various, USA—
1

Hospitality,
Various, USA—
2

Hospitality,
Various, USA—
3

Retail, Various,
USA—1

Retail, High Point
NC

3,69(

17,00(

5,08t

1,47¢

65,10¢

54,821

1,50%

1,88¢

22,84¢

4,78¢

22,82¢

4,78¢

1,61z
1,98¢

8,68¢

13,00(

73,72

185,00(
9,19¢

174,31

3,68¢
16,92¢
4,97:
1,47¢
62,73¢
53,28¢
1,504
1,88:
22,95(
4,80¢
22,93(

4,80¢

1,61
1,99¢

7,617

13,26¢

74,12¢

182,50¢
8,50:

172,94(

113

9.75%
%

L + 5.0((6)
CL + 2.0%
11.00%
11.00%
5.25%
10.25%
10.00%
7.6%
7.6%%
8.1(%

7.65%

9.5(%
10.5(%

CL +2.0%

10.0(%

9.5(%

%
L + 5.3¢(5)

6.08%
%
L + 6.0((5)

P&l

I/O

I/O

P&l

I/O

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

P&l

I/1O

I/1O

I/O*

P&l

P&l

9/1/201¢

7/6/201¢

7/31/201:

9/10/201-

8/1/201¢

12/1/201°

10/1/201°

10/1/201°

9/1/201:

9/1/201:

9/1/201:

9/1/201:

10/10/201.

5/1/201«

11/14/201.

7/6/201:

1/1/201:

9/1/201

10/21/201!

7/6/201¢
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(Amounts in thousands)

Prior Face Carrying Interest Payment Maturity
Description/Location Liens(1) Amount Amount Rate(3) Terms(2) Date(7)
Retail, Devils

Lake, ND — 3 1,602 $ 1,60( 10.0(% P&l 1/1/201°
Retail, Chester, N — 15,30( 15,20¢ 7.7%% I/O* 10/5/201!
Hospitality,

Newark, NJ — 10,95¢ 10,967 7.1% P&l 7/6/201+
Industrial, South

Plainfield, NJ — 14¢€ 14¢€ 9.7%% P&l 8/1/201.
Retail, Las

Vegas, NV — 9,68t 9,20¢ CL + 1.6% P&l 4/7/201:
Multi -family,

Reno, NV — 4,50( 3,74t  6CL+1.1'% 110 1/31/201¢
Retail, East

Hampton, NY—

1 — 4,78 4,78¢ 6.25% P&l 3/1/201¢
Retail, Eas

Hampton, NY—

2 — 8,94( 8,85¢ 4.91% P&l 3/1/201:
Retail, Gardel

City, NY — 2,841 2,81¢ 5.7&% P&l 11/30/201
Hospitality, New

York, NY—1 — 23,00( 22,907 L+5.75% 110 716/201¢
Hospitality, New

York, NY—2 — 26,50( 26,33t 8.15% 110 11/1/201:
Mixed Use, New

York, NY—1 — 7,71¢ 7,10z  3CL + 1.5% P&l 9/16/201.
Mixed Use, New

York, NY—2 — 5,20(C 5,121 6.4(% /10 11/21/201.
Office, New York,

NY—1 — 30,72: 26,957 5.2 P&l 4/20/202(
Office, New York,

NY—2 — 26,41t 23,17¢ 5.1(% P&l 12/31/201.
Retail, Baden, P/ — 4,00( 3,93¢ 10.0(% 110 716/201¢
Retail, Pleasant

Hills, PA — 56,50( 56,72t L + 4.5(% 110 7/9/201¢
Retail, Mitchell,

SD — 1,64¢ 1,64: 10.0(% P&l 1/1/201°
Retail, Oak Ridge

TN—1 — 1,62¢ 1,631 10.0(% P&l 4/15/201°
Retail, Oak Ridge

TN—2 — 562 564 9.25% P&l  10/15/201.
Office, Fort

Worth, TX — 28,23 28,37( 7.4"% P&l 10/1/201:
Retail, Various

TX — 6,171 5,85¢ CL + 1.259% P&l 2/28/201.
Other, Midvale,

uT — 11,43¢ 11,20: 5.71% P&l 3/30/201.
Hospitality,

Roanoke, VA — 4,84¢ 4,49¢ 5.62% P&l 5/5/201¢
Multi-family,

Washington DC %

VA — 34,52( 34,19 L + 5.5((4) /O 11/10/2011

Retail, Poulsba
WA — 3,31(C 3,37¢ 6.1(% 110 9/13/201°



Subordinated Del
and Mezzanine

Mixed Use,
Mobile, AL
Industrial,
Montgomery,
AL—1
Industrial,
Montgomery,
AL—2
Office, Century
City, CA
Mixed Use, San
Francisco, CA-
1
Mixed Use, San
Francisco, CA-
2
Hospitality, Este:
Park, C(—1
Industrial, Opa
Locka, FI—1
Industrial, Opa
Locka, F1I—2
Industrial, Ope
Locka, FL—3
Industrial,
Fitzgerald, GA
Retail, Orlando
Park, IL—1
Retail, Orlandc
Park, IL—2
Office, Chicago
IL—1
Office, Chicago,
IL—2
Hospitality, UK,
International
Industrial, Wes
Hammond,
LA—1

15,50(

8,76t

112,21:

42,50(

10,29
3,13¢

8,421

9,18t

1,158,97!

10,57¢

4,75(

18,05(

4,552

77,85:

6,50(

13,50(
4,27(
53C
17,35«
4,37
1,55:
13,29
2,46
37,34(
21,66(

143,88

21,77¢

4,77:

13,99¢

2,72¢

78,41¢

6,404

13,30¢
4,25
28E
13,45¢
2,62
831
13,19
2,44¢
37,12
21,53¢

128,83:

16,88¢

114

12.02%

8.1&%

8.1&%

7.3(%

L+2.7%

L + 16.6%

17.45%

8.1&%

8.1&%

8.1&%

8.1&%

5.0(%

24.1%

5.0(%

13.1%

3L +2.2%%

8.1&%

I/O*

I/O*

I/O

P&l

I/1O

I/1O

P&l

I/O

I/O*

I/O

I/O

P&l

P&l

I/O*

I/O*

I/O

I/O*

7/6/202:

8/31/202:

8/31/202:

5/11/201:

7/9/201¢

7/9/201¢

1/5/201¢

8/31/202:

8/31/202:

8/31/202:

8/31/202:

12/31/201.

12/31/201.

6/1/201¢

6/1/201¢

10/1/201:

8/31/202:
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Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate (Continud
December 31, 2011

(Amounts in thousands)

Prior Face Carrying Interest Payment Maturity

Description/Location Liens(1) Amount Amount Rate(3) Terms(2) Date(7)
Industrial, West

Hammond,

LA—2 — 3 549 $ 3,281 8.1&% 110 8/31/202:
Office, New York,

NY—3 256,28° 11,40( 9,95: 7.1<% P&l 7/11/201¢
Retail, Columbus

OH 320,00( 85,00( 71,03¢ 6.97% 110 8/8/201"
Retail, Various

USA—2 100,00( 42,20( 42,11: 14.28% I/O* 11/1/201!
Office, Chicago %

IL—3 49,00( 16,00( 15,94« L +9.0((5) 110 6/9/201¢
Industrial, Los

Angeles, CA 34,50( 10,45: 10,45: 12.0(% 110 5/5/201¢
Hospitality,

Mammoth

Lakes, CA 192,00( 35,00( 35,09¢ 13.25% /0 4/13/201°
Hospitality, San

Diego, CA 17,50( 6,50( 6,50( 12.6€6% I/O* 3/6/201¢
Hospitality, Estet

Park, C(—2 — 7,695 7,67¢ 14.0(% I/O* 1/6/201¢
Office, Chicago

IL—4 28,00( 5,00(C 4,94¢ 11.0(% 110 3/6/201¢
Retail, Europe,

International 568,63: 57,04 56,01¢ 12.0(% 110 6/21/201°
Hospitality,

Various, USA—

4 100,00( 92,00( 92,88¢ 11.26% I/O* 1/6/201¢
Hospitality,

Various, USA— %

5 817,53¢ 137,65( 128,76( L +7.0((4) 110 3/9/201«
Hospitality,

Various, USA—

6 75,00( 70,00( 70,40¢ 11.8"% 110 5/16/201t
Retail, Various,

USA—3 25,90: 8,08: 8,04¢ 11.81% I/O* 1/6/201¢
Hospitality, New

York, NY—3 55,00( 15,00( 14,05: 10.0(% /0 11/25/201.
Office, Nashville,

TN 15,00( 2,90¢ 2,90¢ 12.0(% P&l 4/20/201¢
Office, Rosslyn

VA 567,67: 169,20: 164,71 L+2.4% 110 5/15/201.
Hospitality,

Seattle, WA 31,77« 10,30( 10,407 11.0(% 110 7/6/201¢
First Mortgages

held for sale
Mixed Use, Napa

CA — 8,72: 9,40¢ 6.4(% P&l 4/6/202:
Office,

Sacramento,

CA—3 — 10,63¢ 10,59¢ 5.7% P&l 6/6/202:
Retail, Sar

Francisco, C£ — 18,40¢ 18,82¢ 5.4% P&l 7/6/202:



Retail, Various,

USA—4 — 17,93 19,04:
Retail, Various

USA—5 — 21,63t 22,53
Multi-family,

Richmond, VA — 45,50( 48,18¢

$4,633,37. $2,552,020 $ 2,447,50:

Notes to Schedule IV:

6.05% I/O* 3/6/202:
5.65% I/0 7/6/202:

6.01% I/O* 4/6/202:

1) Represents third-party priority liens. Third paptyrtions of pari-passu participations are not adersd prior liens.
Additionally, excludes the outstanding debt ondhparty joint ventures of underlying borrowers.

(2) P&l = principal and interest; I/0 = interest onl§O* = principal payments begin later in loan pefrio

3) L = one month LIBOR rate, 3L = three month LIBOReaCL = one month Citibank LIBOR rate, 3CL = thraenth

Citibank LIBOR rate, 6CL = six month Citibank LIBOfte.

4) Subject to a 0.5% LIBOR floor.
(5) Subject to a 1.0% LIBOR floor.

(6) Subject to a 2.0% LIBOR floor.

) Based on management's judgment of extension optieing exercisec
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Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate (Continud
December 31, 2011
(Amounts in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2011,igctidated to our loan portfolio was as follows:

Balance December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.
Acquisitions/Originatior 1,782,96.
Additional funding 45,79
Capitalized Interest(1 7,48t
Loans solc (331,31)
Loan maturities (305,316
Transfer o.—loan converted to a securi (176,63
Principal repaymenti (26,939
Discount/premium amortizatic 26,96¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement (6,50€)
Unrealized gains on loans held for sale at faiug 5,76(
Balance December 31, 20 $ 2,447,50!

D) Represents accrued interest income on loans wha®s tlo not require current payment of intel

For the year ended December 31, 2010, ipctelated to our loan portfolio was as follows:

Balance December 31, 20 $ 214,52:
Acquisitions/origination: 1,352,25:
Capitalized interest(] 3,328
Carrying amount of loans so (28,91)
Loan maturities (114,71
Principal repayment (13,642
Discount/premium amortizatic 6,33¢
Unrealized foreign currency remeasurement 6,07
Balance December 31, 20 $ 1,425,24.

(1) Represents accrued interest income on loans wha®s tlo not require current payment of intel
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and ProceduresWe maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatedesigned to ensure that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed parguo the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aediithe "Exchange Act"), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pienieds specified in the SEC's rules and formsthatisuch information is accumulated :
communicated to our management, including the GExefcutive Officer, as appropriate, to allow timdpcisions regarding required
disclosures.

As of the end of the period covered by tkgort, we conducted an evaluation, under thersigien and with the participation of our
management, including the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer, of the effectivenesgivé design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based on Hadw&tion, our Chief Executive Officer and Chieh&icial Officer concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effectivef ghe end of the period covered by this report.

Management Report on Internal Control Ograncial Reporting. Our management is responsible for establishimmaintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporti@gr internal control over financial reporting ipecess designed under the supervision o
principal executive and principal financial offiseio provide reasonable assurance regarding tiabitey of financial reporting and the
preparation of our financial statements for extereporting purposes in accordance with accounirgciples generally accepted in the United
States of America.

As of December 31, 2011, our managemenducted an assessment of the effectiveness of temad control over financial reporting
based on the framework establishedhiernal Control—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission. Based on this assessmentmauagement has concluded that our internal coote financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011 is effective.

Our internal control over financial repagiincludes policies and procedures that pertatheéaonaintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect transacti@ms! dispositions of assets; provide reasonableasses that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statesin accordance with accounting principles gaheaccepted in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures argtaade only in accordance with authorizationsusfrnanagement and directors; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets that could
have a material effect on our financial statements.

The effectiveness of our internal contre¢iofinancial reporting as of December 31, 2011een audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report appearing on pages 67-68iefAnnual Report on Form 10-K, which
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigsrd our internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2011.

Changes to Internal Control Over FinandrRgporting. No change in internal control over financigiagting (as defined in Rule 13a-15
() under the Exchange Act) occurred during therwraled December 31, 2011 that has materially &ifleor is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial repagi

Iltem 9B. Other Information.
None.

117




Table of Contents

PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance.

Information regarding the Company's dirextincluding the audit committee and audit comeeittinancial experts, and executive officers
and compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchangewfill be included in the Proxy Statement anchisorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business CoratutEthics for all directors, officers and emplayyeéthe Company which is available on
website at www.starwoodpropertytrust.com. In additistockholders may request a free copy of thee@bddBusiness Conduct and Ethics fr«

Starwood Property Trust, Inc.
Attention: Investor Relations
591 West Putnam Avenue
Greenwich, CT 06830

(202) 422-7700

We have also adopted a Code of Ethics fimcial Executive Officer and Senior Financial io#frs setting forth a code of ethics
applicable to our principal executive officer, mrjpal financial officer and principal accountindioér, which is available on our website at
www.starwoodpropertytrust.com. Stockholders mayiest a free copy of the Code of Ethics for Prinicipeecutive Officer and Senior
Financial Officers from the address and phone nuraétforth above.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have also adopted Corporate Governanigelihes, which are available on our website atmstarwoodpropertytrust.com.
Stockholders may request a free copy of the Cotpddavernance Guidelines from the address and pmaméer set forth above.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item Wik included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mégrs.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
Item 13. Certain Relationship and Related Transetions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incotgdraerein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item wak included in the Proxy Statement and is incofgdraerein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes.
(@) Documents filed as part of this repc
(1) Financial Statements:
See Item 8—"Financial Statements and Supplemedtaty”, filed herewith, for a list of financial staments.
(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate.
(3)  Exhibits Files:

Eﬁ]:)l?lt Description
3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Starweaxperty Trust, Inc. (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Qubrteeport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

3.2 Bylaws of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (Incorperhby reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Company's Quarterly Report on Formr-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.1 Private Placement Purchase Agreement, dated Adgu&009, between Starwood
Property Trust, Inc. and SPT Investment, LLC (Ipowated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.z Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 1792&fong Starwood Property
Trust, Inc., SPT Investment, LLC and SPT Managemdr€ (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Quarterly Repartr@mrm 10-Q filed November 16,
2009)

10.2 Management Agreement, dated August 17, 2009, arS&igManagement, LLC and
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. (Incorporated by rerfiee to Exhibit 10.3 of the Compan
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.£ Co-Investment and Allocation Agreement, dated Aadiis 2009, among Starwood
Property Trust, Inc., SPT Management, LLC and StadvCapital Group Global, L.P.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of thmr@any's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.t Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Non-Executive Dire&tock Plan (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

10.€ Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for Indegent Directors (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's QuartBeport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

10.7 Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Manager Equity Placdrporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of the Company's Quarterly Report anr 1(-Q filed November 16, 200¢

10.¢ Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Audirst2009, between Starwood
Property Trust, Inc. and SPT Management, LLC (Ipocated by reference to Exhibit 1
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed November 16, 200¢
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Exhibit
No.

Description

10.¢

10.1¢(

10.11

10.1%

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.13

21.1

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCtH

Starwood Property Trust, Inc. Equity Plan (Inaorgied by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of
the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed November 16, 200¢

Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, dated Audifst2009, between Starwood
Property Trust, Inc. and Barbara J. Anderson (lpeated by reference to Exhibit 10.10
of the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn-Q filed November 16, 200¢

Underwriting Agreement, dated as of August 11, 2@08ong Starwood Property

Trust, Inc., SPT Management, LLC and the undervgitemed therein (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Company's Qubrfeeport on Form 10-Q filed
November 16, 200¢

Loan Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated FebruaB016, among Starwood Property
Mortgage Sub-1, L.L.C., Teachers Insurance and Ap#ssociation of America and
Chicago Title Insurance Company, as escrow aganbfporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Quarterly Report annfr 1(-Q filed May 10, 2010

Master Repurchase and Securities Contract, datedni\V&i., 2010, between Starwood
Property Mortgage Sub-1, L.L.C. and Wells FargolBamational Association
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of trempany's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed May 10, 2010

Master Repurchase and Securities Contract, datgdgt®, 2010, between Starwood
Property Mortgage Sub-2, L.L.C. and Wells FargolBafational Association

(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of th@@any's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed August 12, 2010

Master Repurchase Agreement, dated December 2, Béideen Starwood Property
Mortgage Sub-3, L.L.C. and Goldman Sachs Mortgagmany (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's CurReport on Form & filed December ¢
2010)

Credit Agreement, dated December 3, 2010, amongRB#rl Estate Sub II, LLC,
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and certain subsielanf Starwood Property Trust, Inc., as
guarantors, and Bank of America, N.A., as admiatate agent (Incorporated by refere

to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company's Current Reporfonm &K filed December 6, 201(

Amendment No. 2, dated November 3, 2011, to AmeraedRestated Master
Repurchase and Securities Contract, Amended andteéssuarantee and Security
Agreement and Amended and Restated Fee and Ptiettey between and among
Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2, L.L.C., StarwBogperty Mortgage SuPA, L.L.C.,
Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and Wells Fargo Béddtjonal Associatior

Subsidiaries of the Compal

Consent of Deloitte & Touche, LL

Certification pursuant to Section 302(a) of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification pursuant to Section 302(a) of theb@ae-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum
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Exhibit
No.

Description

101.CAL

101.DEF

101.LAB

101.PRI

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunh
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.

Starwood Property Trust, Inc.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of Directors (Principal
Executive Officer

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /sl PERRY STEWART WARD

Perry Stewart Ward
Chief Financial Office!

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s JEFFREY G. DISHNER
Jeffrey G. Dishner
Director
Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s BOYD W. FELLOWS

Boyd W. Fellows
President and Directo

Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ RICHARD D. BRONSON
Richard D. Bronson
Director
Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ JEFFREY F. DIMODICA

Jeffrey F. DiModica
Director
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Date: February 29, 2012 By: /s/ CAMILLE J. DOUGLAS
Camille J. Douglas
Director
Date: February 29, 2012 By: /sl STRAUSS ZELNICK

Strauss Zelnick
Director
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Exhibit 10.17
Execution Copy

CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER REPRCHASE AND SECURITIES CONTRACT, AMENDED AND
RESTATED GUARANTEE AND SECURITY AGREEMENT AND AMENED AND RESTATED FEE AND PRICING LETTER

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER REPRICHASE AND SECURITIES CONTRACT,
AMENDED AND RESTATED GUARANTEE AND SECURITY AGREEMET AND AMENDED AND RESTATED FEE AND PRICING
LETTER, dated as of November 3, 2011 (this “ Amepdtt), between and among STARWOOD PROPERTY MORTGAGBS&JL.L.C., &
Delaware limited liability company, and STARWOOD ®RERTY MORTGAGE SUB-2-A, L.L.C., a Delaware limitédbility company,
(individually and collectively as the context maguire, “ Sellef’) and STARWOOD PROPERTY TRUST, INC., a Marylandmaration
having its principal place of business at 591 WRegham Avenue, Greenwich, Connecticut 06830 (“ @Goiar”) and WELLS FARGO BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking associati(* Buyer”). Capitalized terms used but not otherwise dadiherein shall have
the meanings given to them in the Repurchase Ageae(as defined below).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer are parties to that gedanended and Restated Master Repurchase anditBec@ontract,
dated as of February 28, 2011 (as amended purkuAnmtendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated MastpufRhase and Securities Contract,
Amended and Restated Guarantee and Security Agréemmd Amended and Restated Fee and Pricing ladted as of May 24, 2011 (*
Amendment No. 1), and as further amended pursuant to Amendmen2NMo Amended and Restated Master Repurchaseemuittes
Contract, Amended and Restated Guarantee and 8e&greement and Amended and Restated Fee ana@tieitter dated as of the date
hereof, and as further amended, restated, supptethenotherwise modified and in effect from tinodime, the “ Repurchase Agreemént

WHEREAS, in connection with the Repurchase Agredm@nGuarantor executed and delivered to BuyeAarended and
Restated Guarantee and Security Agreement, datedRebruary 28, 2011, as amended pursuant to AmentNo. 1 (the “ Guarantég and
(ii) Buyer and Seller executed and delivered an Adeel and Restated Fee and Pricing Letter datefiebouary 28, 2011, as amended
pursuant to Amendment No. 1 (the “ Fee and Pritieiger”);

WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer have agreed, to furtiheerad certain provisions of the Repurchase Agreemmashthe Fee and
Pricing Letter in the manner set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, Buyer and Guarantor have agreed to fudh@end certain provisions of the Guarantee in themar set forth
below.
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Therefore, in consideration of the premises anafoer good and valuable consideration, the reegigtsufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, Seller, Guarantor and Bep&h hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments to Repurchase Agreement(a) Section 1.01 of the Repurchase Agreement is
hereby amended and restated in its entirety to reads follows:

Section 1.01 Applicability . Subject to the terms and conditions of the Relpase Documents, at the request of Seller,
the Parties may from time to time enter into tratisas in which Seller agrees to sell, transfer assign to Buyer certain Assets and
all related rights in and interests related to siisbets on a servicing released basis, againstahsfer of funds by Buyer representing
the Purchase Price for such Assets, with a simeittag agreement by Buyer to transfer to Seller atler3o repurchase such Asset:
a repurchase transaction, against the transfemalfsfby Seller representing the Repurchase Priceufth Assets, at a date not later
than (i) for all Assets other than CMBS Purchasedets, the Maturity Date, and (ii) for all CMBS Ehased Assets, the CMBS
Purchased Asset Maturity Date.

(b) ARTICLE 2 of the Repurchase Agreement is hereby modified byserting the following new definitions in
correct alphabetical order:

“ CMBS Pricing Margin™: Defined in_Schedule 2which definition is incorporated herein by refece.

“ CMBS Pricing Margin Tablé: Shall mean the table set forth in the definitiof “CMBS Pricing Margin”.

“ CMBS Purchased Asset Maturity Ddte The earliest of (a) November 2, 2012, as suate dnay be extended pursuant to
Section 3.07(c), (b) any Accelerated Repurchase,2aid (c) such earlier date upon which the CMB&Hased Asset Maturity Date
occurs in accordance with the Repurchase DocunoeiRequirements of Law.

“ CMBS Purchased Assets Each Purchased Asset which is either a Whole Lo@Senior Interest that accrues interest
fixed rate and which is designated by Buyer andeBak a CMBS Purchased Asset on the related Qoatiion.

“ Exit Fee”: Defined in the Fee and Pricing Letter (as aneghdereby), which definition is incorporated heigyrreference.
“LTV Ratio ": Defined in_Schedule 2which definition is incorporated herein by refece.

“Non-CMBS Extended Maturity Date Defined in Section 3.07(a).

2
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“ Non-CMBS Extension Optioft: Defined in Section 3.07(a).

“Non-CMBS Extension Terrt Defined in Section 3.07(a).

(c) The defined terms “ Commitment Fee’, “ Current Mark -to-Market Value ", “ Custodial Agreement ”, “
LTV/LTC Test ", “ Extension Fee”, “ Maturity Date ", “* Maximum Amount ", * Maximum Applicable Percentage”, “ Pledge
Agreement”, “ Pricing Margin ", “ Repurchase Date”, and “ Utilization Threshold Amount " as set forth in ARTICLE 2 of the
Repurchase Agreement, are hereby amended and restatin their entirety to read as follows:

“ Commitment Feé: Defined in the Fee Letter, which definitionircorporated herein by reference.

“ Current Markto-Market Value’: For any Purchased Asset as of any date, th&ehaalue for such Purchased Asset as of
such date as determined by Buyer (a) with referémtiee market value of the Underlying Mortgagedgderty, and (b) taking into
account such other criteria (other than curremrést rates and spreads) as and to the exterBulgat deems appropriate, including
appropriate, market conditions, credit qualityuldjty of position, subordination and delinquentgtss and aging which market val
in each case, may be determined to be zero. The@wMark-to-Market Value of each Purchased Aasebf the related Purchase
Date will be set forth in the Confirmation executeadonnection with the related Transaction, arel@urrent Mark-to-Market Value
of any Purchased Asset other than any CMBS Purdhasget will not be adjusted by Buyer after thated Purchase Date unless a
Credit Event shall occur with respect to the rel®archased Asset, providdétht (a) the Current Mark-to-Market Value of any BS
Purchased Asset may be adjusted by Buyer at amydire to changes in interest rates and spreadgbpatitere shall be no restrictions
on Buyer’s ability to recalculate, solely for imat purposes, the Current Mark to Market Valuerof Burchased Asset at any time.

“ Custodial Agreement The Amended and Restated Custodial Agreemetteéddas of February 28, 2011, among Buyer,
Seller and Custodian, substantially in the fornEghibit J.

“ Extension Feé: An amount equal to *** basis points (***%) muftlied by $550,000,000.

“LTV Test”: Defined in the Fee and Pricing Letter, whicHidigion is incorporated herein by reference.
“ Maturity Date™: The earliest of (a) the Initial Maturity Datas such date may be extended pursuant to Sec@@(a},

(b) any Accelerated Repurchase Date, and (c) saidieredate upon which the Maturity Date occuradeordance with the Repurch:
Documents or Requirements of Law.
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“ Maximum Amount”: $550,000,000.

“ Maximum Applicable PercentadgeFor each Purchased Asset as of any date, thénmax applicable percentage
determined by Buyer for such Purchased Asset orethtéed Purchase Date and set forth in the Coafion for such Purchased As:
not to exceed (a) seventy-five percent (75%) fbEAgible Assets consisting of Core Purchased fsether than Hotel Assets and
CMBS Purchased Assets, (b) seventy percent (7084@lif&ligible Assets consisting of Core Purchassdets which are Hotel Asse
(c) sixty-five percent (65%) for all Eligible Assetonsisting of Flex Purchased Assets other thdaelAssets, (d) sixty percent (60%)
for all Eligible Assets consisting of Flex Purchdigessets which are Hotel Assets and, (e) for CMB&PRased Assets, eighty-five
percent (85%), or such lower Applicable Percentymay be required based on the maximum LTV Ratibrainimum Debt Yield
for the applicable CMBS Purchased Asset, in accurdavith the CMBS Pricing Margin Table.

“ Pledge Agreemerit The Amended and Restated Pledge and Securitgeékgent, dated as of February 28, 2011, between
the Buyer and Principal, as amended, modified, a@igupplemented, extended, restated or replacedtime to time.

“ Pricing Margin”: For each Flex Purchased Asset, the applicalde Pricing Margin, for each Core Purchased Agbet,
applicable Core Pricing Margin, and for each CMBB8dRased Asset, the applicable CMBS Pricing Margin.

“ Repurchase Daté For any Purchased Asset other than a CMBS Raseth Asset, the earliest of (a) the Maturity Date,
(b) any Early Repurchase Date therefor, and (cBtm@ness Day on which Seller is to repurchase Bucrhhased Asset as specifiec
Seller and agreed to by Buyer in the related Cordtion. For any Purchased Asset which is a CMBSHaised Asset, the earliest of
(a) the CMBS Purchased Asset Maturity Date, (b) Basty Repurchase Date therefor, and (c) the Bssibay on which Seller is to
repurchase such CMBS Purchased Asset as specyfigdller and agreed to by Buyer in the related @orttion.

“ Utilization Threshold Amount shall mean (x) on the first anniversary of thenipaup Period Expiration Date,
$157,500,000, (y) on the second anniversary ofiiginal Closing Date, $275,000,000 and (z) ontttie, fourth and fifth
anniversary dates of the Original Closing Date,2300,000.

(d) Clause (a) of the definition of “ Eligible Asset, as set forth in ARTICLE 2 of the Repurchase Agrement, is
hereby amended and restated in its entirety to reads follows:

(@) that satisfies the LTV Test;
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(e) The defined term “ Carlyle Hotel Junior Interest ”, as set forth in ARTICLE 2 of the Repurchase Agrement,
is hereby deleted in its entirety.

® Clause (vii) of the definition of “ Purchased Asset, as set forth in ARTICLE 2 of the Repurchase Agreemet,
is hereby amended and restated in its entirety togad as follows:

(vii) amounts and property from time to time on depasihe Waterfall Account, and the Waterfall Accoiiself, and
amounts and property from time to time on depasihe Servicing Agreement Account, and the Sergiéigreement
Account itself,

(9) Sections 3.01(a), (b) and (fpf the Repurchase Agreement are hereby amended amnelstated in their entirety
to read as follows:

€) From time to time prior to (i) for all Assets otitban CMBS Purchased Assets, the Maturity Date, and
(ii) for all CMBS Purchased Assets, November 2,20dut not more frequently than twice per calemdaek, with not less than
three (3) Business Days prior written notice to &yyseller may request Buyer to enter into a prepdgansaction by sending Buye
notice substantially in the form of Exhibit (A Transaction Reque$} (i) describing the Transaction and each proposssket and any
related Underlying Mortgaged Property and otheusgctherefor in reasonable detail, (i) transimigt a complete Underwriting
Package (or whatever portion thereof is then ctisravailable to Seller) for each proposed Assé},dpecifying which (if any) of the
representations and warranties of Seller set farthis Agreement (including in Schedule 1(d)Yb), 1(c)or 1(d)applicable to the
Class of such Asset) Seller will be unable to makh respect to such Asset and (iv) indicating vleetor not Seller proposes to treat
such Asset as a CMBS Purchased Asset. Within(Eiy8usiness Days after the receipt by Buyer ofan$action Request, Buyer sl
indicate to Seller its preliminary approval or ¢ipeoval of the proposed Asset. Seller shall praymieliver to Buyer any
supplemental materials requested at any time byeBypyovided the same are either in Seller’'s passe®r are reasonably obtainable
by Seller. Buyer shall conduct such review of thelerwriting Package and each such Asset as Buterrdines appropriate. Buyer
shall determine whether or not it is willing to pbase any or all of the proposed Assets, and ibisayhat terms and conditions. It is
expressly agreed and acknowledged that Buyer &iagtinto the Transactions on the basis of alhgepresentations and warranties
and on the completeness and accuracy of the inf@meontained in the applicable Underwriting Pagdkaand any incompleteness or
inaccuracies in the related Underwriting Packadeamily be acceptable to Buyer if disclosed in wgtto Buyer by Seller in advance
of the related Purchase Date, and then only if Bopés to purchase the related Purchased Asset3edhar notwithstanding such
incompleteness and inaccuracies. In the evenRemesentation Breach, Seller shall immediatgiyrehase the related Asset or
Assets in accordance with Section 3.04
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(b) If Buyer communicates to Seller a non binding deteation that it is willing to purchase any or allsuch
Assets, which non binding determination shall idelthe principal terms for the proposed Transactafler shall deliver to Buyer an
executed preliminary Confirmation for such Transagtdescribing each such Asset and its proposechBse Date, Market Value,
Applicable Percentage, Purchase Price and such tettmes and conditions as Buyer may require, adatating whether or not Seller
proposes to treat such Asset as a CMBS Purchasst. Al§ Buyer requires changes to the prelimir@opfirmation, Seller shall make
such changes and re execute the preliminary Coafiom. If Buyer determines to enter into the Tet®n on the terms described in
the preliminary Confirmation, Buyer shall prompéyecute and return the same to Seller, which #iedeéupon become effective as
the Confirmation of the Transaction. Buyer’s ap@aioof the purchase of an Asset on such terms anditions as Buyer may require
shall be evidenced only by its execution and dejiwé the related Confirmation. For the avoidan€eoubt, Buyer shall not (i) be
bound by any preliminary or final non binding detération referred to above, (ii) be deemed to tegroved the purchase of an
Asset by virtue of the approval or entering intoBayer of a rate lock agreement, Interest Rateeletiain Agreement, total return sw
or any other agreement with respect to such Assé€iij) be obligated to purchase an Asset notwihding a Confirmation executed
by the Parties unless and until all applicable @ints precedent in Article 6 have been satisfiedvaived by Buyer.

) No Transaction shall be entered into if (i) any §arDeficit, Default or Event of Default exists would
exist as a result of such Transaction, (ii) the Relpase Date for the Purchased Asset subject toBamsaction would be later than
(A) for all Purchased Assets other than CMBS Pweta\ssets, the Maturity Date, and (B) for all CMB&chased Assets, the
CMBS Purchased Asset Maturity Date, (iii) afteriggzeffect to such Transaction, the aggregate Régase Price of all Purchased
Assets subject to Transactions then outstandingdwexceed the Maximum Amount, (iv) a material adeethange with respect to the
related proposed Purchased Asset, Seller and/ara@iaa has occurred, (v) any proposed Purchaseelt Asgs not qualify as an
Eligible Asset, or (vi) Seller has not provided Buoyvith all of the necessary or requested dueetilig materials to allow Buyer to
determine whether or not a proposed Purchased Asaéifies as an Eligible Asset.

(h) Section 3.02f the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended andstated in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 3.02 Transfer of Purchased Assets; Servicing Righ&eller hereby sells, transfers, conveys andjasdd
Buyer on a servicing released basis all of Selleglst, title and interest (but no Retained Int€r@sand to each Purchased Asset,
together with all related Servicing Rights. Subjecthis Agreement, until (A) for all Purchaseds@&ts other than CMBS Purchased
Assets, the Maturity Date, and (B) for all CMBS €hased Assets, November 2, 2012, Seller may sBliyer, repurchase from Buy
and re-sell Eligible Assets to Buyer, but may ndistitute other Eligible Assets for Purchased Ass@n each Purchase Date
ownership of and title to each Purchased Asset
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shall be transferred to and vest in Buyer or itsigleee against the simultaneous transfer of thehase Price to the account of Seller
specified in Annex Tor if not specified therein, in the related Comfation or as directed by Seller). Buyer has thbtrio designate
the servicer and sub-servicer of the Purchasedtg\smed the Servicing Rights and other servicirayisions under this Agreement are
not severable from or to be separated from theHaised Assets under this Agreement, and such SggvyRights and other servicing
provisions of this Agreement constitute (a) “rethterms” under this Agreement within the meanin&eétion 101(47)(A)(i) of the
Bankruptcy Code and/or (b) a security agreementiwer arrangement or other credit enhancemengrktatthe Repurchase
Documents.

® Section 3.0%f the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended andstated in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 3.05 Repurchase On the Repurchase Date for each Purchased /sty shall transfer to Buyer the
Repurchase Price for such Purchased Asset as Bfgbarchase Date, and the related Seller Partysakll amounts due to any
Affiliated Hedge Counterparty under the relateetast Rate Protection Agreement and Buyer shalstea to Seller such Purchased
Asset, whereupon the Transaction with respect ¢b fwrchased Asset shall terminate. Buyer shaleeened to have simultaneously
released its security interest in such PurchaseétAshall authorize Custodian to release to SéleePurchased Asset Documents for
such Purchased Asset and, to the extent any U@&@ding statement filed against Seller specificalgntifies such Purchase Asset,
Buyer shall deliver an amendment thereto or tertiinahereof evidencing the release of such Puetthdsset from Buyer's security
interest therein. Any such transfer or releasd bleavithout recourse to Buyer and without repreaon or warranty by Buyer,
except that Buyer shall represent to Seller, tcetttent that good title was transferred and asslignyeSeller to Buyer hereunder on the
related Purchase Date, that Buyer is the sole owfittie related Purchased Asset, free and cleanypbther interests or Liens created
by Buyer. Any Income with respect to such Purctassset received by Buyer or Waterfall Account Bafter payment of the
Repurchase Price therefor shall be remitted teeSeMotwithstanding the foregoing, (A) on or beféhe CMBS Purchased Asset
Maturity Date, Seller shall repurchase all CMBSdbPaised Assets by paying to Buyer the outstandimmiRease Price therefor and
all other related outstanding Repurchase Obligatiand (B) on or before the Maturity Date, Sellelkrepurchase all remaining
Purchased Assets by paying to Buyer the outstarid@murchase Price therefor and all other outstgndipurchase Obligations.

()] Section 3.06(b)of the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended angstated in its entirety to read as
follows :
(b) Seller and Guarantor shall pay to Buyer all fees @her amounts as and when due as required bgineement

including, without limitation:
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0] the Non-Utilization Fee, which shall be due andaidg on the first anniversary of the Ramp-up PeEggliration
Date and on each succeeding anniversary of theérmatiglosing Date; provided, however, that if tAigreement terminates at any ti
prior to the first anniversary of the Ramp-up Peifitxpiration Date (for the avoidance of doubt, eifeall Purchased Assets are
repurchased by Seller at any time prior to the &rmiversary of the Ramp-up Period Expiration Datee Non-Utilization Fee will
remain due and payable by Seller and Guarantdnefirst anniversary of the Ramp-up Period ExpiratDate based on all accruals
for the time period beginning on the Ramp-up PeEggdiration Date and ending on the first anniveyssrthe Ramp-up Period
Expiration Date. In addition thereto, the follogiamounts will be due and payable on the annivgiisdicated: (A) on the second
anniversary of the Original Closing Date, Selled &uarantor shall pay to Buyer an additional ameuwpial to (1) twenty-five basis
points (0.25%) multiplied by (2) the positive amguhany of (i) $385,000,000 minus (ii) the greradé either the average daily unpaid
Repurchase Price of all Purchased Assets (excludipgid Price Differential) during the precedinga{9) month period or
$275,000,000; and (B) on the third, fourth anchfiéinniversaries of the Original Closing Date, Salled Guarantor shall pay to Buyer
an additional amount equal to (1) twenty-five bgts (0.25%) multiplied by (2) the positive amguf any of (i) $385,000,000
minus (ii) the greater of either the average dailpaid Repurchase Price of all Purchased Assetfu@irng unpaid Price Differential)
during the preceding twelve (12) month period ddZ300,000;

(i) the Exit Fee, which will be due and payable in adance with the provisions of Sectiorfithe
Fee and Pricing Letter (as amended hereby);

(i) the Commitment Fee, which shall be due and payatMovember 3, 2011; and

(iv) the Extension Fee, which shall be payable on the afethe exercise by Seller of each Non-CMBS
Extension Option.

(k) Section 3.070f the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended andstated in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 3.07 Extension of the Maturity Date (a) For all Purchased Assets other than CMB8Hased Assets, Seller
shall have two (2) options to extend the Maturigt®(each, a * NolCMBS Extension Optiofi), each for an additional one (1) year
period (each, a “ Nol€MBS Extension Terr)) ending on the one year anniversary of the IhMaturity Date or the first extended
Maturity Date, as the case may be (each, a ““RMBS Extended Maturity Dat§, exercisable in each case by delivery to Buyfea o
written notice requesting any such NGMBS Extension Option no earlier than sixty (60yslar later than thirty (30) days prior to
Initial Maturity Date or first Non-CMBS Extended Maity Date, as the case may be. Following theimof notice in the manner set
forth herein, Buyer shall grant the Non-CMBS Exten<Option so

8




CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

long as the following conditions are satisfied: n® Event of Default exists on the date of delvef notice by Seller exercising such
Non-CMBS Extension Option or on the then currentviy Date, (i) no Margin Deficit is outstandingii) Seller is in compliance
with the Debt Yield Test, (iv) all Purchased Assguiglify as Eligible Assets (or, if any Purchasesbét is not an Eligible Asset, Seller
repurchases such Purchased Asset within the eafl{g) the then-current Maturity Date, or (y) ter€8) business days after the
delivery of notice thereof from Buyer, provided thize failure of Buyer to deliver such written roatishall not be construed as a we
of Buyer’s right to require Seller to satisfy afltbe conditions for an extension of the Term), &dhe payment by Seller to Buyer of
the Extension Fee on or before the current Matibdye.

(b) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, if a Diéflaas occurred and is continuing on or prior te tihen current
Maturity Date, then the Initial Maturity Date oretfirst Extended Non-CMBS Maturity Date, as apglieashall be extended on an
interim basis to the earlier of the date such Diefaicured by or at the direction of Seller (whgven the exercise of the applicable
Non-CMBS Extension Option shall immediately be efffee and the then current Maturity Date applicabl®urchased Assets other
than CMBS Purchased Assets shall be extendeddaphlicable Non-CMBS Extension Term) or, if suafdlt remains uncured,
the date that the applicable cure period in respestich Default expires.

(c) For all CMBS Purchased Assets, Seller shall haee(dhoption to extend the CMBS Purchased AssetiMgtDate
(the “ CMBS Purchased Asset Extension Optipantil November 2, 2013, exercisable by delivemyBuyer of a written notice
requesting the CMBS Purchased Asset Extension @pticearlier than sixty (60) days or later thamtyhi30) days prior to the CMBS
Purchased Asset Maturity Date. Following the necef notice in the manner set forth herein, Busteall grant the CMBS Purchased
Asset Extension Option so long as the followingditians are satisfied: (i) no Event of Default égien the date of delivery of notice
by Seller exercising the CMBS Purchased Asset BidanOption or on the initial CMBS Purchased Addaturity Date, (ii) no
Margin Deficit is outstanding, (iii) Seller is impliance with the Debt Yield Test, and (iv) allrBhiased Assets qualify as Eligible
Assets (or, if any Purchased Asset is not an Héglsset, Seller repurchases such Purchased Agbét warlier of (x) the original
CMBS Purchased Asset Maturity Date, or (y) withiree (3) business days after the delivery of ndtieeeof from Buyer, provided
that the failure of Buyer to deliver such writtestioce shall not be construed as a waiver of Buyeglst to require Seller to satisfy all
of the conditions for an extension of the Term).

(d) Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, if a Diéflaas occurred and is continuing on or prior te ithitial CMBS
Purchased Asset Maturity Date, the initial CMBSdPiased Asset Maturity Date shall be extended dntarim basis to the earlier of
the date such Default is cured by or at the dioaatif Seller (whereupon the exercise of the CMB&Rased Asset Extension Option
shall immediately be effective and the initial CMB8rchased Asset Maturity Date shall be extendétiNiovember 2, 2013)

9
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or, if such Default remains uncured, the date tivatapplicable cure period in respect of such Deéagires.

)] Clausesseventhand eighth Section 5.020f the Repurchase Agreement are hereby amended anelstated in
their entirety to read as follows:

seventh for each Core Purchased Asset and, at all times defore February 2, 2013, for each CMBS Pumth#sset, to
pay the Applicable Percentage of any Principal Rayto Buyer, but only to the extent that such t&ance would not result in the
creation of a Margin Deficit, to be applied by Buyéthin one (1) Business Day of receipt to redtheeoutstanding Purchase Price of
the applicable Purchased Asset, with the balansedi Principal Payment to be paid to Seller withiee (3) Business Days of
receipt;

eighth, for each Flex Purchased Asset and, at all tirftes Bebruary 2, 2013, for each CMBS PurchasedtAts@ay one-
hundred percent (100%) of any Principal Paymemuger, to be applied by Buyer within one (1) Bus&®ay of receipt to reduce
outstanding Purchase Price of the applicable PaathAsset and, after payment in full of such PwelRrice, any remaining portion
of any such Principal Payment shall be paid toeg&lithin three (3) Business Days;

(m) Section 6.02(f) of the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended anekstated in its entirety to read as
follows:

® the Repurchase Date is not later than (i) for atcRased Assets other than CMBS Purchased Asiets, t
Maturity Date, and (ii) for all CMBS Purchased Asse¢he CMBS Purchased Asset Maturity Date;

(n) The introductory paragraph of Section 8.100f the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended andstated in
its entirety to read as follows:

Section 8.10 Delivery of Notices Seller shall promptly (and in no event latemtio@e (1) Business Day from
the date that Seller has Knowledge of each suchroerece) notify Buyer and any other Affiliated Hedgounterparty of the
occurrence of any of the following of which Selkers Knowledge, together with a certificate of agoesible Officer of Seller setting
forth details of such occurrence and any actiofeBkhs taken or proposes to take with respecetber

(0) The existing clause (g) of Section 8.1 the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended toldee the period at
the end and replace it with “; and”, and the folloning new clause (h) is hereby added to the end of @ien 8.100f the Repurchase
Agreement:

(h) if (i) any CMBS Purchased Asset is presented foisaeration as part of any securitization, (ii)l&el
withdraws any such presentation or (iii) Seller

10
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receives written notice that, for any reason, amhsCMBS Purchased Asset has been rejected orcoepted for such securitization.
(p) Section 12.02f the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended andstated in its entirety to read as follows:

Section 12.02  lllegality . If the adoption of or any change in any Requigts of Law or in the interpretation or
application thereof after the date hereof shall eniakinlawful for Buyer to effect or continue Traigtions as contemplated by the
Repurchase Documents, (a) any commitment of Bugerunder to enter into new Transactions shall tmiteted and both the
Maturity Date and the CMBS Purchased Asset Matubaye shall be deemed to have occurred, and (l)thang Rate shall be
converted automatically to the Alternative Ratettomlast day of the then current Pricing Period/ithin such earlier period as may
required by Requirements of Law.

(a) Exhibits A and B to the Repurchase Agreement are hereby amended anesstated in their entirety and
replaced with Exhibits A and Bto this Amendment.

(3] Schedule 2of the Repurchase Agreement is hereby amended, ragtd and replaced in its entirety with the
attached Schedule hereto.

SECTION 2. Amendment to Guarantee. Section 2(b) of the Guarantee is hereby amended and restated its
entirety to read as follows:

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryt fubject to clause (c) below, the maximum liapitf
Guarantor hereunder and under the Repurchase Dotsistall in no event exceed the sum of (x) twdiviypercent (25%) of the
then-currently unpaid aggregate Repurchase Prie# Burchased Assets consisting of both Core Raseth Assets and CMBS
Purchased Assets, (y) one-hundred percent (100%hedhen-currently unpaid aggregate Repurchase Bfiall Purchased Assets
consisting of Flex Purchased Assets and (z) onelewinpercent (100%) of all amounts due and payapl@uarantor or any
Intermediate Starwood Entity under any and allredeRate Protection Agreements with an Affiliakéetlge Counterparty to which
Guarantor or any Intermediate Starwood Entity pagty.

SECTION 3. Amendments to Fee and Pricing Letter (a) The following, new defined terms are added to
Section 1of the Fee and Pricing Letter, in correct alphabetial order:

“ Commitment Feé: An amount equal to twenty-five basis points2@%) multiplied by $200,000,000.
“ Exit Fee”: 0.50% of the then-current unpaid Repurchaseeruf the related Purchased Asset.
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(b) The defined term “ LTV/LTC Test”, as set forth in Section 1of the Fee and Pricing Letter, is hereby
amended and restated in its entirety to read as flaws:

“LTV Test™ (A) For each Core Purchased Asset other thatelHgssets, the ratio of the Purchase Price of sach Core
Purchased Asset to the market value of the Undwylilortgaged Property or Underlying Mortgaged Prtes for the related Core
Purchased Asset as determined by Buyer in itsaudeabsolute discretion, shall not exceed an amexurl to *** percent (***%),
(B) for each Core Purchased Asset consisting ob@IH\sset, the ratio of the Purchase Price of sach Core Purchased Asset the
market value of the Underlying Mortgaged PropertyJaderlying Mortgaged Properties for the relatedeCPurchased Asset as
determined by Buyer in its sole and absolute dismeshall not exceed an amount equal to *** patdg**%), (C) for each Flex
Purchased Asset other than Hotel Assets, the atioe Purchase Price of each such Flex PurchasseltAo the market value of the
Underlying Mortgaged Property or Underlying MortgddgProperties for the related Flex Purchased Assdetermined by Buyer in
sole and absolute discretion, shall not exceedauat equal to *** percent (***%), and (D) for ea¢ex Purchased Asset consisting
of a Hotel Asset, the ratio of the Purchase Priceach such Flex Purchased Asset to the markeé\adlthe Underlying Mortgaged
Property or Underlying Mortgaged Properties for iblated Flex Purchased Asset as determined byrBuyts sole and absolute
discretion, shall not exceed an amount equal topetcent (***%).

(c) Clause (b) of the defined term “ Suhimit " is hereby amended and restated in its entirety toead as follows:

(b) to the extent that the RepurchaseePascribed to Purchased Assets consisting of Aatedts
would exceed $***;



(d) The existing clause (d) of the defidderm “ Sub-Limit " is hereby amended to delete the period at the et
and replace it with “; and”, and the following new clauses (e) and (f) are added to the defined termSub-Limit "

(e to the extent that the RepurchaseeRrscribed to Purchased Assets consisting of Fleshased
Assets would exceed $***; and

® to the extent that the RepurchaseePascribed to CMBS Purchased Assets exceedsGEI,000
(e) Section »f the Fee and Pricing Letter is hereby amended andestated in its entirety to read as follows:
2. Early Repurchases and Mandatory Repchases under Section 3.04(a) of the Repurchase A&gment. The

following new clause (iii) is hereby added to Sectn 3.04(a) of the Repurchase Agreement:
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(iii) If any CMBS Purchased Asset is praeel for consideration as part of a securitizabiahis not accepted for
inclusion in such securitization or, is acceptedificlusion in such securitization but such preagan is subsequently
withdrawn by Seller, or, at any time after prest@otg is rejected for any reason by an underwritting agency or B piece
investor (any of the foregoing a “ CMBS IneligibyliDeterminatior) (i) within fifteen (15) days from the receipt by ®elof
prior written notice thereof from Buyer, the them@nt unpaid Repurchase Price of the related CBiShased Asset must
be reduced by Seller by at least fifty percent (50&ad (ii) within thirty (30) days from the receipy Seller of the same prior
written notice thereof from Buyer, the then-curranpaid Repurchase Price of the related CMBS PgethAsset must be
repaid in full by Seller. Notwithstanding the fgaéng, if only a portion of a CMBS Purchased Adsetffected by a CMBS
Ineligibility Determination (such portion, the “ OB& Ineligible Portior; and the portion of such CMBS Purchased Asse
so affected by such CMBS Ineligibility Determinatjdhe “ CMBS Eligible Portiori), then, provided that within

fourteen (14) days after such CMBS IneligibilitytBemination, Seller satisfies the Resizing Cond#igas defined below) in
a manner acceptable to Buyer in its discretioneBehall only be required to reduce and repaypthition of the Repurchase
Price of the related CMBS Purchased Asset thaiei<tMBS Ineligible Portion. For purposes of thex®on 2(iii), the term “
Resizing Conditions shall mean (A) if the related CMBS Purchased Agsa Senior Interest, Seller modifies the Puredas
Asset Documents for such CMBS Purchased Assetfpntdo an amendment or modification in form anossance
acceptable to Buyer) to reduce the principal baasfcsuch Senior Interest to an amount equal t&€t18S Eligible Portion
(and to increase the principal balance of the edldunior Interest to an amount equal to the CMi#idible Portion), or

(B) if the related CMBS Purchased Asset is a Wholgn, Seller modifies the Purchased Asset Docunfentsuch CMBS
Purchased Asset (pursuant to an amendment or roatitin in form and substance acceptable to Bugesphvert such
CMBS Purchased Asset into a Senior Interest inreginal principal amount equal to the CMBS Eligititertion (and with a
related Junior Interest in an original principalamt equal to the CMBS Ineligible Portion) andeach case, only if all of ti
requirements set forth in Section 3lfdve been satisfied with respect to the related SN#Brchased Asset.

® The following new Section & hereby added to the Fee and Pricing Letter, anthe existing Sections ¥ of the
Fee and Pricing Letter are hereby renumbered accoridgly:

3. Terms and Provisions Concerning theayment of the Exit Fee Except to the extent set forth below, the
applicable Exit Fee shall be due and payable imeotion with the repurchase of any Purchased Ass8eller from Buyer for any reason.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Exit Fee shalldoe and payable in connection with the repurcbésay Purchased Asset for any of
reasons set forth below:
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(@) if any such Purchased Asset is rejpaighole or in part as a result of a voluntarygagment or repayment at
maturity by an Underlying Obligor;

(b) such repurchase is being made in ection with the foreclosure or other exercise ofiedies under the Purchased
Asset Documents relating to such Purchased Asset;

(c) such repurchase is being made to @nyeDefault, Event of Default or Margin Deficit; o

(d) if Seller intends to sell any suchr¢hased Asset in a non-CMBS whole loan sale tard ffarty (a “ Whole Loan
Sale”) and Buyer is given a right of first offer to mrase such Purchased Loan, and Buyer (A) faileliget a written offer
for purchase of such Purchased Asset within fifdéy) Business Days after receipt of Seller’s reotic (B) Buyer delivers a
written offer for purchase of such Purchased Assitin said fifteen (15) Business Day period, betl& is not willing to
accept such offer, then within one hundred thine-{135) days thereafter, Seller shall have tgktrio repurchase and sell
such Purchased Asset to a third party in a WhokmnlL$ale without payment of an Exit Fee, in the cdstause (A), at any
price Seller may elect or, in the case of clauggdBa price greater than or equal to ninety-seearoent (97%) of the price
offered by Buyer.

SECTION 4. Conditions Precedent This Amendment and its provisions shall beconfiecéfre on the first date on
which this Amendment is executed and delivered dulg authorized officer of each of each Sellery&uand Guarantor (the “ Amendment
Effective Daté").

SECTION 5. Representations, Warrantieand Covenants. Each of each Seller and Guarantor hereby reptiesen
and warrants to Buyer, as of the date hereof amd e Amendment Effective Date, that (i) eacmisompliance in all material respects with
all of the terms and provisions set forth in eaeptRchase Document to which it is a party on it$ fgebe observed or performed, (ii) no
Default or Event of Default has occurred or is ganihg. Seller hereby confirms and reaffirms gpresentations, warranties and covenants
contained in the Repurchase Agreement.

SECTION 6. Acknowledgement Seller hereby acknowledges that Buyer is in céamnpk with its undertakings and
obligations under the Repurchase Agreement andttier Repurchase Documents.

SECTION 7. Limited Effect. Except as expressly amended and modified byAimendment, the Repurchase
Agreement, the Guarantee, the Fee and Pricingrlaattteach of the other Repurchase Documentsairgihue to be, and shall remain, in full
force and effect in accordance with their respectérms; providedhowever, that upon the Amendment Effective Date, eachéfgrence
therein and herein to the “Repurchase Documentd! bk deemed to include, in any event, this Ameswltn(w) each reference to the
“Repurchase
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Agreement” in any of the Repurchase Documents dleatleemed to be a reference to the Repurchasemgre as amended hereby, (x) each
reference to the “Guarantee” in any of the RepweHlaocuments shall be deemed to be a referenbe tBuarantee as amended hereby,

(y) each reference to the “Fee and Pricing Letitregny of the Repurchase Documents shall be de¢mnleel a reference to the Fee and Pricing
Letter as amended hereby, and (z) each refereribe Repurchase Agreement to “this Agreement”,“tRepurchase Agreement”, “hereof”,
“herein” or words of similar effect in referring tbe Repurchase Agreement shall be deemed to &eneks to the Repurchase Agreement as
amended by this Amendment.

SECTION 8. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed by each of théegarereto on any number of
separate counterparts, each of which shall beigmatand all of which taken together shall congé one and the same instrument. Delivery
of an executed counterpart of a signature pageiscAimendment in Portable Document Format (PDH)yofacsimile transmission shall be
effective as delivery of a manually executed o@djicounterpart thereof.

SECTION 9. Expenses Seller and Guarantor agree to pay and reimbuuyeBor all out-of-pocket costs and
expenses incurred by Buyer in connection with tiegaration, execution and delivery of this Amendimetluding, without limitation, the
fees and disbursements of Cadwalader, Wickersharaf&LLP, counsel to Buyer.

SECTION 10. GOVERNING LAW.

THIS AMENDMENT AND ANY CLAIM, CONTROVERSY OR DISPUT E ARISING UNDER OR RELATED TO OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES, AND/OR THE INTERPRETATION AND
ENFORCEMENT OF THE RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE PARTIES WILL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO ANY CONFLICTS OF LAW PRI NCIPLES OTHER THAN SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW
YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONS LAW.

[SIGNATURES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAmendment to be duly executed and delivereaf #ise day an

year first above writter

SELLER

STARWOOD PROPERTY MORTGAGE SUB-2,L.L.C., a
Delaware limited liability compan

By:

Name:
Title:

STARWOOD PROPERTY MORTGAGE SUB-2-A, L.L.C. ,a
Delaware limited liability compan

By:

Name:
Title:

BUYER

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., a national banking associati

By:

Name:
Title:




CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

GUARANTOR

STARWOOD PROPERTY TRUST, INC. , a Maryland corporatio

By:

Name:
Title:




CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

EXHIBIT A
FORM OF TRANSACTION REQUEST

[ 101200 ]

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
One Wachovia Center

301 South College Street

MAC D1053-160, 168" Floor

Charlotte, North Carolina 28202

Attention:
Re: Amended and Restated Master Repurchase and Ses@itntract dated as of February 28, 2011 (thereément
") among Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2, L.L:CSyb-2 "), Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2-A, L.L.C. (“
Sub2-A ") and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (“y&u")

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This is a Transaction Request delivered pursuaBetdion 3.0Df the Agreement. Terms used but not defined heass as
defined in the Agreement. [Sub-2][Sub-2-A] herebguests that Buyer enter into a Transaction upermptoposed terms set forth below.

Assets (including Class a1

Underlying Mortgaged Property As described iIAppendix 1hereta
Is this a CMBS Purchased Asse [yes]/[no]

Book Value: As described ilAppendix lhereto
Market Value: $

Applicable Percentag: %

Purchased Asset Documer As described itAppendix lhereto
Purchase Datt [ 10 1.20[ ]




CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

Purchase Price $
Except as specified in Appendixhereto, on the Purchase Date for each Asset deddrilthis Transaction Request, [Sub-2][Sub-2-A] wi

make all of the representations and warrantiesatoad in the Agreement (including Schedul® the Agreement as applicable to the Class of
such Asset) with respect thereto.

Seller:

[Starwood Property Mortgage <-2, L.L.C.

By:

Name:
Title:]

[Starwood Property Mortgage S-2-A, L.L.C.

By:

Name:
Title:]

CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

Appendix 1 to Transaction Request

List of Eligible Assets requested to be purchaseihclude, as applicable:

(@) Transaction Nam
(b) Seller Loan Numbe
(c) Class (Whole Loan, Junior Interest,iSemmterest,

Mezzanine Loan or Mezzanine Participation Inter
(d) Lien Type

(e) Property Type

® Property Street Addre:

(9) Property City, State, County, Zip Co

(h) Appraised Value

0] Appraisal Firm

)] Appraisal Date

(k) Original Balance

)] Seller Origination Balanc
(m) Current Balanci

(n) Amortization

(0) Balloon Amount

(p) [Current] Interest Rat

(@) Spreac

) Index (Ex: 1 mo LIBOR; [ ]%
(s) Next Interest Change Da
® Next Payment Change Dz
(u) Interest Rate ca

v) Current Principal and Intere

(w) Note Date

(x) First Payment Due Date to Sel
) Initial Maturity Date

(2) Extended Maturity Dat



(aa)
(bb)
(cc)
(dd)
(ee)

(99)
(hh)
(i)
)

Current delinquency stati

Payment Typt

Payment Frequenc

Rate Change Frequen

Original Principal and Intere

Sponsor Name (including first name, if al
Borrowing Entity Name

Underlying Borrower Nam

Open to Prepaymen

Prepayment Penal




CONFIDENTIAL MATERIAL APPEARING IN THIS DOCUMENT HA S BEEN OMITTED AND FILED SEPARATELY WITH
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IN ACCORDANC E WITH THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND RULE 24B-2 PROMULGATED THEREUNDER. OMITTED INFO RMATION HAS BEEN REPLACED WITH ASTERISKS

(kk) Current Senior Lien

()] Current Senior Lende

(mm) DSCR on Prior/Senior Lier

(nn)  Term of Senior Lien

(00) Interest Rate of Senior Loa

(pp)  Current DSCR on combined de
(qq)  Current LTV, including senior lier

[See related Confirmation for exceptions to repmésgons and warranties made by Seller]




EXHIBIT B

FORM OF CONFIRMATION

[ 101200 ]

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
One Wachovia Center

301 South College Street

MAC D1053-160, 16" Floor

Charlotte, North Carolina 28288

Attention:

Re: Amended and Restated Master Repuraras&ecurities Contract dated as of February @Bl 2Zthe “ Agreement

") among Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2, L.L:GGyb-2 "), Starwood Property Mortgage Sub-2-A, L.L.C. {t82-A ")

and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (* BuYer
Ladies and Gentlemen:

This is a Confirmation executed and delivered bhybfR][Sub-2-A] and Buyer pursuant to Section 300the Agreement.
Terms used but not defined herein are as defindtkilgreement. [Sub-2][Sub-2-A] and Buyer herebgfirm and agree that as of the
Purchase Date and upon the other terms specifiedpgSub-2][Sub-2-A] shall sell and assign to Buyand Buyer shall purchase from [Sub-2]
[Sub-2-A], all of [Sub-2][Sub-2-A]’s right, titlerad interest in, to and under the Purchased Asisétsl lin Appendix hereto.

Purchased Assets (including Class

Underlying Mortgaged Property As described itAppendix 1hereto
Is this a CMBS Purchased Asse [yes]/[no]

Market Value: $

Applicable Percentag: %

Purchased Asset Documer As described ilAppendix 1lhereto
Purchase Dat¢ [ 111 20[]

Purchase Pric¢ $




Seller hereby certifies as follows, on and as efahove Purchase Date with respect to each Putidaset described in this Confirmation:

1. All of the conditions precedent irtidle 6 of the Agreement have been satisfied.
2. Except as specified in Appendieteto, Seller will make all of the representatiand warranties contained in the

Agreement (including Scheduletd the Agreement as applicable to the Class of susdet).

Buyer:

Acknowledged and Agree

Wells Fargo Bank, National Associati

By:

Name:
Title:

Seller:

[Starwood Property Mortgage <-2, L.L.C.

By:

Name:
Title:]

[Starwood Property Mortgage <-2, L.L.C.

By:

Name:
Title:]




Appendix 1 to Confirmation

List of Purchased Assets, including, as applicable:

(@) Transaction Nam
(b) Seller Loan Numbe
(c) Class (Whole Loan, Senior Interest, kérne Loan, Junic

Interest or Mezzanine Participation Intere
(d) Lien Type

(e) Property Type

® Property Street Addre:

(9) Property City, State, County, Zip Co
(h) Appraised Value

0] Appraisal Firm

()] Appraisal Date

(k) Original Balance

)] Seller Origination Balanc
(m) Current Balanc

(n) Amortization

(0) Balloon Amounti

(p) [Current] Interest Rat

(@) Spreac

(9] Index (Ex: 1 mo LIBOR; []%

(s) Next Interest Change Da

® Next Payment Change Dz

(u) Interest Rate ca

(v) Current Principal and Intere
(w) Note Date

(x) First Payment Due Date to Sel
() Initial Maturity Date

(2) Extended Maturity Dat

(@aa)  Current delinquency stat

(bb)  Payment Typt

(cc) Payment Frequenc

(dd) Rate Change Frequen

(ee)  Original Principal and Intere
() Sponsor Name (including first name, if ai
(g9) Borrowing Entity Name

(hh) Underlying Borrower Nam

(i) Open to Prepaymen

()] Prepayment Penal

(kk) Current Senior Lien

()] Current Senior Lende




(mm) DSCR on Prior/Senior Lier

(nn)  Term of Senior Lien

(o0) Interest Rate of Senior Loa

(pp)  Current DSCR on combined de
(qg)  Current LTV, including senior lier

[See attached for a description of any exceptionmgpresentations and warranties made by Seller]




Schedule

“ Core Pricing Margin ": Determined as set forth below, based on the ApplécRercentage for each Core Purchased #

Non-Hotel Hotel
Core Pricing Core Pricing
Applicable Percentage Margin Margin
0 - 50% *k%k *%k%
50.01%- 60% ok ok
60.01%- 70% ok ok
70.01%— 75% e ok

“ CMBS Pricing Margin”: Determined as set forth below, based on thelidgple Percentage, maximum LTV Ratio and
minimum Debt Yield for each CMBS Purchased Asset:

Applicable Percentage Maximum LTV Ratio Minimum Debt Yield CMBS Pricing Margin
0 — 75% ***% ***% *k%k
75.01- 80% *H*0 *RROf Kk
80.01-85% *H*0/ *xx0/ *okk

“ Debt Yield Test”: (i) The Underlying Mortgaged Property or Undénlg Mortgaged Properties pledged to secure aleCor
Purchased Assets other than Hotel Assets and Miitieap Purchased Assets must at all times and dudlirrelevant time periods generate a
Debt Yield of at least *** percent (***%), (ii) th&nderlying Mortgaged Property or Underlying Moriga Properties pledged to secure all
Core Purchased Assets consisting of Hotel Assets atlall times and during all relevant time pesiognerate a Debt Yield of at least ***
percent (***%), (iii) the Underlying Mortgaged Pregy or Underlying Mortgaged Properties pledgeddoure all Core Purchased Assets
consisting of Metropolitan Purchased Assets, muall @imes and during all relevant time periodsegte a Debt Yield of at least *** percent
(***%), (iv) the Underlying Mortgaged Property omderlying Mortgaged Properties pledged to secur€lex Purchased Assets other than
Hotel Assets must at all times and during all ralevime periods generate a Debt Yield of at I&gsand *** percent (***%); (v) the
underlying Mortgaged Property or Underlying MortgddProperties pledged to secure all Flex Purchassets consisting of Hotel Assets
at all times and during all relevant periods geteeaaDebt Yield of at least *** percent (***%), (vthe Underlying Mortgaged Property or
Underlying Mortgaged Properties pledged to seclit@dBS Purchased Assets with Applicable Percerdagieich are equal to or less than
percent (***%) must at all times and during alleeehnt time periods generate a Debt Yield of attl&&gpercent (***%); and (vii) the
Underlying Mortgaged Property or Underlying MortgdgProperties pledged to secure all CMBS Purchassdts with Applicable Percenta
which are greater than *** percent (***%) must dt@mes and during all relevant time periods gestera Debt Yield of at least *** and ***
percent (***%); provided, however, that if Buyerahapprove, as of the Purchase Date for any PsezhAsset, a Debt Yield for such
Purchased Asset that is lower than the applicadgjaired Debt Yield set forth in any of sub clauggthrough (vii) above, then such




Purchased Asset shall be calculated separatelytiiernther Purchased Assets comprising such subeia determining compliance with the
Debt Yield Test otherwise applicable to Purchaseslets in such sub-clause and the lower Debt Yiekkaigned by Buyer shall be deemed to
be the Debt Yield Test applicable to such Purchdsesit.

“ Elex Pricing Margin™: Determined as set forth below, based on the ApiplécRercentage for each Flex Purchased Asset:

Eligible Whole Loans and Eligible Senior Interests

Non-Hotel Hotel
Applicable Flex Pricing Flex Pricing
Percentage Margin Margin
0-50% ok ook
50.01%- 60% ok ok
60.01%— 65% rxk rxk

Eligible Junior Interests

Non-Hotel Hotel
Applicable Flex Pricing Flex Pricing
Percentage Margin Margin
0-50% ok ook
50.01%— 60% rxk rxk
60.01%— 70% rxk rxk
70.01%- 75% ok ok

Eligible Mezzanine Loans and Eligible Mezzanine Pdicipation Interests

Non-Hotel Hotel
Applicable Flex Pricing Flex Pricing
Percentage Margin Margin
0 - 50% *%k% *%k%
50.01%- 60% ok ok
60.01%- 70% ok rork
70.01%— 75% ok ok

“LTV Ratio ”:  With respect to any CMBS Purchased Loan, on ang dfatletermination thereof, the ratio of the Puseha
Price of each such CMBS Purchased Asset to theehaakue of the underlying Mortgaged Property odehtying Mortgaged Properties for
the related CMBS Purchased Asset as determinediipgrBn its sole and absolute discretion.




QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

As of 12/31/11

Jurisdiction of

Subsidiary Formation

CorAmerica Realty Financing Company, L.L. Delaware
SPT CA Fundings, L.L.C Delaware
SPT Operations, L.L.! Delaware
SPT Real Estate Sub I, L.L Delaware
SPT Real Estate Sub Il, L.L. Delaware
SPT TALF Sub I, L.L.C Delaware
SPT TALF Sub I, L.L.C. Delaware
SPT-HII-VIII CA Fundings, L.L.C. Delaware
SPT-HII-VIII Partners, L.L.C. Delaware
SPT-HII-VIII Partners Il, L.L.C. Delaware
SPT-HII-VIII -TALF, L.L.C. Delaware
SP1-VIIl Partners, L.L.C. Delaware
SP1-VIII CA Fundings, L.L.C. Delaware
SP1-VIII -TALF, L.L.C. Delaware
Starwood Mortgage WD, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage BC, L.L Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage Holdings I, L.L Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-1, L.L.C. Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-2, L.L.C. Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage S-2-A, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-3, L.L.C. Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-3-A, L.L.C. Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-4, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-4-A, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-5, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage $-5-A, L.L.C Delaware
Starwood Property Mortgage, L.L.(C Delaware
88t Street Partners, L.L.C. Delaware
SPT 1166 Holdings, L.L.( Delaware
SPT Rosslyn Holdings, L.L. Delaware

SW-YB 1166, L.L.C Delaware
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Subsidiaries of the Registrant As of 12/31/11
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeesincRegistration Statement No. 333-161402 on F8f@hand in Registration Statement
No. 33:-169008 on Form S-3 of our report dated Februar2@%2, relating to the consolidated financialestagnts and financial statement
schedule of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. and slidases (the "Company"), and the effectivenesdhief@ompany's internal control over
financial reporting appearing in this Annual RepmmtForm 10-K of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. tioee year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Parsippany, New Jersey

February 29, 2012
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Barry S. Sternlicht, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. for the periogtled December 31, 201
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrard have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Designed such internal controls over financial répg, or caused such internal control over finahoéporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand then preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatanmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012 /sl BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Office
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Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saelsa@xley Act of 2002
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Perry Stewart Ward, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Starwood Property Trust, Inc. for the periogtled December 31, 201
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessarn

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@sponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrard have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b. Designed such internal controls over financial répg, or caused such internal control over finahoéporting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogdiand then preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantelasire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period cougyeddis report based on such
evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regigisanternal control over financial reporting tleatturred during the registran
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofigibal quarter in the case of an annual repod) lttas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financi:
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatanmmmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofimancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the itegig's ability to record, process, summarize apbrt financial information; ar

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2012 /sl PERRY STEWART WARD

Perry Stewart Ward
Chief Financial Officel
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with Starwood Property Truist.'s (the "Company") Annual Report on Form 10eKthe period ended December 31, 2011

(the "Report”), I, Barry S. Sternlicht, do herelgytdy, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012 /s/ BARRY S. STERNLICHT

Barry S. Sternlicht
Chief Executive Office
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbamxésy@.ct of 2002
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with Starwood Property Truist.'s (the "Company") Annual Report on Form 10eKthe period ended December 31, 2011

(the "Report”), I, Perry Stewart Ward, do herebstifye pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyamt to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, that to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the SgearExchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial cGadiand results of operatio
of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2012 /sl PERRY STEWART WARD

Perry Stewart Ward
Chief Financial Officel
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1358 Adlopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002



